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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

JOHN SIMON CURTIS
BA LLB (Hons)
Chairman

John Curlis, aged 58, was appainted to the Board in October 1997 and was appointed Chairman on 1
April 2008. Since 1887, he has been a professional company Ditector and is currently the Chaimman of
Allianz Australia Limited, the Chairman of Memill Lynch Australia Advisory Board and a member of the
Merrill Lynch Global Advisory Council. He is also the Chairman of the UTS Business School Executive
Council. Prior to 1987, Mr Curtis was responsible as Managing Director for the operations of Wormald
International Limited at various times in Australia, Europe and the Americas,

TERRY JAMES DAVIS
Non-Executive Director

Terry Davis, aged 50, is currently the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director of Coca-Cola
Amatil Limited. He was appointed to this role in 2001 and prior to this was with the Foster's Brewing
Group in various positions, including Managing Director of Beringer Blass Wine Estates, the wine
division of Foster's. Between 1987 and 1997, he was with the Cellarmaster Wines Group as Managing
Director. He joined the St.Gearge Board on 17 December 2004. He Is currently a member of the
University of New South Wales Council. Mr Davis is Chairman of St.George's Board Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

RICHARD ANTHONY FOUNTAYNE ENGLAND
FCA MAICD
Non-Executive Director

Richard England, aged 58, is a professional company Director and chartered accountant. He joined the
St.George Board in September 2004. Mr England is currently Chairman of Ruraico Holdings Limited,
KH Foods Limited and Chandter Macleod Limited and is a Director of Choiseul Investments Limited and
Healthscope Limited. He is a former partner of Emst & Young. Mr England was also Chalrman of
GroPep Limited from 1898 to 2006 and was a Director of ITL Limited from 2003 to 2007. Mr England is
a member of St.George’s Board Audit, Due Diligence and Risk Management Committees.

PAUL ANTHONY FEGAN
MBA FFin GAICD
Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

Paul Fegan, aged 47, was appeinted as St.George's Chief Executive Officer on 13 November 2007 and
Managing Director on 7 February 2008. Mr Fegan joined St.George in June 2002 as Group Executive
Wealth Management and assumed responsibility for Wealth Management & Retail Financial Services in
November 2004. Following a restructure in April 2007, he was appointed head of the newly formed
Retail Bank & Wealth Management division, Formerly, Mr Fegan was based in the UK as Chief
Operating Officer of Yorkshire Bank. He also held Director positions in both Yorkshire Bank and
Clydesdale Bank and a series of senior appointments in Australia, the US, Hong Kong, the UK and
freland. He is a Direclor of St.George's funds administration subsidiary, Asgard Wealth Solutions
Limited.

PETER JOHN OSWIN HAWKINS
BCA (Hons) FAICD SFFin FAIM ACA (NZ)
Non-Executive Director

Peter Hawkins, aged 54, was appointed to the Board in April 2007. He is currently a Director of Visa
Ine., Mirvac Limited Group, Liberty Financial Pty Limited, Treasury Corporation of Victoria, Clayton Utz
and The Camberwell Grammar School. He held various senior management and Directorship positions
with Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited from 1971 to 2005 and was also a Director of
BHP (NZ) Stee! Limited from 1890 to 1891, ING Australia Limited from 2002 to 2005 and Esanda
Finance Corporation from 2002 to 2005, Mr Hawkins is a member of St.George's Board Audit, Due
Diligence, Nomination and Remuneration and Risk Management Committees.
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

RODERIC {RiCK) HOLLIDAY-SMITH
BA (Hons) CA FAICD
Non-Executive Director

Rick Holliday-Smith, aged 58, was appointed to the Board In Febpuary 2007. He is curently the
Chairman of Snowy Hydro Limited and is also a Director of ASX Limited, Cochlear Limited and Servcorp
Limited. Mr Holliday-Smith was a Director of Wardley Australia Limited {a subsidiary of The Hong Kong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited) and Intermarine Australia Limited, Managing Direclor of
HongKongBank Limited {London), Chief Executive Officer of Chicago Research and Trading Group
Limited {CRT) (Chicago) and President and CEQ of NaticnsBank-CRT (Chicago). He was Chairman of
SFE Corporation Limited from 1998 to 2006 and Exco Resources NL from 1098 to 2005, He was also a
Director of DCA Group Limited from 2004 to 2008, He is a member of St.George’'s Board Risk
Management Commities.

PAUL DEAN RAMSBOTTOM ISHERWOOD
AO FCA

Non-Executive Director

Paul tsherwood, aged 69, was appointed to the Board in October 1987, He is a former partner and
National Chairman of Partners of Coopers & Lybrand, Chartered Accountants. Ha is Chairman of Glabe
International Limited and is a Director of Australand Holdings Limited Group. He was a Director of
Stadium Australia Managernent Limited from March 1996 to May 2007 and was its Chairman from May
1997 to May 2007. Mr Isherwood is Chairman of St.George's Board Audit and Due Diligence

Committees. He is also Chaiman of SL.George Life Limited and St.George Insurance Australia Pty
Limited.

LINDA BARDO NICHOLLS
AO BA (Econ) MBA (Harvard) FAICD
Non-Executive Director

Linda Nicholls, aged 60, was appointed to the Board in August 2002. She is Chairman-elect of
Healthscope Limited, a Director of Sigma Pharmaceuticals Group and insurance Manifacturers of
Australia, a Director of the Austrafian Institute of Company Directors (AICD}, President of AICD Vic Div
and 2 member of the Memill Lynch Australia Advisory Board. Mrs Nicholls was a Director of Australian
Postal Corporation from 1689 to 2008 and was its Chalrman from 1997 to 2006. She was a Director of
Perpetual Trustees Australia Limited from 1886 to 2005. She is Chairman of St.George’s Board Risk
Management Committea and is a Director of its funds administration subsidiary, Asgard Wealth
Solutions Limited.

GRAHAM JOHN REANEY
BComm CPA
Neon-Executive Director

Graham Reaney, aged 65, was appointed to the Board in November 1996. Mr Reaney’s business
experience spans 30 years, during which time he has held a number of senior corporate appointments,
including as Managing Director of National Foods Limited. Other former positions included Managing
Director of Industrial Equity Limited. He is Chairman of PMP Limited and a Director of AGL Energy
Limited. Mr Reaney is a member of St.George’s Board Risk Management and Nomination and
Remuneration Commitiees and the BankSA Advisory Board.




ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

OVERVIEW

The Australian Stock Exchange Corporate Govermnance Coundl's Principles of Good Corpeorate Govemnance and Best Practice
Recommendations (the Recommendations) released in March 2003 require listed entities to include a statement in their annual report
disclosing the extent to which they have followed the Recommendations during the reporting period. We confirm that, as at the date of this
report, 51.George was in compliance with all of the Recommendations during the reporiing period.

A revised version of the Recornmendations was released in August 2007 by the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX) (the Revised
Recommendations). The Revised Recommendations will apply to St.George in respect of its first financial year commencing on or after 1
January 2008. This means St.George will be disclosing in its annual report for the year ended 30 September 2009 whether it complies with
the Revised Recommendations. St.George expects to comply with the Revised Recommendations before that date.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors is responsible for St.George's overall performance and governance. The functions, responsibilities, composition
and procedures of the Board are set out in the Board Charter. Under the Board Charter the Board's responsibilities include:

overseeing the performance and activities of the Bank through agreed goals and strategy,

assessing performance against Board approved budgets, targets and strategies;

overseeing the management of the Bank’s business;

overseeing appropriate controls, systems and procedures within the Bank to manage the risks of its businesses and compliance
with all regulatory and prudential requirements including, without limitation, occupational health and environmental issues;
reviewing matters of general corporate governance;

appointing and removing the Managing Director;

ratifying the appointment and, where appropriate, the removal of the company secretary;

monitoring senior management’s performance and implementation of the Board approved strategies and ensuring appropriate
succession planning is in place;

approving and menitoring the progress of major capital expenditure, capital management and acquisitions and divestitures;

*  approving and monitoring material financial and other reporting; and

«  setting delegated spending limits.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND SKILLS

There ara currently elght non-executive Directors on the St.George Board. St.George's Constitution provides that there must be a minimum
of five and a maximum of ter: Directors and the Board Charter provides that the Board will only appoint one executive Director to the Board,
that being the Managing Director.

Mr John Thame resigned as Chairman of the Board on 1 April 2008 and was succeeded by Mr John Curtis. Mr Thame remained on the

Board until his retirement on 1 July 2008. As 2 consequence of hIS increased duties as Chairman, Mr John Curlis resigned from a number
of the Board's committeas as described below.

Mr Paul Fegan was appointed Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on 13 November 2007 and joined the Board as Managing Director on 7
February 2008,

It is S1.George’s policy that the Chairman of the Board must be an independent Director and is not the Managing Director. The Board
comprises a majority of independent Directors.

Each Director is assessed regarding their independence in light of interests disclosed by them and on the basis of criteria defined in the
Board Charter. Directors are required to provide the Board with all relevant information (o assess their independence.

For the purposes of determining a Director's independence, the Board applies criteria that are based on those suggested by the
Recommendations. A Director will be considered to be independent if that Director:

{a) is a non-executive Director (i.e. is not a member of management);

{b) has not been a substantia! shareholder of the Bank or an officer of, or otherwise associated directly with, a substantial
shareholder of the Bank;

(¢} has within the last three years not been employed in an executive capacity by the Bank or another group member, or been &
Director after ceasing to hold any such employment;

{d) has within the last three years not been a principal of a material professional adviser or a material consultant to the Bank or
another group member, or an employee materially associated with the service provided;

{e) has not been a materal supplier or customer of the Bank or other group member, or an officer of or otherwise associated
directly or indirectly with a material supplier or customer;
has no material contractual relationship with the Bank or another group member other than as a Director of the Bank;

{g) has not served on the Board for a period which could, or could reasonably be perceived to, interfere materially with the
Director's ability to act in the best interests of the Bank; and

{h) has been free from any interest and any other business relationshlp which could, or could reasonably be perceived to, interfere
materially with the Director's ability to act in the best interests of the Bank.

The Board considers a “substantial shareholder” to be a person with a substanttal holding as defined in section 9 of the Corporations Act
2001.

Materiality is defined, for the purposes of paragraphs (d), (e} and (f) above, as a contractual relationship pursuant to which payments are
made representing greater than 5% of the revenues of the supplier/adviser/consultant/counterparty, or greater than 5% of the costs of the
customer/counterparty in the relevant party's financial year. Materiality for the purposes of paragraphs (g) and (h) will be construed by the
Board as it deems appropriate in shareholders’ best interests as relevant circumstances arise.

5
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

The Board has this year assessed each of the Directors in office at the date of this report against the above criteria and considers that all of
the non-executive Directors are independent. The names of the Directors ¢an be found on pages 3 1o 4.

Directors are required to have a broad range of commercial expertise and experience, particularly in a field which is complementary to the
Bank's activities and strategy, or to have appropriate professional qualifications, to provide value to the Board's deliberations. Board
members must have proven ability and capacity to make a meaningful contribution to Board strateqy and policy and participate in the
overseeing of the proper functioning of management. As set out on pages 3 to 4, all of the current members of the Board have the skills,
experience and expertise relevant to their position.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Each year the Board reviews lhe performance of the Board, the Board committees, the Bank, lis senior executives, the relationship
between the Board and management and matters of general corporate govemance.

In addition, the Chairman of the Board conducts an annual questionnaire and interview with each non-executive Director as part of the

review of the performance and contribution to the Board of each non-executive Direclor. The last review of the Board was conducted in
September 2007.

The annual questionnaire includes questions regarding the Board's effectiveness, its strategic planning, its target and performance
measures, corporate govemance compliance, the leve! of openness and transparency between it and management, the appropriateness of
its current composition, the appropriateness of the lavels of skills of the cument Board, the leve! of encouragement for diversity of views
and the extent to which any such diverse views are addressed constructively. Guestions regarding the performance of the Chairman are
also included in the questionnaire.

In completing the questionnaire and attending the interviews, the non-executive Directors are able to make comments or raise issues
relating to the Board or its performance or a Board Commities’s performance.

Tha resuls of the questionnaire and interviews are presented to the Board annually by the Chairman. In addition, the Board as a whole
reviews the performance of the Managing Director at least annually and the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
facilitates an evatuation by all Directors of the performance of the Chairman of the Board.

The Momination and Remuneration Committee Chairman determines the performance criteria to be considered in these reviews. The

Charter of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee authorises it to receive reports from extemnal sources on Board composition,
procedures and performance criteria.

DIRECTORS' RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION

One third of the Directors {excluding the Managing Director) must relire each year at the Annual General Meeting, but may stand for re-
election.

St.George's policy is that no Director can be appointed to the Board if he or she is aged 65 years or over, and a Director must retire at the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting following that Director tuming 72 years. The Board's policy (except in special circumstances,
where the Board considers it important to retain valuable skills or knowledge) is that no Director should be appointed to fil a casual

vacancy if he or she would be ever B0 years when appointed, Details of the current Directors serving on the Board are provided on pages 3
fo 4.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES
The Nomination and Remuneralion Committee considers and makes recommendations to the Board regarding the compasition and

remuneration of the Board. and on any proposed Board performance criteria. Details of the remuneration paid to the Direclors (executive

and non-executive) and specified senior executives are sef out in the Remuneration Report contained in the Directors’ Report on pages 15
to 34.

The process for evaluating the performance of senior executives and details of the occurrence of the performance evaluation are contained
in the Directors’' Report on pages 15 to 34,

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Board of Directors terminated its retirement benefits scheme for non-executive Directors, effective from 30 September 2003, following
the approval of shareholders at the 2003 Annual General Meeting. Non-executlve Directors appeointed after 30 September 2003 are not
entitled to retirement benefils. Paviment of retirement benefits for Directars in office at 30 September 2003 will not exceed the amount
accrued in respect of that Director as at 30 September 2003,

INDEPENDENT PROFESSIONAL ADVICE

To assist in the performance of their duties, Directors may, in consultation with the Chairman and at the expense of the Bank, seek
independent advice on any matter before the Board, with such advice being made available to ail Directors.

6
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

MARKET DISCLOSURE POLICY

St.George is committed to a best practice disclosure policy, with propery detailed and timely disclosure to the market of relevant
information about St.George. It recognises that keeping the investor community fully informed and resisting pressure to give preferential
access lo analysts, institutions or others enhances corporate credibility and investor confidence, with a positive influence on share price.

This commitment is reflected in St.George's Company Disclosure Policy and Communications Strategy, a copy of which is available on the

StL.George website. These written policies have been designed to ensure compliance with ASX Listing Rule disclosure requirements and
the Recommaendations,

The policy provides that all material information is to be immediately notified to the investor community through the ASX, without
preferential access to any individual or group. To ensure best practice in disclosure, all new information in the first instance will be released
1o the ASX. The Genera! Counsel and Secretary of the Bank is primarily responsible for communicating with the ASX and for ensuring all
information is clear, objective and factual and that no material information is omitted. The Policy also sets oul guidelines relating to the

announcement of future eamings or financial performance, meetings with investors and analysts, shareholder enquiries and inadvertent
disclosure of information.

Procedures are in place to ensure that ail information which could potentially require disclosure is reported promptly to the Managing
Director through relevant senior executives for assessment by the Managing Director with the Group Executive, Strategy, and/or Chief
Financial Officer and General Counse! and Secretary. Compliance with the Disclosure Policy is monitored on a quarlery basis by the
Board's Risk Management Committee and the Policy Is reviewed annually by that Committee.

St.George endeavours to improve access to information by investors by using, where reasonable, current technology to ensure the widest
possible dissemination of information in a timely manner. All ASX announcemenls are posted to the St.George websile and the Bank's
announcement of its yearly and half yearly financial results and sharehotders meetings are webcast.

All media enquiries relating to issues material to St.George are coordinated by the Group Executive, Strategy, in consultation, if
appropriate, with the Chief Financial Officer, with only certain nominated senior staff authorised to make media comments.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board's structure of Board Committees assists it in managing its responsibility for oversight and control. The Board has established
four Committees to assist in the execution of its responsibiliies. These ara the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, the Due Diligence Committee and the Risk Management Committee.

Each of these Committees operates under Board-approved Charters which are reviewed regutarly by the Boand. The Charters deal with the
purpose, membership, responsibilities and authoritles of each Commiittee, together with the quorum and frequency of meetings. Copies of

these charlers are available on the St.George website, Additional committees may be formed from time to time to deal with specific
matters.

Minutes of Committee meelings and Committee recommendations are provided to the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
ROLE

In discharging its audit role, the Committee receives and considers reports and recommendations from the Bank’'s management and
makes recommendations to the Board in respect of the Bank's financial reperting, Australian Prudential Regulation Authority reporting,
systems for intemnal control and both intemal and external audit processes.

In addition, tha Audit Commiittee reviews major disclosure documentation prior 1o its issue 1o the market, such as financial results
disclosure and other significant disclosures made to the market.

COMPOSITION

The Audit Commitiee has & membership of at least three non-executive Directors, the majority of whom are independent. The Audit
Committee Chairman is independent and is not the Chalrman of the Board.

The current members are RAF England, PJO Hawking (appointed on 29 April 2008) and PDR Isherwood (who is the Chairman). JS Curtis
resigned from the Committee on 1 April 2008.

The gualifications of the members of the Audit Committee are set out on pages 3to 4.

Al the end of each reporting period, the Audit Committee reviews the Group’s half-yearly and yearly financial statements prior to
submission to the Board.

The internal and external auditors have a direct line of communication to the Chairman of the Audit Committee with the external auditor
also having a direct line of communication to the Board's Chairman. The external auditor is invited to attend Audit Committee meetings
each quarter and addresses the Audit Committee in the absence of members of management. In addition, the external auditor atlends the
annual general meeting of the Bank and is available to answer shareholder questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor's report, the accounting policies adopted by the Bank in relation to the preparation of the financial statements and the
independence of the auditor in relation to the conduct of the audit.

7
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

SELECTION CRITERIA, APPOINTMENT AND ROTATION OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR
The Board is responsible for appointing the external auditor, subject to confirmation by the shareholders at an annual general meeting.

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendations ta the Board regarding the nomination of external auditors to the Group
and reviewing the adequacy of exisling external audit arrangements.

Below is a summary of the selection criteria of the Bank's extemal auditor. The summary of critaria is based on the Bank’s “Fit and Proper
Policy” for appointing responsible persons as required under the prudential standards set by the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority.
Depending on the circumstances, details of the criteria may change from time to time.

The assessment of a candidate for external auditor takes into account a number of key criteria, including: (i) the adequacy of the
candidate’s experience and resources; (i) whether the candidate Is recognised locally and intemationally and well respected; (iii) the
nature of the candidate's audit approach and mathodology; (iv) the level of the candidate's compliance with its obligations to the Bank as

set out in the Audit Committee Charter and the “The Provision of Audit and Other (Non-Audit) Services by the External Auditor Policy™, and
(v} the overall terms of the engagement letter.

KPMG was appointed the Bank’s external auditor at its Annual General Meeting in December 1888 and continues in this role. The
responsible audit partner must be rotated at least every five years and cannot work on the Bank's audit for a period of two years following a
rotation. It was on this basis that the Bank's current responsible audit pariner, Mr Paul Reid succeeded Mr John Teer in 2005/2006.
Details of the total fees paid to the auditor are set out in page 82.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

The Provision of Audit and Other {Non-Audit) Services by the External Auditor Policy (the External Auditor Policy) allows for the provision
of non-audit related services by the Bank’s auditor, However, the prior approval of the Chaimman of the Audit Committee is required where
non-audit services are sought from the Bank's auditors for which the proposed fee exceeds a specified level. The annual fees payable to
the Bank's auditor for non-audit services for which, under the Extemal Auditor Policy, the Audit Committee Chairman’s approval is not
required, are reviewed by the Audit Commitiee above specified levels. The fees payable to the Bank's auditor for non-audit services are
also set out on page 82, The auditor cannot be engaged to provide non-audit services that may materially conflict with its obligations and
responsibilities as the Bank’s auditor. in addition, the policy prohibits audit firm partners and senior professional staff (and their families)

from directly investing in the Bank's shares, botrowing from the Bank or being a Direclor or holding an executive position in the Bank which
is of significance to the audit.

It is one of the functions of the Audit Committee to assess the performance and independence of the Bank's external auditor and whether
the independence of this function is maintalned having regard to the provision of non-audit related services.

The External Auditor Policy was reviewed in August 2007 to reflect the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and certain
requirements that are imposed by overseas regulatory regimes that may be applicable 10 the operations of SL.George. For example,
certain subsidiaries of the Bank are subject to various US Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) rules goveming auditor
independence as a result of the need to comply with SEC Regulation AB filing requirements.

A copy of the External Auditor Policy is available on the St.George website. It must be read in conjunction with the Audit Committee
Charter and the Group's overriding terms and conditions applicable to engagements undertaken by its external auditor.

h accordance with the External Auditor Policy, in this report the Audit Committee declares that the level of other (non-audit) services

provided by the external auditer is compatible with maintaining auditor independence. This is further expanded on in the “Directors’
Report”.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
ROLE

The Nomination and Rermuneration Committee meets as required to consider and make recommendations 1o the Board on the compesition
of the Board, appropriate criteria for Board membershlp and performance, the tenure of Directors generally, the remuneration framework
for Direclors and, where required, the suitability of nominations for the position of Director.

Recommendations are also made by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to the Board regarding the Bank’s recruitment,
retention and termination policies and procedures for senior executives.

This consideration will involve an assessment {with the assistance of external advice, if appropriate) of the qualifications, skills, experience

and value which the person may bring {o the Board and his or her ability to make a contribution to the Board's strategy. policy and
effectiveness.

The Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee also reviews and makes recommendations to the Board on the varous Group
compensation, incentive and reward programs inctuding the remuneration for the Managing Director and senior executives.

In addition, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee makes determinations as required of it under the rules of St.George's employee

share/option plans. The Managing Director does not attend parts of meetings which relate to the assessment of the Managing Director's
remunération.
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

COMPOSITION

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has a minimum of three members, the majority being independent Directors and s chaired
by the Chairman of the Board, or an independent Director.

The current members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are TJ Davis (who is the Chairman), PJO Hawkins and GJ Reaney.
J8 Curtis resigned from the Committee on 29 April 2008,

REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Bank’s remuneration policies are set out in the remuneration report on page 15 to 34 of the Directors’ Report.

DUE DILIGENCE COMMITTEE
ROLE

The Due Diligence Committee meets for the purposes of reviewing the planning memorandum and/or cther procedures proposed by the
Bank's management for determining the content of disclosure documents to be issued in connection with capital raising or other major
transactions proposed to be undertaken by the Bank. It oversees the due diligence and verification conducted in refation to such
disclosure documents and recommends to the Board whether such disclosure documents can be issued and monitors compliance with the
regulatory regime applicable to such documents,

COMPOSITION

The Due Diligence Committee comprises the members of the Audit Committes; membership is three non-executive Directors. The
Chairman of the Due Diligence Committee is the Director who holds the position of the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
ROLE

The Risk Management Commitiee oversees and monitors poficies and procedures in relation to credit, liquidity, market, balance sheet and
operational risks. In the area of credil risk, the Risk Management Committee reviews and approves loan applications and credit limits
within tevels delegated by the Board. In addition, it oversees and maonitars the Bank's credit practices and reporting procedures to ensure
adherence to policy. it also reviews the Group's credit portfolios and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts and the risk management
policies and procedures for market, funding and liquidity risks as well as the strategias and positions taken to manage interest rate risk and
the Bank's balance sheet. It oversees and monitors the Bank's compliance with regulatory capital requirements, the compllance systems
in place by which management discharges its lega! obligations in respect of the Bank's business and the compliance systems and
procedures within the Bank by which appropriate disclosure can be made to the Board of the risks just described.

Management has reporied to the Risk Management Commiftee and through it to the Board, on the effectiveness of the Bank's
management of its material business risks and further details are contained in pages 12 to 13.

COMPOSITION
The Risk Management Committee has a membership of five non-executive Directors,

The current members are RAF England, PJO Hawkins (appointed on 29 April 2008), R Holliday-Smith, LB Nicholls (who is the Chairman}
and GJ Reaney. JM Thame resigned from the Committee as a consequence of his retirement from the Board on 1 July 2008.
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GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES FOR 2007/2008:

Bl Commitees ]
Nomination
and Due Risk
Board Audit Remuneration Diligence!’ Management?

Total number of meetings held 30 4 5 7 10
P A Fegan® 26/26 N/A N/A N/A N/A
J S Curtis ¢ 30 212 272 3/3 N/A
TJ Davis 28 N/A 5 N/A N/A
R A F England 28 4 N/A 7 10
P J O Hawkins ® 30 212 5 a/4 5/5
R Holliday-Smith 28 N/A N/A N/A 7

P D R Isherwood AQ 29 4 N/A 7 NIA
L B Nicholls AQ 30 N/A N/A N/A 10
G J Reaney 28 N/A 4 N/A 8

J M Thame ® 19419 N/A N/A N/A 7

{1)
2

(3
(4)

(5)
(6)

During the year, this Committee considered six matters via circulated resolutions.

There have been numerous individual proposals circulated to the Risk Management Commitiee for approval between meetings,
which have required consideration of up to two days per month In time for Directors on that Committee.

Mr Fegan was appeinted Managing Director on 7 February 2008.

Mr Curtis resigned from the Audit and Due Diligence Committees on 1 Aprit 2008 and from the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on 29 April 2008.

Mr Hawkins joined the Audit, Due Diligence and Risk Management Committees on 29 April 2008.

Mr Thame resigned as Chairman on 1 April 2008 and retired from the Board and Risk Management Committee on 1 July 2008.

During the year, Mr Curtis attended 3/3 Board meetings of the Bank's wealth management subsidiary, Asgard Wealth Solutions Limited,
while Mrs Nicholls attended 1/2 Board meetings following her appointment to that Board on 28 April 2008. Mr Thame attended 2/2 Board -
meetings of the Bank's life insurance and mortgage insurance subsidiaries, St.George Life Limited and St.George Insurance Australia Pty )
Limited, while Mr Isherwood atiended 2/2 following his appointment 1o these Boards on 29 April 2008, Messrs Reaney and Thame
attended 3/3 meetings of the BankSA Advisory Board,

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Michael Bowan (BA, LLB (Hons) ANU), was admitled as a New South Wales solicitor in December 1989 and was
appointed to his current role as General Counse! and Secretary of $t.George Bank on 1 October 2000,

*- 10




ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

IDENTIFYING AND MANAGING SIGNIFICANT BUSINESS RISKS

The operational and financial performance of the Group is monitored by a reporting structure that includes the Board and its Committees.
The Board also monitors appropriale risk management strategies developed lo mitigate the identified risks of the business. The Bank's
policies and systems for dealing with risks such as market, credit, balance sheet, and liquidity and its social corporate responsibility are
outlined in the Risk Management Systems Document.

COMPLIANCE, ETHICS AND INTEGRITY

The Board has a Code of Ethics which sets out the expectations of St.George for Directors and staff In their business affairs and in
dealings with customers. Among other things, the Code of Ethics requires high standards of personal integrity and honesty in all dealings,
a respect for the privacy of customers, avoidance of any conflicts of interest and observance of the law. Particularly, staff members should
maintain required records with integrity, refiecting transactions in an accurate and timety manner.

The Code of Ethics also encourages staff to report in good faith suspected unlawful/unethical behaviour in others, and provides an avenue
of communication through the Genera! Counsel and Secretary for staff to report suspected offences.

In addition, St.George has a Whistleblower Palicy which sets out the procedure for dealing with reports of suspected improper conduct
within the St.George Group, and the protection of the individuals making those reports. All 5t.George staff have a responsibility and are
encouraged to report any known or suspected incidences of improper conduct by making a protected disclosure in accordance with the
Whistleblower Palicy. It is the respansibility of all St.George parsannel to ensure the welfare of the whistleblower, by refraining from any
activity that is or could be perceived to be victimisation or harassment of the whistleblower.

In compliance with section 195 of the Corporations Acf 2007, any Direclor who has a material personal interest in a matter that is being
considered at a Directors’ meeting must not be present while that matter is being considered and must not vole on the matter.

Furthermore, any Director who has a conflict of interest regarding any matter being considered by the Directors will not receive a copy of
the paper dealing with the matter.

ST.GEORGE TRADING POLICY

The Board has established guidefines incorporating govemance policies which deal, among other matiers, with disclosure of interests by
Directors and limitations on dealing in the Bank's financial products by Direclors and senijor officers. A copy of the St.George Trading
Policy is available on the 5t.George website.

Directors and employees are encouraged to be long-term holders of the Bank's financial products. Directors, senior management and
those members of staff with access to market sensilive information, however, are only permitted to deal in the Bank's financial products In
certain window periods (and then only if they are not In possession of unpublished price-sensitive information), namely within s weeks
following the announcement of the Bank's interim and final results and within four weeks following the Bank's Annual General Meeting or
the issue of a prospectus.

Subject to the prohibition against limiting the economic risk of a holding in the Bank’s securities:

(i} provided that they do not hold inside information and are not engaging in short term speculative gains, employees (other
than Senior Empioyees) may buy and sell the Bank's financial products without obtaining the consent of the Bank's
Secretary during each of the six weeks following half yearly and annual profit announcements or four weeks following the
Bank’'s Annual General Meeting or the issue of a prospectus (the trading windows). The Bank's Secretary’s consent is
required if such trading occurs outside the trading windows (which will only be granted in cases of demonstrated hardship);

(i} any Director or Senior Employee wishing to buy or sell the Bank's financial products or exercise options over the Bank’s
financial preducts and not engaging in short term speculative gains, may only do 5o during the trading windows and must
advise the Chairman Iin the case of Directors or abtain the Chairman’s consent in the case of the Bank's Chief Executive
Officer and Senior Employees of their intention to do so.

Directors and employees must not buy or sell the financial products or exercise their options until approval has been given by the
Chairman or the Bank’s Secretary (as the case may be).

The Bank is also obliged to advise the ASX of Directors’ dealings in its financial products. For the purposes of this Policy, “inancial
products” includes the Bank's shares and debt securities, financial products issued or created over its securities by third parties, and
associated products which operate to limit the economic risk of a halding in the Bank's securities.

Directors are required to have shareholdings in the Bank. Under the Constitution, a Director's reguired shareholding is no tess than 500
shares.

FURTHER INFORMATION

As part of its commitment to achieving best practice in corporate govemance, St.George regularly reviews its corporate governance
policies and where appropriate, updates them. S1.George has a Corporate Govemnance section on its website at www.stgeorge.com.au,

where there is information on its corporate governance arrangements, including copies of the relevant St.George policies and the Board
and Committee Charters.

*__ 1




ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
RISK MANAGEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

The Group in its daily operations is exposed to a range of risks including credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk, barking book risk and

operational risk (including fraud, theft and property damage). These risks are managed through specialised committees responsible for
policy setting and monitoring and analysing risk.

A Risk Management Govemnance Framework is embedded in the business. It incorporates:

Corporate Governance Framework for the Board and its Committees and the Group Executive and its Management Committees;
A Risk Appetite Statement approved by the Board and integrated in the strategic and operational planning processes;

The identification and management of the major risk categories to the Group;

Key poficies and processes to manage risk and provide reliable and consistent results; and

Capital planning and management, which includes Economic Capital modelling and management.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the potential for loss arising from a debtor or counterparty failing to meet their financial contractual obligations. This risk is
inherent in the Group's lending activities, as well as transactions involving derivatives and foreign exchange.

The Board of Directors has delegated responsibility for the management of credit risk to the Board Risk Management Committee (“BRMC™)
and Management Credit Committee (“MCC"). Reporting to these Committees is a specialised Group Credit division, under the direction of

the Chief Risk Officer, which is responsible for the oversight and management of the Group’s credit risk together with representatives from
the business divisions.

Credil risk is managed principally through embedded controls upon individual lending divisions and business managers who are
responsible for the lending. Lending is caried out within the parameters of lending policies {covering approvals, documentation and
management), which have been developed having regard to statistical data and historical risk experience.

To maintain the quality of the lending portfolio, prudential standards and lending policies have been established throughout the Group.
Credit processes are typically structured so that loan origination, approval, document preparation, settiement and account monitoring and
control are segregated to different individuals or areas. Credit must be evaluated against established credit policies and within authorities
and be structured, particularly in terms of security, to be prudent for the risk incurred.

The Group Credit division is responsible for the following functions:

. Formulating and monitoring compliance with credit policies in relation to credit assessment, risk grading and reporting, collateral
requirements, documentary and legal procedures and compliance with regulatory requirements. Through its credit inspection
function, Group Credit tests internal controls and adherence to credit policies and procedures that are standard throughout the Group
and contained in credit manuals administered by Group Credit.

. Establishing lending authorities for the approval of credit facilities. Lending authorities are delegated to business division staffl. The
Group Credit division assesses credit beyond the lending authorilies of business divisions and/or outside normal Group Credit
policies or guidelines. Fadilities outside Group Credit's delegated authorities are approved by the MCC or BRMC as appropriate.

. Developing and maintaining credit risk assessment criteria. The Group applies standard credit risk assessment criteria to all
extensions of credit, from credit scoring systems for basic retail products 1o a more detailed credit assessmen? for commercial and
trade related transactions. Standard risk grading methodologies for commaercial lending are set at the transaction fevel and drive
pricing decisions. The Portfolic Management Function within Group Credit monitors and refines proprietary risk grading systems.
The quantification of credit risk is performed by analytical tools and models, which provide estimates of Probability of Defauit, Loss
Given Default and Exposure at Default across retail and commercial exposures. The oulputs of the models provide input to expected
and unexpected loss calculations, ievels of collective provisions, Economic Capital estimates and a varlety of operational credit
decisions. The Portfolioc Management Unit within Group Credit oversees the development and monitoring of the models and
adherence to policy.

. Monitoring and reporting on credit risk within the portfolio. intemal limits are used to assist with the diversification of the portfolio.
These include (imits on countarparties, individual securities ar developments, industries, geographies and retail products. internal
limits are approved by the Bank's Board Risk Management Committee. St.George manages concentration risk through a set of limits
and associated policies which control lending to industry segments, individua! large exposures, geographic areas, risk grades and
products. The objective is to ensure that no single exposure or set of exposures is large enough to threaten the ongoing viability of
the Bank. The management of concentration risk forms a key component of the overall risk appetite of the Bank. Group Credit
regularly reports on compliance with these intemal fimits to the MCC and BRMC and the status of large impalired assets, amears and
trend analysis, compliance reports, portfolio analysis and all exposures above $50 million.

. Provisioning for impaired assets. Group Credit assesses provision requirements where loan defaull has occurred and also controls
the Loans Management Unit, which manages large impaired assets with the aim of achieving the optimum result from such assets.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk refers to the inability to meet financial commitments when they fall due and arises from mismatches in the cash flows from
financial transactions. Liquidity is managed to policies and strategies determined by the Bank's Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO).

These include:

. Maintaining a core of high-quality and readily liquefiable securities;

. Sourcing the majority of funds from the retail sector and committed medium-term wholesale facilities;
. Maintaining & diversified tunding capeacity in wholesate and retail markets; and

Monitoring liquidity flows while quickly identifying any anomalies.

12
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ST.GEQORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
RISK MANAGEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

MARKET RISK

(a) Funding risk

Funding risk is the risk of over-reliance on a panicular funding source. The risks associaled with such a concentration include volatility in
funding costs or availability.

To minimise funding risk, the Group raises wholesale funds from well-diversified sources encompassing both international and domestic
capital markets.

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate rigk arises from a variety of sources including mismatches between the re-pricing periods of assets and liabilities. Movements
in interest rates can affect eamings and the value of the Group. Interest rate risk management policy aims to minimise fluctuations in
earnings over time from volatility in movements in interest rates while maximising shareholder value.

{i} Interest rate risk in non-trading activities

Interest rate risk in non-trading activities is the rigk of loss in eamings or in the economic value of St.George's non-trading aclivities as a

consequence of movements in interest rates. There are four components of interest rate risk for non-traded activities: repricing, yield
curve, basis and optionality.

Interest rate risk is monitared on an eamings and a valuation approach by the Bank's Balance Sheet Risk Management unit to ensure
that aggregate exposure 1o interest rate risk is managed within policy guidetines with defined Yimits commensurate with the Bank's *risk
appelite” and strategic objectives set by ALCO and overviewed by the Board Risk Management Committee.

The Bank's non-traded interest rate rigk measurement system integrates risk parameters, product design, pricing policies and forecasts

of the balance sheet and yield curve. Key modelling assumptions are regularly reviewed to take into account both historical relationships
and the current market environment.

(i) Market risk from trading activities

Market risk is the potential for logses arising from adverse movements in the level of market factors such as foreign exchange rates and
interest rates. Trading activities give rise to market risk. This risk is controlled by an overall risk management framework that incorporates
a number of market risk measurements including value at risk (VaR). VaR is a statistical estimate of the potential loss that could be
incurred if the Bank's frading positions were maintained for a defined period of time. A confidence leve! of 98% is used at St.George; this
implies that for every 100 days, the loss will not exceed the VaR limit on 99 of those days. VaR is not an estimate of the maximum loss the
frading activities could incur from an extreme market event.

" VaR measurements are supplemented by a series of stress tests that are used to capture the possibility of extreme events or market
shocks. Additionally, the market risk framework includes applying stoploss limits on ali portfolios, basis point sensitivity limits, specific
options limits and control of large or unusual trading activity.

St.George uses Monte Carlo simulation to calculate VaR. This model takes into account relevant market variables. ! is approved by APRA
for regulatory purposes and is operated within the overall framework outlined in the APRA Prudential Standards. Actual and hypothetical
profit and loss outcomes are monitored against VaR on a daily basis as part of the model validation process. This process includes
hypoethetical profit and loss, which holds the portfolio constant, thereby excluding any intraday trading activity.

OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk is the risk of loss, including reputation, resulting from failed intemal processes, people and systems or from extemal
events. The operational risk management function ensures the Group has appropriate controfs to mitigate potential operational risks.

Various techniques are utilised by the operaticnal risk management functions to manage, mitigate, monitor and repon on operational risk
exposures, related controls and the trends associated with various key risk Indicators. A documented framework includes policy and
procedures expected of the operational risk management functions within the Group. '

The operational risk function facilitates informed decision making and promotes a conslstent risk culture within the Group. The Group has
designed and implemented an Advanced Meastirement Approach to compute regulatory operational risk capital at a 99.8% confidence
level under Basel Il and as an input to the Group's Economic Capital estimates. The model incorporates various forward tooking and

historical data inputs such as intemal and extema! loss events, scenario analysis information, operational risk profile information and
various key risk indicators.

BUSINESS CONTINUITY AND PLANNING
St.George's buslness recovary policy.

Business continuity management is a key component of St.George's sustalnability, ensuring the Group can respond to and racover from
major incidents. The Bank's Business Recovery Plans document a coordinated response to facilitate the recovery of critical business
processes and services in the event of major damage or loss of service,
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
5 YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

PReVIoUS"
“GAAP
2008 2007 2008 2005 2004
Income Statemant
Interest Income $m 10,710 8,203 8,814 5918 4,118
Interest Expense &m 8237 6,010 4,789 4055 2,504
Net Interest income m 2,473 2,163 2015 1.861 1,612
QOther Income $m 1,132 1,082 994 860 975
Bad and Doubtful Debis Expense $m 201 178 144 128 112
Cperating Expenses m 1,453 1,350 1,356 1.298 1,342
Share of Net Profit of Equity Accounted Associates $m 1 - - 3 2
Profit before Income Tax o 1,862 117 1,509 1,300 1,135
Income Tax Expense $m 658 525 445 399 arz
Profit after Income Tax $m 1,208 1,192 1,064 901 783
Net Profit/(Less) Attributable to Ouiside Equity Interests $m 1 2 (4) {5) 4)
Net Profit Atiributable to Members of the Bank $m 1,205 1,190 1,068 908 767
Prafarence Dividends $m N 27 20 17 50
Profit Available to Ordinary Shareholders m 1,174 1,162 1.048 889 717
Retum on Average Assets'™
- before goodwill impeimmentiamortsation, significant iterns and non-trading derivatives % 1.00 104 1.05 403 1.30
- after goodwill impairment/amortisation, significant items and non-trading derivatives % 0.89 1.05 .07 1.03 1.14
Ratum on Average Crdinary Equity
- before goodwlll impairment/amertisation, significant iters and nen-trading derivatives % 21.49 23.20 22.91 2210 21.42
- after goodwill impairment/amortisation, significant items and non-trading derivaiives % 19.1Q 2328 2340 21.92 18.73
Retum on Average Risk Weighted Assets!™ % 1.98 205 203 2,00 1.92
Operating Expenses as 8 % of Average Assats ' % 102 1.22 1.3 145 182
Expense o Income Ratio ¥ % 3.7 425 44,0 471 475
Net interest margin % 1.8 201 AL 21 2.70
ares
AIFRS AIFRS GAAP
Balance Shest
Total Assets $m 147,380 125800 107002 92,359 69,960
Liquids and Treasury Securities $m 21,282 15582 9994 9451 1.166
Loans and Other Receivables $m ar. 721 89,884 81,516 72,949 o4,782
Other Assets Sm 28,267 20323 15480 9,959 a.012
Total Liabilities $m 140,377 119,816 101,859 86,972 84,931
Deposits and Other Borrowings $m 80,201 70,803 546833 49175 48,083
Bonds and Notes and Loan Capital $m 41,005 37,202 38,825 27,674 11,388
Other Liabilities Sm 8171 11,011 10,401 9,923 7,460
Totel Shereholders’ Equity $m 7.003 5,884 5343 5,387 5,029
Shareholders’ Equity as % of Tolal Assets % 475 4.68 499 583 7.19
Capital Adequacy
- Tier 1 Capital % 6.6 6.7 8.9 7.3 7.3
- Tier 2 Capital % 38 35 40 38 39
- Less: Deductions % (0.1} - [(GA))] {0.1) {0.1)
Total % 10.4 10.2 108 1.1 111
Risk Weighted Assats $m 75162 83,226 52982 47,884 42,581
Receivables
Residential $m 75533 69,214 62897 56,292 39,273
Ceoenmercial $m 15,660 13,203 12373 1198 11,447
Consumer sm 6,738 7,135 6,120 4,719 4,070
QOther $m 151 623 644 178 201
Receivables before Collective/General Provision $m 98,091 90,175 81,784 73168 54,991
Coliective/General Provision $m 370 294 268 b3l 209
Net Loans and Other Receivables $m T 89,884 81518 72,049 54,782
revious
Share Information GAAP
Dividend per Ordinary Share
- Interim Cents 88 a2 T4 a7 €Q
- Final Cents 94 88 77 70 82
- Spacial Cents N . - - -
Total Cants 213 168 151 137 122
Basic Earnings per Ordinary Share
- before goodwill Impairment/amortisation, significant items and non-trading dertvatives Cents 2370 21849 165.8 1731 160.8
- gfter goociwill impainment/amortisation, significant items and non-trading derivatives Cents 2108 218.5 169.8 171.7 140.8
Diluted Eamings per Ordinary Share
- betore goodwill Impairmant/amortisation, significant items and non-trading derivatives Cents 233.9 2173 194.4 171.8 160.0
- after goodwill Impairment/amortisation, significant itams and non-trading derivativas Cents  209.2 217.8 195.4 170.5 140.3
Dividend Payout Ratia % 80.0 78.7 771 794 759
Dividend Payout Ratia % 1011 78.5 75.5 7%8 858
Net Tangible Assets per Ordinary Share $ 8.05 7.63 873 6.01 5.58
Other Statistics
Branthes 404 399 IR ) 391
Staff 8,420 8,074 7.848 7.880 7.541
Asgets per Staff &m 187 15,6 13.5 17 8.3
Staff per $m Assats 0.05 0.06 0.07 0.08 011
(1) Before preference dhidends
(2) Betore goodwill imp W isation, significant items and nor-trading dartvatives
14
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

The Diractors of St.George Bank Limited present their report together with the Financial Report of the consolidated entity (the Group),
being St.George Bank Limited {the Bank) and its controlled entities, for the year ended 30 September 2008.

DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors of the Bank holding office at any time during the financial year or since the end of the financiat year, together
with details of current Directors’ qualifications, experience and special responsibilities are contained in the Board of Directors information.

DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

The number of Directors' meetings {including meetings of commitiees of Directors) held during the financial year that Directors were
eligible to attend and attended are set out in the Corporate Govemance Statement.

This information is to be regarded as incorporated into this report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The qualifications, experience and date of appointment of the Company Secretary are contained in the Corporate Governance Statement,
REMUNERATION REPORT - AUDITED

Dear Shareholders,

During the earlier par of the current financial year the Nomination and Remuneration Committee's activities were focussed on the
appoiniment of the new Chief Executive Officer. After an extensive global review of candidates Paul Fegan was appointed as the
successful candidate. Other key appointments included Les Matheson as Group Executive of the Retail Bank and Paul Newham who was
appointed as our new Group Executive Group Technology & Operations. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed and
simplified executive scorecards and key performance indicalors for key executives and made changes to short-term at risk remuneration
relevant to "over performance” by executives. These changes are explained in more detail in this report.

The proposed merger with Westpac required the consideration and resolution by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of a
number of complex matters, including the parformance and retention of key executives during a period of uncertainty and the treatment of
employee options and awards (including the treatment of performanca hurdles after the merger implementation). The resulting outcome, to
be voted upon by employee award holders as part of an option scheme of arrangement, has retained the original retention benefits of the
options and awards and is in the interests of both shareholders and option/award holders.

More information on the treatment of employee options and awards as part of the proposed merger is included in the Scheme Booklet
mailed to shareholders in early Oclober 2008,

Overall St.George has delivered a sofid result in a very challenging external environment. The cash EPS result of 8.3% was within the
revised guidance provided 1o the market and reward outcomes for the year were aligned with this resull. Average reward outcomes
against short term targets were allocated at 84%.

Measured over the longer term, relevant to the performance tests in our Long and Medium Term Incentive plans, the Bank's performance

was also strong. Group Executives and senior executives with Awards and Options vesting this year met their performance hurdies on the
first testing date.

In recognition of the workload and responsibilities of your Board, a review of Directors fees was also undertaken and resulted in a modest

increass 1o fees effective from 1 May 2008. The increases continue to ba well within the fee pool approved by shareholders in December
2007.

As part of our regular effectiveness review, a review of the performance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was also
undertaken. We are pleased to repont this review concluded that the Nomination and Remuneration Committee operated effectively.
On behalf of the Committee, thank you for your interest in this Report.

Terry Davis
Chairman, Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee

The information on the following pages 16 o 34 has been subject {0 audit.
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (Committee)

The Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's remuneration arrangements and appointment of Directors. The key functions of
the Committee, as set out on our website are:

*  To consider and make recommendations to the Board on the composition of the Board, appropriate criteria for Board membership
and performance, the tenure of Diractors generally, the remuneration framework for Directors and where required, the suitablity of
nominations for the position of Director;

+  To review and make recomrmendations to the Board for Board succession plans;

+  To review and make recommendations to the Board with respect (o the remuneration to be paid by the Group to its Managing Director
and Group Executives;

+ To review and make recommendations o the Board regarding the Group's recruitment, relention and termination poficies and
procedures for senior executives;

+  To review and make recommendations to the Board on the various material remuneration, incentive and reward programs within the
Group; and

*  To make determinations and recommendations, as appropriate, in accordance with the rutes of the Group's various employee and
executive performance share and option plans.

The following materia! is publicly available, and updated as required, by posting the material on the Group’s website in a dearly marked
corporate governance section:

»  Adescription of the procedure for the appoiniment of new Directors to the Board:

¢ The charter of the Committee and a summary of the role, rights, responsibilities and membership requirements for that Committee;
and

*  The Committee’s policy for the appointment of Directors,

The Committee has a minimum of 3 members, the majority of which are independent Directors. It is chaired by an Independent Director or
the Chairman of the Board and meets at least 4 times each year. :

The membership of the Committee comprises Terry Davis, Peter Hawkins and Graeme Reaney. John Curtis was a member of the
Committee from 1 October 2007 unlil 28 April 2008 and ceased to be a member upon his appointment to Chalrman of the Board. The
Managing Director, the Group Executive Human Resources, the Company Secretary and the General Manager, Remuneration attend
Committee meetings by invitation, except where matters of their own remuneration are considered.

The Committes has also taken advice during the year from two exiemal remuneration consuilants being Egan Assotiates and Guerdon
Associates.

Key Management Personnel (KMP)} and Other Sanior Executives

This report covers the remuneration arrangements for Directors, Group Executives and other senior executives.

Directors include the Bank’s Managing Director and Non-Executive Directors of the Bank.

Group Executives are those executives with the greatest authority for managing and setting the strategic direction of the Group and who
are direct reports of the Managing Director. They include the five highest paid executives of the Group for the 30 September 2008 financial
year.

Other senior executives are those executives who are not direct reports of the Managing Director and other executives who are
participants of the Group's Medium Term Incentive Plan (MTIP).

Related Matters
Executive Performance

All senior execulives have job descriptions in place which set out their roles, respensibilities and duties In addition to letters of appointment
or contracts which also set out their remuneration entitements in full, including their entitements on termination.

They are also required to adhere lo the range of policies in place within the Group from time to time. These policies are made available on
various intranets in operation across the Group.

All senior executives have their performance evaluated annually against a range of factors documented in a Balanced Scorecard. The
Board agrees the Scorecard for the Managing Director at the commencement of each new year. For members of the Group Executive,
each Scorecard is set by the Managing Director and approved by the Board.

The Scorecards cover a range of areas including financial results, customer oulcomes, people, strategy and risk and compliance. Each of
these factors is weighted differently according to the executive's particular role.
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
DIRECTORS' REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

Executive Induction

All senior executives are taken through a tailored induction program upon joining the Bank, which includes meetings with key personnel
including their direct reports and peers and sometimes members of the Board, In addition, they are introduced 1o key externat stakeholders
with whom they will need to engage.

Visits to various sites from which the Bank operates are undertaken and a range of compulsory training courses is established, again
based upon the executive's role. This training is provided ondine and gives comprehensive coverage of key management issues such as
Occupational Health and Safety, risk management and business continuity, financial regulation and corporate governance. The course
content is updated frequently, pass marks are set and enforced and timely compliance with the compulsory training program is stringently
monitored and reported on.

Minimum Mandatory Shareholdings

In order to participate in the Long Term Incentive Plan, which is only available to the Managing Director and Group Executives, participants
must hold a minimum of 5,000 vested Options and Awards or 5,000 Shares.

In addition as part of the Board's objective to encourage iong term shareholdings of executives, they require each Group Executive to hold
at least two times their Total Employment Cost {TEC) in St.George Shares within five (5) years of their date of appointment to the Group
Executive and each participant in the Medium term Incentive Plan to hold at least 0.75 times their TEC in St George Shares within five (5}
years of their date of their first allocation under the Plan. These holdings are to be based on the market value of the shares. TEC
comprises base salary plus company superannuation,

Upon exercising any Options or Awards, participants are not able to sell, transfer or ctherwise dispose of the Shares while employed by the
Bank unless this Minimum Holding Requirement is met. During the year the Board reviewed executives share hoidings against the holding
requirements and concluded the Managing Director and all Group Executives appointed before 2003 are currently meeting the minimum
shareholding requirements.

Trading Policy

The contention surrounding Margin Lending, which arose during the year, encouraged the Committee to review the Bank's Trading Policy
which applies to all staff and Directors. This Policy was significantly amended to ensure we maintain the highest ethical standards in
relation to staff and Directors trading in Bank shares and the current version of the Policy is located on the Bank's website under the
Corporate Govemnance section. As pani of the policy, no Director or employes may hedge their unvested long term/medium term incentive
holdings in the Bank’s securilies bul they may do so if consent is obtained for their vested holdings. In addition, Directors and senior
executives must obtain consent before entering into a margin loan that is secured by shares in the Bank.

Executive Remuneration Strategy

The Commitiee recognises that the Group operates in a competitive enviranment where the key to achieving sustained improvements in
the Group's performance is through its people.

The key principles of the Group's Executive Remuneration Strategy are fo:
+  Align with the interests of and create vatue for shareholders;
+ Reinforce executive focus and outcomes that further the overall Group strategy,

+  Ensure remuneration appropriately reflects both year on year improvement in the Group's performance as well as the Group's
comparative success against companies with which it competes for capital, customers and staff;

+  Provide a transparent performance and reward mechanism that is well understood by all executives;

+  Ensure that the performance measures are robust and provide a good line of sight between executive action, performance outcome
and reward;

+  Differentiate reward so that high leve! performers receive significantly higher remuneration than others;

+  Mix short, medium and long term performance requirements and reward to reflect the scope of each executive postion to impact
short, medium and long term results; and

»  Offer competitive performance based reward ievels 10 atiract, motivate and relain key executives.
Executive Remuneration Structure

S1.George operates a Total Reward Opportunity (TRO) structure. The TRO consists of two components:
+  TEC comprising base {fixed) remuneration plus company supefrannuation; and

e  Alrisk remuneration {including short, medium and leng term incentives).

The Commitiee réviews and recommends to the Board the TRO for the Managing Director and Group Executives annually. The Group
Executives review and in turn recommend to the Managing Director the TRO for other senior executives annually.

The TRO for the Managing Director and each Group Executive is sel having regard to independent advice from external consultants,

based on competitive market practice for that position. When reviewing the TRO, each component is reviewed with a view to ensuring that
the right balance is achieved between fixed and at risk remuneration.
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TRO is targeted al the 75" percentile of comparable positions, and this maximum amount will only be achieved if the individua! executive's
and the Group's performance targets are met.

TEC

TEC provides fixed remuneration on a total cost-to-company basis, which includes employer superannuation cantributions and any fringe
benefits tax charges relating to employee benefits. The amount of TEC Is established with reference to independent market research,
considering the scope and nature of the role and the executive’s individual performance and experience.

There are no guaranteed increases o TEC in any of the service agreements of the Managing Director, Group Executives or other senior
executives.

TEC is generally reviewed annually and applies for the period 1 October to 30 September each year except for those executives who
joined the Bank part way through the year,

Group Executives - At Risk Remuneration

The at risk remuneration may be represented diagrammatically as follows:
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At risk remuneration comprises Short and Long Term incentives, which are detailed below.
Short Term Ingentive (“STIY

An STl is a performance based payment for a performance measurement period of 12 months. It is subject to the achievement of KPls set
at the beginning of each financial year. Each year STI reward targets are set for the Managing Director and ali Group Executives based on
the nature of the role and external market relativity. Market benchmarking is undertaken by an external remuneration consuttant to assist
in the setting of tha STI reward target. Performance against key performance indicaters drives the quantum of any ST payment, which can
generally range from 0% to 120% of STI target, including a 20% discretionary amount. The Board's assessment of the discretionary
amgount is based on measures separate to the KPis contained in Balanced Scorecards.

KPIs are sal each year in the form of a Balanced Scorecard for the Managing Director and Group Executives that the Committee
recommends for approval by the Board. The Balanced Scorecard is divided into the categonies of. Financials; Customer; People; Risk &
Compliance; and Strategy. The conlent within each category of the scorecard refiects the key elements of the Group Strategic Plan
approved by the Board and other key areas of emphasis indicated by the Board. To ensure the Balanced Scorecard put in place at the
beginning of the financial year remains relevant to the prevailing challenges of the company during the year, areas ¢f emphasis may be
included or minimisedfexcluded as market and other conditions change at the discretion of the Board.

For the 2007/2008 year, increased emphasis and weighting was placed on the achievement of Group financial results measured by year

on year growih in Cash Eamings per Share (“EPS"). Cash profit is defined as profit after tax, preference dividends and minority interest
hefore goodwill, significant items and hedging and non-frading derivatives volatility. For the purposes of the Remuneration Report Cash

EPS is referred to as EPS. The Board considers that the use of EPS as a key short term performance indicator provides a true measure of

the underlying profitability of the company that directly reflects management effort and performance. Scorecards were also reviewed and
simplified with a view towards greater consistency; tighter focus on a smaller number of key performance indicators; and an increase in the
degree of discretion available to the Board for non-financial measures of performance given changing marke{ conditions. The non-financial
KPIs were chosen because they directly align the individua¥'s rewards to the key performance drivers of the Group.

At the end of the financial vear, the Commiltee assesses the actual performance of the Group, the Division and the individual against the
KPIs set at the beginning of the financial year. Based on the outcome, the Committee then recommends the percentage (generally
between 0% and 120%) of the STi target to be paid to the Managing Director and Group Executives for approval by the Board. This
method of assessment was chosen as it provides the Committee with an objective assessment of the executives' performance.
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Once the Board has approved the STl amount, the ST {inciuding the 20% discretionary amount) is delivered in two ways:
¢ Annuat (STIA) which can be paid (n cash or as a superannuation contribution, at the indbddual's election;
+ Defermed (STID) which is delivered in awards and subject lo a tenure hurdle.

The STID is satisfied through the granting of awards under the Executive Performance Share Plan. The Group Executive will be entitled to
receive dividend distribution payments following the Board's determination. The grant date for the STID is 1 Oclober each year, being the
commencement of the STID performance period, though the executive must remain an employee of the Bank for the duration of the three
year period in order for the beneficial interest in the shares to be transferred to the Group Executive. The STID will be forfeited if the
execulive leaves the Bank before the end of the three year vesting period and the dividend distribution payment will cease. In
circumstances where the Beard exercises its discretion to walve this condition, for example redundancy, retirement or death, the awards
will be transferred at the end of the relevant three year period or earlier at the Board's discretion.

Long Term Incentive (LTI

The quantum of LTI to be awarded to the Managing Director and each Group Executive is set relative to the nature of the role and extemnal
market competitiveness and is delivered under the Executive Performance Share Plan {Performance Plan) and Executive Option Plan
{Qptian Plan}. Both plans ware approved by Shareholders on 3 February 1988, LTt allocations are subject to tenure and performance
hurdles established by the Committee and approved by the Board from time to time and reward performance over a period of 2 {0 4 years.

An overview of the performance hurdles for each grant of awards and options impacting remuneration is outlined in the tables below.

For grants made after 1 October 2007, the Board approved changes to the performance hurdles relevant to the LTI Plan, These changes
were outlined in the 2007 Remuneration Report.

The existing performance conditions are based on the achisvement of EPS or Total Sharehoider Retumn (“TSR") outcomes over the
measurement period, and provide for substantial compound growth in St.George’s EPS as wel! as an appropriate market focussed TSR
hurdie. The Board considers these dual measures to be relevant measures of long term shareholder value creation. The Board believes
that EPS is a prime factor that investors take into account when assessing their investment decisions as il provides a true measure of the
underlying profitability of & company, reflecting more directly management effort and performance. Moreover compound annual growth in
EPS of 10% is a strefching target of refevance to shareholders. The underpinning of the EPS measure with a TSR based performance
condition continues to provide an incentive to executives if the absolute EPS based measure set at the time of grant loses relevance (for

example in adverse economic conditions) but only provides a meaningful incentive package for the motivation and retention of Group
Executives if shareholders have benefited.

Although the frequency of TSR retesting has been incrementally reduced over the last few years (TSR retesting can occur at six monthly
intervals, formerly monthly, then quarterly), the Board considers that re-testing is appropriate within the context of the chosen performance
hurdles because it provides for additional motivation and retention of Group Executives only if shareholders have benefited over the same
time period but is less dilutionary 1o shareholders than establishing alternative retention mechanisms during lemporary periods of
underperformance. In the case of options, the exercise price must be paid by the holder in order to exercise the option. The exercise price
represents the markel valua of the Bank's ordinary shares at the grant date. The market value is calculated using the Volume Weighted
Average Price (VWAP) traded during the five trading days prior to and including the grant date.

Board Discretion

In accordance with the rules of the Performance Plan and the Option Plan, the Board retains overall discretion to waive all or part of the
exercise conditions of awards and options. For example, the Board could exercise its discretion where certain events occur, such as
redundancy, retirement, death, where a bona fide takeover offer becomes unconditional or where it forms the view that the exercise
conditions do not properly reflect the financial performance of the Group over the performance period. During the year the Board has not
exercised any discretions to waive specific exercise conditions although as part of terms of the proposed Option Scheme of Arangement,
the Board has agreed that Awards and Options will be converted into Westpac Restricted Shares and that existing performance hurdles
will be replaced by tenure restrictions over the equivalent performance period. |If the proposed merger with Westpac is not implemented,
existing perfomance conditions outlined in the tables below will continue to run their coursa,
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LTl Plan awards and options granted from 1 October 2007

Instrument Performance Awards and Options
EPS compound growth > 10% 100% vests
TSR > 75 percent of the Financial Services "
Comparator Group (FSCG) 100% vests
Performance
measurement TSR = 50 percent of FSCG 50% only vests
Additional 2% vest for each full 1% increase above the 50"
TSR » 50 percent but < 75 percent of FSCG percentile {on a straight line basis) up to 100% at the 75"
percentile.
Pedormance EPS — at the end of the performance period then annually until the fifth anniversary of the grant date.
testing TSR — at the end of the performance period then six monthly until the fifth anniversary of the grant date.
Lapse of Securities will lapse if a Group Executive leaves the Group due to resignation or dismissal before the vesting date.
seguriti s In circumstances of redundancy, retirement or death, the Group Executive or their estate may be entitled to
exercise some or all of the securities, subject to the satisfaction of relevant perfformance conditions.
Expiry date of
securies 6 years from grant date.
Comparator CBA, Westpac, NAB, ANZ, QBE, Macquarie Bank, AMP, Suncorp-Metway, AXA Asia Pacific Holdings, IAG,
group Bendigo and Adelaide Bank, Perpetual, Bank of Queensiand. Weighted by market capitalisation.

LTI Plan options and awards granted between 1 October 2008 and 30 September 2007.

instrument Performance Awards and Options
EPS compound growth > 10% 100% vests
TSR 2 75" percentile of S&P ASX 50 index 100% vests
Performance
measurement
TSR > S&P ASX 50 index but < 75" percentile of
S&P ASX 50 index 50% only vests
Parformance EPS - at the end of the performance period then annually until the fitth anniversary of the grant date.
testing TSR — at the end of the performance period then quarterly until the fith anniversary of the grant date.
La f Securities will lapse if a Group Execulive leaves the Group due to resignation or dismissal before the vesting date.
segusﬁties o'l 1n circumstances of redundancy, retirement or death, the Group Executive or their estate may be entilled to
exercise some or all of the securities, subject to the satisfaction of relevant performance conditions.
Expiry date of
securlies 6 years from grant date.
Comparator .
group ASX top 50 companies.
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LTI Plan options and awards granted between 1 October 2004 and 30 September 2006

Instrument Performance Awards and Gptions
EPS compound growth > 10% 100% vests
TSR = 75" percentile of S&P ASX 50 index 100% vests
Performance
measurement
TSR > S&P ASX 50 index but < 75™ percentile of
S&P ASX 50 index 50% only vests
Performance EPS - at the end of the performance period then annually until the fith anniversary of the grant date.
testing TSR ~ at the end of the performance period then monthly until the fith anniversary of the grant date.
Lapse of Securities will lapse if a Group Executive feaves the Group due to resignation or dismissal before the vesting date. In
securities circumstances of redundancy, retirement or death, the Group Executive or their estate may be entitled to exercise
some of all of the securities, subject to the satisfaction of relevant performance conditions.
E;g:r!i’ti egate of | & years from grant date.
gc;r:garator ASX top 50 companies.

LTI Plan options and awards granted from 1 October 2003 to 30 September 2004

Instrurnent Performance Awards and Options
1. EPS compound growth > 10%, or 50% vests
Performance EPS actual growth > 10% in year prior to
measurement exercise date only 50% vests
2, TSR > S&P ASX S50index Remaining 50% only vests
Performance EPS - at the end of the performance period then annually until the fifth anniversary of the grant date.
testing TSR - at the end of the performance period then monthly until the fifth annlversary of the grant date.
Lapse of Securities will lapse if a Group Executive ieaves the Group due to resignation or dismissal before the vesting date. In
securities circumstances of redundancy, retirement or death, the Group Executive or thelr estate may be entitled to exercise
some or ali of the securities, subject to the satisfaction of relevant performance conditions.
sE:cp:lrr!i’ti egale of 6 years from grant date.
Comparator
group ASX top 50 companles.

Employee Reward Share Plan

The Group Executives also participate in the annual Employee Reward Share Plan along with all eligible employees of the Group. This
plan grants $1,000 worth of fully vested shares in the Bank to all eligible employees If certain hurdles are met.

The performance hurdles for the 2007 year subject to Board discretion were:

1) Cash EPS (which is defined as profit after tax, preference dividends and minority interest before goodwill, significant items, hedging
and non-trading derivatives) equals or exceeds the EPS of the previous year by 10% or more, then 60% of the shares will be granted,;

and

2) Obtaining an overall Group Customer Satisfaction rating of at least 74%, then 40% of the shares will be granted.

These measures were chosen because the Board considers that the use of EPS as a key shorl term performance indicator provides a true
measure of the underlying profitability of the company that direclly reflects staff effort and performance. Focus by all employees of the
Group on the customer is one of the maln tenets of our strategy and is an important measure of our Success as a company.

On 16 November 2007, a total of 191,802 shares were issued 1o 7,377 employees for the 2007 year. The allocation price was $37.17 and
each eliglble employee received 26 shares (total value $966.42).

Employees who have received each allocation from 1998 to 2007 have received a total of 545 Reward Shares, valued at $15,587 (at a

market value of $28.60 at 30 September 2008). Employees who have retained these shares received total dividend payments in the year
ended 30 September 2008 of $948.30 (based on the share dividends pald from 1 QOctober 2007 to 30 September 2008 of $1.74).
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On 27 October 2008 the Board approved that grants of $1,000 worth of $t.George shares would be made to eligible employees for
performance during the 2008 year. The grants will be made in November 2008.

Other Senlor Executives ~ At Risk Remuneration

Other senior executives’ remuneration comprises base and at risk remuneration. At risk remuneration includes both Short and Medium
Term Incentives (MT!). The MTI is delivered under the Performance Plan.

Each year, parlicipants have KPis established in the form of a Balanced Scorecard. The KPIs Include measures relating to the Group and
the individual, and include financial resuits, customer outcomes, people, strategy and risk and compliance.

Individual performance outcomes against Balanced Scorecard KPIs are assessed at the end of the financial year and payment
recommendations submitted to the Managing Director for approval. Once the Managing Director has approved individual ST| outcomes,
the STIA component is paid to the participant as cash or salary sacrficed into superannuation of as shares at the individual's election. The
STID will alse be paid in cash but only if the executive remains employed one year from the end of the performance period. On approval of
the Managing Director, some senior execulives are given the choice of taking STID in equity, and if so it is subject to a further one year
tenure restriction

The MTI component of the incentive plan is subject to the same performance measures outlined in the LTI, being EPS or TSR. The
exercise conditions provide for substantial growth in St.George’s EPS as well as market based comparative TSR performance.

The grant date for purposes of establishing the five day Volume Weighted Average Price (VWAP) of St.George shares awarded under the
MTlis 1 October each year, belng the commencement of the performance period that the MTt is being assessed against.

For grants made from 1 October 2007, the Board approved changes to the MTI Plan performance hurdles, testing and vesting schedule,

which mirror those for the LTI Plan as outlined above. The at risk remuneration of senior executives may be represanted diagrammatically
as follows:
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Ralatlonship of Incentives to the Group's Financial Performance

Parformance conditions for payment of any STIA or STID comprise a mix of filnancial and non-financial measures. The financial measures
include targets for operating profit after tax, revenue growth, cost control, financial ratios, and are tailored to the executive's responsibilities
and accountabilities,

MTI and LTI performance conditions comprise the Group's financial measures including EPS or TSR hurdles. The Board considers that the
above incentives are linked 10 and foster the achievement of the desired finangial outcomes for the Group. The success of these incentive
arrangements is demonstrated by the Group's strong growth in operating profit after tax in recent years and improvements in key financial
ratios, resulting in comparable shareholder returns relative to our chosen peer group.

‘ 22




ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
DIRECTORS' REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

The relationship between financial performance and benefits for shareholder wealth are demonstrated in the following results:

5t.George Share Performance 2004 - 2008
200 40

St.George EPS Performance 2004 - 2008
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iy Before goodwill impatrment and significant items. The 30 Seplember 2006, 2007 and 2008 years also exclude hedging and non-
trading derivatives volatility.

ii) EPS and EPS growth are not measured on a like for like basis as 30 September 2005 EPS excludes the impact of AASB 13¢:
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement financial instruments standard adopted from 1 October 2005.

i) EPS and EPS growth are not measured on a like for like basis compared to 30 September 2004, which has been prepared on a
previous GAAP basis,

iv} The 2008 dividend amount displayed does not include the Special Dividend announced in October 2008.

The following graph also demonstrates the linkage between financial performance and benefits for shareholder wealth with the rewards
made 1o executives.

The following graph shows the average of STI payments as a percentage of individual ST target for Group Executives and the Managing
Director and how the average related to the Group's growth in Cash EPS from 2004 to 2008,

St.George STI payments and EPS growth 2004 - 2008
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i)  Before goodwill impairment and significant items. The 30 September 2006, 2007 and 2008 years also exclude hedging and non-
trading derivatives volatility.

i) EPS and EPS growth are not measured on a like for like basis as 30 September 2005 EPS excludes the impact of AASB 138
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement financial instruments standard adopted from 1 October 2005.

iy EPS and EPS growth are not measured on a lixe for like basis compared 1o 30 September 2004, which has been prepared on a
previous GAAP basis..

Grants of Awards and Cptions made under the Bank’s Long Term and Medium Term incentive plans do not vest unless annual compound
increases of 10% growth in Cash EPS are achieved over the relevant measurement periods. The 10% compound growth in EPS has been
met for all of the Awards and Options at their first test date. The other performance hurdle applying to Bank’s Long Term and Medium
Term Incentive plans is TSR. The Bank’s TSR performance over the relevant measurement periods would also have triggered the vesting

of Awards ang Options on either a full or partial basis depending upon the year of the grant. This is illustrated by the following chart that
shows the Bank's TSR relative to the ASX 50 index (index set at 30 September 2008).
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Managing Director's Employment Arrangements

Managing Director Paul Fegan

Mr Paul Fegan was appoeinted as CEO on 13 November 2007 after acting in that role from the date of resignation of Mrs Kelly. He was
appointed Managing Director on 7 February 2008. Mr Fegan's Service Agreement is not fixed term and provides for the following:

1)

2)
3

where the Bank terminates the service agreement other than for misconduct, then a payment of 12 months base annual remuneration
is payable by the Bank as well as statutory entitlements.,

where Mr Fegan terminates the agreement he must provide six months notice.
where there is a material diminution in Mr Fegan's role and responsibilities he may terminate the Service Agreement within 6 months

of the material diminution and he will be entitled to the payment of 12 months base annual remuneration and a pro-rata payment of
the assessed Short Term Incentive,

The Executive Remuneration Structure applying to Group Executives also applies to the Managing Director's reward. The principal
features of the remuneration arrangements for the Bank's Managing Director for the year ended 30 September 2008 are as follows. In
setling the remuneration arrangements the Board took the advice of an extema! remuneration consultant on the mix and quantum of
reward compared to the reward arrangements of similar roles.

1)

2)

3

TEC of $1,700,000 (inclusive of superannuation) and a Short Term Incentive (STI) opportunity of up to $1,800,000 that was subject to
the achievement of KPis (as determined by the Board of Directors). These amounts were prorated from Mr. Fegan's commencement
date for the year ended 30 September 2008;

of the potential STI, any amount to be awarded above $1,500,000 {prorated as described above) is to be dellvered in Awards with a
tenure hurdle such that they will only vest if Mr. Fegan remains employed by the Bank on 30 September 2010. Accordingly an amount
of $300,000, prorated from 13 November, was divided by a fair value of $37.18, being the 5 day volume weighted average price up to
and including the date of appointment of Mr Fegan as CEO, and granted as 7,121 Awards; and

$1,300,000 provided as a mix of options and Awards under the Long Term Incentive Plan. This amount was prorated from 13
November 2007, Half of the prorated amount was provided as Awards calculated at a fair value of $37.18 and delivered as three
separate tranches. The remaining half was provided as oplions also in three tranches. Each tranche of oplions was valued by an
external consultant using the Binomia! valuation method. Tranche 1 options were valued at $3.51 each, tranche 2 at $4.28 and
tranche 3 at $4.81. All options have an exercisa price of $37.18. Both Awards and options are subject to the same hurdles as those
that apply to all other participants of the LTI Plan being Total Shareholder Retum and Eamings Per Share (refer below to the section
dealing with LTI for further details).

Prior to his appointment to the role of CEQ Pau! Fegan's remuneration comprised TEC of $1,180,000, ST opportunity of $1,752,000
{comprising $1,320,000 cash and $432,000 of Awards) and LTI opportunity of $1,000,000. These amounts were applied on a pro-rated
basis for the period 1 October 2007 to 13 November 2007 and Paul Fegan was granted 1,330 Awards on 1 October 2007 at a fair value of
$34.689, being the 5 day volume weighted average price up to and including 1 October 2007.
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In the year ended 30 September 2008, the Board determined that Paul Fegan's STI payment would be 110% which is 110% of the
combined pro-rated payment targets specified in his Service Agreement and applying fo him prior to his appointment 1o the fole of
Managing Director and CEQ. The payment was calculated based on performance against key performance indicators and the Board's
exercise of discretion. $1,465,929 was delivered as cash and Pau! Fegan retained 4,891 of the Awards granted to him comprising 50% of
the Awards granted to him in November 2007 as part of his Service Agreement and ali of the Awards granted to him in October 2007 prior
to his appointment to the roles ¢f Managing Director and CEQ. The remaining 3,560 Awards will be forfeited on 10 November 2008.

Group Executives’ Employment Arrangements

The name, position held, employment commencement date and resignation date (where applicable) of the Bank's Managing Director and
Group Executives are as follows:

Name Position Employment Commencement Date

The Managing Director and Current Group Executive Members who are direct reports to the Managing Director

P Fegan Chief Executive Officer 22 July 2002
G Bartlett Group Executive - Institutional and Business Banking 8 March 1982
M Cameron Chief Financial Officer 16 Juty 2007
R Chapman Managing Director BankSA 1 July 2002
G Lioyd Group Executive Weatth & CEO Asgard 2 February 2004
L Matheson Group Executiva — Retail Bank 2 June 2008
P Newham Group Executive — Technology and Operations 24 July 2006
B Wright Group Executive — Human Resources 3 July 2000
Former Group Executive Members and/or former direct reports to the Managing Director

P Clare g::igfgjg‘fg:;em’e’?‘;gg;) Technology and Operations 22 February 2002

Service Agreements — Group Executives
The Bank has entered into service agreements with all Group Executives that provide for the payment of benefits where the service
agreement is terminated by the Bank or the Group Executive. The service agreements are not fixed terrn and generally provide for the
following:
1. Where the Bank terminates the service agreement other than for misconduct, then a payment of between 12 months and 15
months base remuneration 1s payabie by the Bank depending upon tha conditions of each individual service agreement as well
as statutory entitlements,;

2. Where the Group Executive terminates the agreement they must provide between one and three month’s notice (depending
upon the conditions of each individual service agreement);

3. Brett Wright has a provision for an additiona! payment on redundancy calcutated as detailed below:
a. 7 weeks base remuneration in respect of the first year of the Group Executive's service or part thereof; and
b. 4 weeks base remuneration for each additional year's service between 2-10 years; and
c. 3 weeks base remuneration for each additional year's service between 11-15 years; and
d. 2 weeks base remuneration for each additional year's service between 18-25 years; and
e. an additional 1 week's base remuneration for each year of service where the executive is aged 45 years or more;

provided any such payment does not exceed the maximum of 104 weeks of base remuneration.
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4, Greg Bartlett has a provision for an additional payment on redundancy calculated as detailed below:
a. 7 weeks base remuneration in respect of the first year of the Group Executive's service or part thereof; and
b. 3 weeks base remuneration for each additional year's service or part thereof;
provided any such payment does not exceed the maximum of 104 weeks of base remuneration.
5.  The Board has also now introduced a new policy to cap entitements (including redundancy) at 12 months base remuneration

under the general termination clause for Service Agreements. This cap has been put in place for new members of the Bank's
Group Executive appointed after Jung 2005.

8. Where the Group Executive is terminated immediatety and without notice for misconduct, statutory entitiements only are payable.

Remuneration of Group Executives

Details of the nature and amount of each major element of remuneration for St. George's Managing Director and Group Executives for the
period ended 30 September 2008 are detailed in the following table:

Post
Long Term  Employment
Short Term Benefits Benefits Benefits Share Based Paymants
Base ~Short Term _ Non Monetary Tong  Superannualion

Remuneration incentive Bensfits Sarvice Contributions Options Shares GRAND
$000 (A} (B} {C) Total Leave {D) (E) {H) n Total TOTAL
PA Fegan (Appolntad Chlef Executive Officer on 13 Novambar 2007)
{2008 (3] (KY . R AR X ¥ - A PR, P - 900 A OO T < T YRR [+ A e A7 339____335___99_4____,2@
2007 791 1,000 10 1,801 26 13 14 572 2,412
G Bartlett (E) (J) (K)
2008 747 [ 22 3T 59. B3,___ 214 398 '81 _2,131]
2007 706 748 21 1,475 26 13 152 316 1,882
M Camaron (F) (J) (K}
2008 - - 1,220 A T B2h o AN 086 T T o374 400 541 26331
2007 259 255 2 516 4 3 7 20 27 550
R Chapman (J) (K]
Eqps B RN | RN |- R n A SR 1B 126, 274 403 1471}
2007 565 538 13 88 216 304 1,442
G Lloyd (.I} (K}

i

i f‘&w—

B erght (K

. LAY T PG S Ay - s . ba. 7% 337 _ 1.148]
2007 601 13 13 120 121 250 1,331
Farmer Executivas

P Clare (Roslgned 31 December zoon

{2008 A e T R T T T T o T 4 - {181). {228} (3vd) (1501
2007 897 553 10 1,260 % 13 182 175 337 1,633

A) Base remuneration comprises tash salary, avallable salary package options grossed-up by related fringe benefits tax where
applicable and annual leave expense.

B} The Shorl Term Cash Incentive (STIA) relates to the Group Executives' performance in the nominated financial year.

C) Includes car parking expenses inclusive of Fringe Benefits Tax. includes a benefit relating to an interest free loan provided to Mr G
Bartlett. Excludes insurance premiums paid in respect of officers’ liability insurance contracts. The premium paid has not been

allocated to individual officers covered by the insurance policy as, based on all available information, the Directors consider that no
reasonable basis for such allocation exists.

D) Represents the long service leave expense recognised during the financial year.

E) Represents applicable Superannuation Guarantee Charge. For Group Executives with defined benefit fund entittements, it includes
the allocation of the expense for the year determined in accordance with AASB 119; Employee Benefits. Mr Bartlett is a member of
the defined benefit section of the Bank's defined contribution plan. Under the terms of the Plan, he is required to contribute 17.25% of
his Total Employment Cost to the Plan, with St.George to fund the remainder of his benefil entittement if required. In 2007 and 2008,
Mr Bartlett fully funded his entitiernent. In 2008, his Defined Benefit Guarantee exceeded his accumulation entittement. The actuarial

expense estimate provided by the Fund’s Actuary for Mr Bartlett at 30 September 2008 in accordance with AASB 119: Employee
Benefils and AASE 124: Related Party Disclosures was $83,000.
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F) Upon commencement with the Group, Mr Cameron became entilled to payments as compensation for benefits foregone with a former

employer. These comprised cash payments of $823,650 payable In 2007 and $441,150 payable in 2008, an entilement to 113,849
awards, which will vest over the period to 1 November 2009 subject to tenure. As the cash payments and the fair value of the awards
represent compensation for benefits foregone from his previous employer they are not included in the remuneration tabie above. If the
payment and the fair value of the awards were included in the remuneration table above, they would increase Mr Cameron's 2007
year base remuneration to $1,082,650, and his share based payments remuneration to $1,128,000, resulting in an increase in his
total remuneration to $2,474,650. The comesponding values for 2008 would be an increase to Mr Cameron's 2008 base
remuneration to $1,661,150 and an increase to his share based payments remuneration to $2,821,806 resulting in an increase in his
total remuneration to $5,355,014. As Mr Cameron's unfatching will fully vest upon the implementation date of the proposed merger
with Westpac, the 2008 increase to the share based payment amount includes the full fair value expense of the awards (including fair
value amounts that would otherwise be attributable to future financial years).
Upon commencement with the Group, Mr Matheson became entitled to payments as compensation for benefits foregone with a former
employer. These comprise four cash payments payable progressively, subject to tenure of: $600,000 payable in 2008, $300,000
payable in 2009, $300,000 payable in 2010 and $600,000 payable in 2011. If the 2008 payment was included in the remuneration
fable above Mr Matheson’s base remuneration for 2008 would increase to $926,358 resulting in an increase to his total remuneration
10 $1,143,532.

G) Prior to his appointment on 12 May 2008 Mr Newham was General Manager Group Technology & Operations. Mr Newham's
remuneration for the full 2008 financial year has been disclosed.

H} The fair value of options is calculated at the grant date using the Binomial method. The number of optlons used to determine the
share based remuneration value is adjusted for estimated forfelture and then further adjusted for actual forfelture over the vesting
period except for TSR hurdles, which are factored into the valuation. The resullant expense is allocated evenly to each reporting
period over the period from the grant date to the prescribed exercise date. The following factors were used in determining the fair
value of options on the grant date:

Price of
Date first Fair value Exercise shares on Estimated Risk-free Dividend Expected life|
Grant Date exercisable peroption price grant dats volatility interest rate yleld {yoars)
$ $ $ % % %

01-Oct-04  30-Sep-08 2.21 21.70 22.01 15.00 5.28 5.70 4.50
01-Mar-05 30-Sep-08 2.61 24.56 24,67 15.00 5.5 5.30 4.00
01-0¢t-05 30-Sep-08 2.63 28.01 27.89 14.50 5.3 5.03 3.50
01-0ct-05 30-Sep-09 2.87 28.01 27.89 14,50 5.32 5.03 4.50
01-Qct-08 30-Sep-0R 2.88 29.99 30.24 1470 5.87 508 2.50
01-Oct-06 30-Sep-09 3.19 2089 30.24 14.70 5.78 5.08 3.50
01-Oct-06 30-Sep-10 3.45 29.99 30.24 14.70 572 5.08 4.50
16-Jun-07 30-Sep-08 290 35.09 34.80 14.30 6.38 4.87 2.50
16-Jun-07 30-Sep-09 3.55 35.09 34.80 14.30 6.36 4.87 3.50
16-Jun-07 30-Sep-10 4.00 35.09 34.80 14.30 6.34 487 4.50
01-Oct-07 30-Sep-09 3.84 34.99 35.40 15.70 6.46 5.06 2.50
01-Oct-07 30-Sep-10 4.34 34.99 35.40 15.70 6.47 5.06 3.50
01-Oct-07 30-Sap-11 4.75 34,99 35.40 15.70 G.45 5.06 4.50
13-Nov-Q7 30-Sep-09 4.05 3718 37.42 16.20 8.71 4.82 2,38
13-Mov-07 30-Sep-10 4.72 EY AL 37.42 16.20 8.62 482 3.38
13-Nov-07 30-Sep-11 5.05 37.18 37.42 16.20 6.49 4.82 4.39
02-Jun-08 30-Sep-09 4.07 32.75 31.95 23.70 6.83 5.51 1.83
02-Jun-08 30-Sep-10 4.83 32.75 31.95 23.70 6.72 5.52 2.83
02-Jun-08 30-Sep-11 5.28 32.75 31.95 23.70 6.63 5.52 3.83

1)  Awards with non market related performance conditions have thelr fair value determined using the share price on the grant date.
Awards with market related performance condition components have their fair value determined on the basis that they require either
an EPS or TSR performance hurdle to be satisfied. The falr valug is determined using the share price at the grant date. The fair value
is discounted for the present value of dividends not received during the vesting period.

The number of shares used to determine share based remuneration is adjusted for estimated forfeiture at the grant date and then
further adjusted over the vesting period for actual forfeiture. The resuliant expense is allocated evenly to each reporting period over
the pericd from the grant date to the prescribed exercise date. includes the fair vatue of shares allotted under the Empicyee Reward
Share Plan {Reward Plan) during the year. The Reward Plan provides eligible employees with up to $1,000 of ordinary shares per
* annum at no cost to the employee,
J)  Five highest paid officers of the Bank.
K} On 9 September 2008, the listed executives each entered into a Deed of Cancellation (“the Deeds™) dealing with the treatment of their

Options and Awards upon the implementation of the proposed merger with Westpac Banking Comporation. Notwithstanding that the
Deeds are subject to the proposed merger with Westpac being implemented, the execution of the Deeds, tha terms of which are
specified in the Scheme Booklet, triggered a modification to the original terms of the Qptions and Awards under AASB 2: Share
Based Paymenis. As a consequence the share based payment amount includes the fair value expense of the modification
attributable to the current financial year.

In the year ended 30 September 2008, Group Executives became entitled to receive between 50% and 100% of their STIA opportunity and
STID opportunity for that year,
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Detalls of Remuneration

§hort Term Incentives Annual (STIA)

Details of the vesting profile of the STIA awarded to each Group Executive on 27 October 2008 in respect of their performance in the 2008
year are as follows:

Group Executive Intluded In remunerstion $'000 % Vested In year % Forfelted In year
(A)
G Bartlett 608 100% -
M Cameron 825 100% -
R Chapman 450 100% -
G Lloyd 430 100% -
L Matheson 175 100% .
P Newham 258 100% -
B Wright 188 100% -

A) Amounts inciuded in remuneration for the financial year represent the amount that vested during the financial year based on the

achievement of performance criteria established at the beginning of the financial year. No amounts vest in future financia! years in
respect of the 2008 STIA.

Short Tem Incentives Deferred {(STIDY

Details of the vesting profile of the STID determined for each Group Executive on 27 COctober 2008 and in respect of their performance in
the 2008 year are as follows:

Included in % Vested % Forfeited
Group Executive Grant Date Vesting Date remuneration in year In Year
$ (A} (B}
P Fegan 1-0¢ct-05 01-Oct-08 109,533 -
1-0O¢t-06 01-0c¢t-09 110,920 - -
1-Oct-06 01-0ct-09 40,340 - -
1-Oct-07 01-Qct-10 12,709 - -
13-Nov-07 01-0O¢t-10 71,946 - 50%
G Bartlett 1-Oct-05 01-0ct-08 74,680 - -
1-Oct-06 0t-0ct-09 83,180 - -
1-0ct-06 01-Cct-09 7.560 - -
1-Cct-07 04-0Oct-10 73,620 - 18%
M Cameron 16-Jul-07 01-Oct-09 30,071 - -
1-0¢ct-07 01-Oct-10 108,182 - 32%
R Chapman 1-Oct-05 01-Oct-08 37,345 - -
. 1-0¢t-06 01-0ct-09 44,372 - -
1-Oct-06 01-0ct-09 12,096 - -
1-Oct-07 01-Oct-10 42,079 - 9%
G Lloyd 1-Cct-07 01-0ct-10 45,078 - 27%
L-Matheson 2-Jun-D8 01-0ct-10 10,228 - 27%

P Newham No Grants
B Wright 1-0¢t-05 01-Oct-08 33,198 - -
1-0ct-08 01-0c¢t-08 36,973 - -
1-0ct-06 01-0ct-09 6,733 - -
1-0ct-07 01-0ct-10 30,055 - 55%

Former

P Clare 1-0ct-05 01-0ct-08 {112,024) - 100%
1-Cct-08 01-0c¢t-09 (55,460) - 100%

A) The STID plan was introduced with effect from 1 QOctober 2005. An STID opportunity is established at the beginning of the financial
year for each Group Executive. Actual entiternent is determined at the end of the financial year subject to satisfying predetermined
KPis. The STID is satisfied through the granting of an award under the Performance Plan. The awards are restricted from exercise
for a period of three years from the grant date. The Group Executive must be an employee of the Bank at the end of this three year
period in order for the beneficial interest to be transferred to the Group Executive.

B) The STID grants made to Mr Clare were forfelted under the Plan’s rules dus to his resignation from the Bank. For other participants

awards are due to be forfeited based on the Board's assessment against performance criteria established at the beginning of the
financial year,
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St

Details of the vesting profile of optien and awards granted as remuneration o each Group Executive that affect remuneration in the 30
September 2008 year or future financial years are as follows:

OPTIONS

Group Executive Number granted Date % Vested in ysar % Forfelted in year Vesting Date
P Fegan 22,000 1 October 2004 100 - 30 September 2008
14,584 1 October 2005 100 - 30 September 2008
13,258 1 October 2005 - - 30 September 2009
14,286 1 October 2006 100 - 30 September 2008
12,196 1 October 2006 - - 30 September 2009
11,042 1 October 2006 - - 30 September 2010
3,550 1 Qctobar 2007 - - 30 September 2009
2,945 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2010
2,617 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2011
54,477 13 November 2007 - - 30 Septemnber 2009
44676 13 November 2007 - - 30 September 2010
39,753 13 November 2007 - - 30 Septamber 2011
G Bartlett 18.000 1 October 2004 100 - 30 September 2008
12,500 1 October 2005 100 - 30 September 2008
11,364 1 QOctober 2005 - - 30 September 2009
28,572 1 October 2006 100 - 30 September 2008
24,301 1 October 2006 - - 30 Septembar 2009
22,083 1 October 2006 - - 30 September 2010
9,064 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2009
7.519 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2010
6,682 1 October 2007 - 30 Saptember 2011
M Cameron 8.241 16 July 2007 100 - 30 September 2008
6,298 16 July 2007 - - 30 September 2009
5410 16 July 2007 - - 30 September 2010
30,212 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2009
25,063 1 October 2007 - 30 September 2010
22,272 1 QOctober 2007 - - 30 September 2011
R Chapman 16,668 1 Cctober 2004 100 - 30 September 2008
10,418 1 Cclober 2005 100 - 30 September 2008
9,470 1 October 2005 - - 30 September 2009
10,205 1 October 2006 100 - 30 September 2008
8,711 1 October 2006 - - 30 September 2009
7.887 1 Octobaer 2006 - - 30 September 2010
12,589 1 Octobar 2007 - 30 September 2009
10,443 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2010
9,280 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2011
G Lloyd 6,043 1 October 2007 B - 30 Septamber 2009
5013 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2010
4,455 1 Octobar 2007 - - 30 September 2011
L Matheson 7.272 2 June 2008 - - 30 September 2009
5,886 2 June 2008 - - 30 September 2010
5,261 2 June 2008 - - 30 September 2011
B Wright 23,334 1 October 2004 100 - 30 September 2008
17,014 1 October 2005 100 - 30 September 2008
15,468 1 October 2005 - - 30 September 2009
16,667 1 October 2006 100 - 30 Septamber 2008
14,228 1 Qctober 2006 - - 30 September 2000
12,882 1 October 2006 - - 30 September 2010
5,288 1 October 2007 - - 30 Septernber 2009
4,386 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2010
3,698 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2011
Former 30,334 1 October 2004 - 100 30 September 2008
P Clare 18,446 1 October 2005 - 100 30 September 2008
17,678 1 October 2005 - 100 30 September 2009
21,905 1 October 2006 - 400 30 September 2008
18,700 1 October 2006 - 100 30 September 2009
16,930 1 October 2006 - 100 30 September 2010

. pooTge

29




ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

DIRECTORS' REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3) SEPTEMBER 2008

G

roup Executive Number granted Date % Vested in year % Forfelted In year Vesting Date

P Fegan 5,914 1 October 2004 100 - 30 Saeptenber 2008
2916 1 October 2005 100 - 30 September 2008
2916 1 Qctober 2005 - - 30 Septarmber 2009
11,782 1 October 2005 - - 1 October 2008
2,724 1 Qctober 2006 100 - 30 Septamber 2008
2,724 1 October 2006 - - 30 September 2008
2,724 1 October 2006 - - 30 September 2010
11,004 1 October 2006 - - 1 October 2009
2,001 1 Oclober 2006 - - 1 October 2000
784 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2009
784 1 Qctober 2007 - - 30 September 2010
784 1 Qctober 2007 - - 30 September 2011
1,330 1 Cctoher 2007 - - 1 October 2010
5,143 13 November 2007 - - 30 September 2009
5,143 13 November 2007 - - 30 September 2010
5,143 13 Novembaer 2007 - - 30 Septamber 2011
7421 13 November 2007 - - 1 Cotober 2010
26 16 November 2007 100 - 18 November 2007
G Bartlett 4,840 1 October 2004 100 - 30 September 2008
2,500 1 October 2005 100 - 30 September 2008
2500 1 Cctober 2005 - - 30 Septembar 2009
8,033 1 Ogctober 2005 - - 1 October 2008
1,001 1 Qctober 2006 100 - 30 September 2008
1,001 1 October 2006 B - 30 September 2000
1,001 1 Octobar 2006 - - 30 Septamber 2010
8,628 1 October 2006 - - 1 October 2009
375 1 October 2006 - - 1 October 2008
2,002 1 October 2007 - - 30 Septamber 2009
2,002 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2010
2,002 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2011
7,703 1 October 2007 - - 1 October 2010
26 16 November 2007 100 - 16 November 2007
M Cameron 1,403 16 July 2007 100 - 30 September 2008
1,403 16 July 2007 - - 30 September 2009
1,403 16 July 2007 - - 30 September 2010
37,983 16 July 2007 100 - 1 November 2007
37,983 16 July 2007 - - 1 November 2008
37,083 16 July 2007 - - 1 November 2008
1,984 16 July 2007 - - 1 October 2009
6,669 1 Gctober 2007 - - 30 Septamber 2009
6,669 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2010
6,669 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2011
11,318 1 October 2007 100 - 1 October 2010
R'Chapman 1,820 1 October 2004 100 - 30 September 2008
2,084 1 October 2005 100 - 30 September 2008
2,084 1 October 2005 - - 30 Septamber 2009
4,017 1 October 2005 - - 1 October 2008
1,046 1 October 2006 100 - 30 September 2008
1,846 1 October 2006 - - 30 September 2009
1.946 1 Cctobar 2006 - - 30 September 2010
4,402 1 October 2006 - - 1 Qctober 2009
600 1 October 2006 - - 1 October 2009
1,194 1 October 2007 - . 30 September 2008
1,194 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2010
1,191 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2011
4,402 1 Qctober 2007 - - 1 Qctober 2010
26 16 November 2007 100 - 18 Novaember 2007
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AWARDS
Group Executive Number granted Date % Vested In year % Forfeited In year Vesting Date

G Lioyd 3,572 1 October 2005 100 - 30 September 2008
3,336 1 October 2006 100 - 30 September 2008

3,336 1 October 2006 - - 30 September 2009

1,334 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2009

1,334 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2010

1,334 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2011

4,716 1 October 2007 - - 1 October 2010

26 16 November 2007 100 - 16 November 2007

L Matheson 849 2 June 2008 - - 30 September 2009
849 2 June 2008 - - 30 September 2010

849 2 June 2008 - - 30 September 2011

2,798 2 June 2008 - - 1 October 2010

P Newham 1,406 17 May 2006 100 - 30 September 2008
2424 17 May 2006 100 - 17 May 2008

2,424 17 May 2008 - - 17 May 2009

1,334 1 October 2006 100 30 September 2008

1,334 1 October 2006 - - 30 Septernber 2009

1,195 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2009

1,195 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2010

26 16 November 2007 100 - 18 Novemnber 2007

B Wright 1,152 1 October 2004 100 - 30 September 2008
626 1 October 2005 100 - 30 September 2008

626 1 October 2005 - - 30 September 2009

3,571 1 October 2005 - - 1 October 2008

584 1 October 2006 100 - 30 September 2008

584 1 October 2006 - - 30 September 2008

584 1 October 2006 - - 30 September 2010

3,668 1 October 2006 - - 1 October 2009

334 1 October 2006 - - 1 October 2008

1,168 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2008

1,168 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2010

1,168 1 October 2007 - - 30 September 2011

3,144 1 October 2007 - - 1 October 2010

26 16 November 2007 100 - 16 November 2007

|Former 1,498 1 October 2004 - 100 30 September 2008
P Clare 716 1 October 2005 - 100 30 September 2008
716 1 October 2005 - 100 30 September 2009

6,025 1 October 2005 - 100 1 October 2008

767 1 October 2006 - 100 30 September 2008

767 1 October 2006 - 100 30 September 2008

767 1 October 2006 - 100 30 September 2010

5,502 1 October 2006 - 100 1 October 2009

1,584 1 October 2008 - 100 1 October 2009

26 16 November 2007 100 - 16 November 2007
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Pi rtion of remuneration at risk

Details of the proportion of remuneration at risk for each Group Executive are shown in the table below. This table shows the short term
incentive payment and equity compensation as a percentage of their total remuneration.

Proportion of remuneration Value of options as a proportion of

at risk (%) remuneration (%)

2008 2007 2008 2007
P Fegan 57.9 65.4 : 7.3 49
G Bartett 57.3 61.7 10.0 7.7
M Camercn 51.9 55.9 5.4 0.3
R Chapman 58.0 58.6 8.8 6.1
G Loyd 52.4 Nfa 1.4 N/a
L Matheson 37.9 N/a 2.0 Nfa
P Newham 3%.0 Nfa Q.0 Nfa
B Wright 45,7 52.8 14.1 9.7
Former
P Clare N/a 54.8 N/a 10.0

For further clarification, the following fable sets out the mix of fixed and target at risk entitltements of the Group Executive for the 2008 year.

44— Total Reward Opportunity———————»
Fixed {Cash) STIA (cash) STID (awards) LTI (awards and

, % % % options) %
P Fegan 34.89 31.83 6.37 26.92
G Bartlett 36.30 36.75 13.34 13.61
M Cameron 30.01 33.57 10.99 25.43
R Chapman 38.11 34.88 10.85 16.15
G Lioyd 34.33 42.99 10.75 11.94
L Matheson 37.88 31.82 11.36 18.94
P Newham 52.28 29.07 10.36 8.29
B Wright 4461 33.46 8.92 13.01
Former

P Clare 45.18 29.51 11.18 14.12
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Analysis of Movement in Options

The movement during the reporting period, by value, of options over ordinary shares in the Company held by each key management
person and each of the five named Company executives and relevant Group executives is detailed below:

Granted In year Value of options  Lapsed in year
exercised in year
$ $ $
A) 8) ©)
Managing Director
P Fegan 671,098 - -
Executives
G Bartlett 99,178 627,268 -
M Cameron 330,579 - -
R Chapman 137,745 864,023 -
G Lloyd 66,122 - -
L Matheson 85,804 - -
P Newham - - -
B Wright 57,857 - -
777,285 1,491,291 -
Former
P Clare - 2,501,490 920,745

A) The value of options granted in the year is the fair value of the options calculated at grant date using a binomial option-pricing model.
The total value of the options granted is included in the table above. This amount is allocaled to remuneration over the vesting period
(i.e. in years 1 October 2007 to 30 September 2011).

B) The value of options exercised during the year is calculated as the market price of shares of the Bank as at close of trading on the
date the oplions were exercised after deducting the price pald to exercise the option.

C} The value of the options that lapsed during the year represents the benefit forgone and is calculated al the date the option lapsed
using a binomial option-pricing model, assuming the performance criteria had been achieved.

Non-Executive Directors’ Remuneration Policy

The Bank's Constitution provides that the Directors shall be paid an aggregate remuneration as is determined by Shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting. The fees are determined having regard to advice from external consultants, on compelitive market practice, The
amouni so delermined is divided between the Directors at their discretion. The last determination made was at the Annual General Meeting
held in December 2007, where shareholders approved an aggregate amount to not exceed $3,000,000 per annum, such sum being
inclusive of all statutory superannuation guarantee contributions that the Bank makes on behalf of Direclors,

The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors is a total package, which comprises fees, statutory and salary sacrifice superannuation,
prescribed benefits and cost of shares acquired under the Non-Executive Directors’ Share Purchase Plan.

Until December 2003, the Bank's Constitution made provision for the maximum retirement allowance that the Board may approve for a
Director by reference to the maximum amount permitted to be paid under the Corporations Act 2001. However, ai the Annual General
Meeting held on 19 Decembar 2003, shareholders approved an amendment to the Constitution such that no reticement benefits will be
payable o any Non-Executive Directors appointed after 30 September 2003 and the entitiements of each Non-Executive Director in office
at 30 September 2003 will not increase from that amount accrued to the Non-Executive Director on 30 September 2003.

* 33



ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

Details of the nature and amount of each major element of remuneration for St. George's Directors are as follows:

Post Share-
Short Term Benafits (B) Long Term  Employment — Based
Benefits Benefits Payments
Hybrid
Base Feel Superannuation  (salary
Remuneration Shart Term . Long Service Contributions  sacrifice) Retirement
5000 A Incentive  Total Leave ©) o Total TOTAL  provision (E)
Non- Executive Directors
J 8 Curtis (Chairman)
L R P T
2007 340
T J Davis
o R D e T o S|
2007 22 - 13 220 -
R A F England
2007 238 -
P J O Hawkins
[Fohe iy 25T ]
2007 85 -
R Holliday-Smith
A RN
128 -
R TR T T
2007 241 342
L B Hicholls AD
{2008 T . LR T oA e s ]
2007 63 235 145
G J Reane
[fees. s TR T oA T
2007 58 245 387
Former
J M Thame

A) Base fees for Non-Executive Directors are inclusive of committes fees (if applicable), and salary sacrifice superannuation, and are
exclusive of the cost of shares acquired under the Non-Executive Directors’ Share Purchase Plan. During the year, 14,793 shares
were acquired and allocated 1o 5 Direclors under this plan. Brokerage of $1,169 was paid by the Bank in acquiring these shares.

B) Remuneration in respect of short term benefits excludes insurance premiums paid by the Group in respect of Directors’ and officers’
liabllity insurance contracts. These contracts cover both current and former Directors and officers. Under the terms of the insurance
policy, the Group is prohibited from disclosing the total premium paid. The premium has not been allocated to individuals covered by
the insurance policy as, based on 2!l available information, the Directors consider that no reasonable basis for such allocation exists.

C) Represents superannuation guarantee charge applicable to Directors under 70 years of age.

D) Represents the cost of shares acquired under the Non-Executive Directors' Share Purchase Plan under a salary sacrifice
arrangement.

E) At the Bank’s Annual General Meeting on 19 December 2003, shareholders approved a resolution that non-Executive Directors
appointed after 30 September 2003 would not be entitied to retirement benefits,

Share based payments
No options over shares have been granted to Non-Executive Directors except as part of the salary sacrifice arrangement under the Non-

Executive Directors Share Purchase Plan.

Here ends the audited Remuneration Report, the remainder of the Directors’ Report is unaudited.
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DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS

The relevant interest of each Director in the share capital of the Bank at the date of this raport is outlined in the following table. Each
interest is held beneficially by the relevant Director.

Options granted
Fully paid over ordinary
Name ordinary shares SAINTS cPs| CPS Il sharas Awards !
J S Curtis 25,295 318 - - - .
T J Davis 22,870 - 5,000 - - -
R A ¥ England 5,739 - - - - -
P J O Hawkins 11816 - - 2,000 - -
R Holliday-Smith 2,500 - - . - -
P D R Isherwood AQ 32,202 263 1.000 1,185 - -
L B Nicholls AC 8,997 - - - - .
G J Reaney 51,268 - - - - -
P A Fegan 219,967 - - - 356,584 72,612

1)  Awards granled under the Executive Performance Share Plan that represents a right over ordinary shares.

2)  MrJS Curiis also holds an interest in 15,000 instalment warrants in fully paid ordinary shares of the Bank.

SHARE OPTIONS

On 1 October 2007, 207,508 options were granted lo seven Group Executives (including Paul Fegan in his prior role as a Group Executive
Member). On 13 November 2008, 138,806 options were granted to the new Chief Executive Officer and on 2 June 2008, 18,419 oplions
were granted to one new Group Executive. Three former Group Executives forfeited 238,764 options during the year as a result of
cessation of employment, No options have been granted since the end of the financial year and up to the date of this report. 503,891

ordinary shares were issued as a result of exercising options granted under the Executive Option Plan. The number of options outstanding
as of the date of this report is 1,087 ,489.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have provided a written statement to the Board that in
their respective opinions:

(i) the financial records of the Group have been properly maintained In accordarce with section 288 of the Corporations Act 2001;

(i) the financial statements and accompanying notes comply with accounting standards and give a true and fair view of the financial
condition and operational results of the Group and the Bank for the year ended 30 September 2008;

(i} the financial statements of the Group are founded on a sound system of risk management and internal compliance which implement
the policies adopted by the Board; and

{iv)} the risk management, compliance and control framework adopted by the Group as it relates to financial reporting is operating
effectively and efficiently, in all material respects.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES

During the year, KPMG, the Bank's auditor, performed certain non-audil services for which it was paid $3.012 million (2007: $1.249
million). Details are set out in Note 32,

The Board has considered the other services provided during the year by the auditor and In accordance with written advice provided by
resolution of the Board Audit Committee, is salisfied that the provision of those other services during the year by the auditor is compatible
with, and did not compromise, the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 for the following reasons:

() all services were subject fo the corporate govemance procedures adopted by the Group and have been reviewed by the Board Audit
Committee to ensure that they do not impact the integrity and objectivity of the auditor;

(i) the other services provided do nol undermine the general principle relating to auditor independence as set out in the Accounting and
Professionat Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants which replaces Professional
Statement F1 Professional independence, as they did not involve reviewing or auditing the auditor's own work, acting in a
management or decision making capacity for the Group, acting as an advocate for the Group or jointly sharing risks and rewards.

The lead auditor's independence declaration as required under saction 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is attached to and forms part of
the Directors’ Report.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES OF THE GROUP

The principal activities of the Group during the financial year were undertaken by the following business segments:
Retail Bank (RB)

RB is responsible for residential and consurner lending, provision of personal financial services Including transaction services, call and term
deposits, small business banking and financial planners. This division manages retail branches, call centres, agency networks and
electronic channels such as EFTPOS terminals, ATMs and Intemet banking.

Institutional and Business Banking (IBB)

IBB is responsible for liquidity management, securitisation, wholesale funding, capital markets, treasury market activities including foreign
exchange, money market and derivatives, corporate and business relationship banking, internationa! and trade finance banking services,
leasing, hire purchase, automotive finance, commercial property lending and cash flow financing, including invoica discounting.

BankSA (BSA)

BSA provides retail banking, business banking and private banking services to customers in South Australia and the Northern Territory.
These services have been extended Into country New South Wales and Vicloria. Customers are serviced through branches, electronic
agencies, ATMs, call centres, EFTPOS terminals and Intemet banking.

Wealth Management {WM)

WM provides superarmuation and wealh managemen! adminisiration platforms, investment management and packagfng. dealer group
services, margin lending, private banking services and general and life insurance.

GROUP'S OBJECTIVE

Based on the Group's well established business strategy, St.George has consistently delivered strong results for shareholders. These
results have been achieved through delivering on St.George's low risk, organic growth strategy.

The Board of St.George have unanimously recommended the proposed merger with Westpac, announced in May 2008, subject to no
superior proposal emerging. The Merged Group’s vision is to become the leading financial services company in Australia and New
Zealand. Underlying the vision is a customer-focused strategy whereby the Merged Group will saek to create a culture in which customers
are al the centre of everything it does. If the proposed merger is approved by shareholders, the combined 10 million customers will have
access to enhanced banking services, in terms of a larger banking network and a wider range of financial services.

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

OVERVIEW OF THE GROUP

The net profit of the Group for the financial year after income tax, minority interests, goodwill impairment, significant items and before
preference dividends was $1,205 million (2007: $1,190 million). The net profit available to ordinary shareholders was $1,174 million {2007:
$1.163 million).

The table below shows the contribution from each division for 2008 and 2007.

Net profit before tax

Business Segment 2008 2007 Increase
$M M %
Retail Bank 821 767 7.0
Institutional and Business Banking 816 486 287
BankSA 272 241 12.9
Waealth Management 194 210 (7.6)
1,903 1,704

{1)  Bafora goodwill impalrment, significant items and hedging and non-trading derivatives volatility.

The following table provides details of retums to shareholders over the past five years:

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Net profit available to shareholders ™M 1,174 1,163 1,048 a15 "7
Basic eamnings per share ‘¥ Cents 237.0 218.9 195.8 1731 160.8
Dividends per share Cents 213 168 151 137 122
Share price ¥ $ 28.60 35.39 30.24 27.89 24.85

(1}  Prepared under previous GAAP.

(2) Bafore goodwill amortisationfimpairment, significant iterns, non-trading derivatives volatility and after preference share dividends.

(3) Share price at 30 September.

*_
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

The Group’s shareholders’ equity increased from $5.9 billion to $7.0 billion during the financial year. This increass is primarily due to $227
million of ordinary capital raised through the dividend reinvestment plan, $844 million of ordinary capital raised from the share purchase
plan and private placement, and a $164 million increase in retained profits. The final dividend for the year ended 30 September 2008 and

an additionzl special dividend have not been provided for in the financial statements and as a result have not been deducted from retained
eamings.

St.George's capital position remains strong with a total capital adequacy ratio of 10.4% at 30 September 2008 (2007: 10.2%). This ratio is
above APRA’s minimum requirement of $.5%. At 30 September 2008, St.George's Adjusted Common Equity {ACE) ratio was 4.9% (2007:
4.9%).

DIVIDENDS

Information regarding dividends paid or declared by the Bank since the end of the previous financial year is included in Note 8.
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

For the full year to 30 September, the Group's net profit increased by 1.3% (o $1,205 million. The total dividends were 213 cents, up
26.8% and include a special dividend of 31 cents and a finat dividend of 84 cents.

For the full year to 30 September, the Group's cash net profit (as defined on page 18) increased by 13.9% to $1,321 million. Retumn on
equity on & cash basis was 21.5%,

Highlights of this year's cash result were a 9.4% increase in lotal cash revenue to $3,579 million. While still investing, costs were
effectively managed, decreasing by 0.3% 1o $1,386 million. This resulted in an improvement in the cash expense to income ratio to an
industry leading 38.7%.

Eamings growth was underpinned by solid growth in business volumes in our key areas of home loans, retail deposits and middle market
receivables, StGeorge's managed funds and margin lending business were adversely impacted by the negative performance of equity
markets and Investor confidence. The funds under administration business maintained its fifth ranking in terms of funds under
administration and fourth ranking on annual net flows.

Credit quality remains sound, reflecting the quality of the Group's residential business tending portfolios and its prudent through the cycle
credit cuiture and policles. St.George does not have any direct exposure to the United States or domestic sub prime lending, collateralised
debt obligations, collateralised loan obligations, credit default swaps or hedge funds. Loan impairment expense as a percantage of
average gross lending assets was 0.26% compared to 0.18% in 2007

Going forward, the outlook for the economy remains uncertain as the affects of the global credit crisis continue to spread and Impact the
Auslrallan economy, consumer conildence, liquidity and access 1o funding. Central banks and govemments around the world, including

Auslralia, have anncunced and commenced to implement a number of measures to help limit the impact of the credit crisis and any
subsequent downside risks to the economy.

St.George fully supports the Australian govemment's response to the credit crisis and its fiseal stimulus package. This package includes
announced measures for the govemment to guarantee deposils in Australian banks, building societies and credit unions. These measures
are extremely helpful but there are still many issues to be resolved and the situation continues to be uncertain, We believe the govemment
will closely monitor the situation and may need to take further actions.

STATE OF AFFAIRS
Significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group during the financial year were as follows:

SECURITISATION

The Bank securitised a tolal of $1.6 billion of auto loans during the year through the Crusade Program (2007: $5.9 billion of housing loans).
The total value of securitised receivables outstanding at 30 September 2008 was $15,544 million {2006: $18,752 million).

BORROWING TRANSAGTIONS

+ In September 2008, the Group completed a $1,051 million issue of mortgage-backed securifies under its Crusade Securitisation
program.

+  In July 2008, the Group issued asset backed securities with a value of $1,236 million as part of the Bank’s auto loan receivables
securitisation program.

«  InJjune 2008, the Group issued EUR 900 million of fixed rate notes maturng in June 2013,

*  In May 2008, the Group issued $625 million of fixed rate and $125 million of fioating rate subordinated notes maturing in May
2018.

*  In Apri 2008, the Group issued EUR 400 million of floating rate notes, maturing in June 2011.

¢ In March 2008, the Group issued $1,150 million of cne-year term funding comprising $1,000 million of floating rate transferable
deposits and AUD 150 million of certificates of deposit. The majority of the paper was placed with domestic investors.

«  In March 2008, the Group issued CHF 250 million of floating rate notes, maturing in March 2010. This was the first public issue

by St.George in the Swiss market.
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¢ InMarch 2008, the Group completed a $341 million issue of asset-backed securities as part of the Group’s auto loan receivables
securitisation program.

s In February 2008, the Group issued $800 million of floating rate transferable deposits, maturing in August 2009.

« in Oclober 2007, the Group issued $200 million of fixed rate and $300 million of floating rate transferable deposits, maturing in
July 2010.

By June 2008, the Group had completed 100% of its full year 2008 term funding requirement, raising $12.8 billion during the year.

The term funding market continues to be expensive but has been accessible to St.George as demonstrated by the debt issues completed
during the year. As at 30 September 2008, the average maturity period of term funding was 26 months (30 September 2007: 32 months).
Maturities of term funding in the next six months represent 15% of total tarm funding.

St.George accesses wholesale debt markets, both In Australia and in major intemational capital markets. Shori-term wholesale funding is
predominantly sourced from the Australian market. To supplement StGeorge's strong funding base in Australia, St.George has

established wholesale funding and securitisation programs in intemational markets. This strategy provides the Group with prudent
diversification of its wholesale funding sources to ensure there Is no over reliance on any individual market.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The following capital management Initiatives were completed during the year:
* n March 2008, 3.5 miliion ordinary shares were issued under a Share Purchase Plan, raising $85 miliion of capital.
« 7.7 million ordinary shares were issugd under the Bank's Dividend Reinvestiment Plan (DRP) raising $227 million of capital;
«  In December 2007, four milllon Converting Preference Shares (CPS 1) were issued raising $382 million (net of issue cosls) in
non-innovative Tier 1 capilal. For accounting purposes the CPS |l are classified as debt with distributions included in interest
expense. The CPS Il replace USD250 million of depositary capital securities redeemed in June 2007;

+ In Novemnber 2007, 21.9 million ordinary shares were issued pursuant to a private placement, raising $759 million (net issue
costs) of capital;

CREDIT RATINGS

The Group's credit ratings are as follows:

[ Rating Agen Short-tarm Debt | Long-term Debt Outlook
58P A-1 A+ . Cradit Watch Positive
Moody's P-1 Aa2 Under raview - direction uncetain
Fitch Fi A+ Rating Watch Positive

In May 2008, Mocdy's placed the Group's ratings on review — direction uncertain, following the announcement of merger discussions with
Westpac. Moody’s has stated that an upgrade of the Group's debt and deposit ratings would be considered should the proposed merger
with Westpac proceed and be compleled within the time frame envisaged. However, should the merger not eventuate, or nol be
completed in the time frame envisagad, Moody's has stated that there would be potential for downward pressure on the Group's bank
financial strength rating and debl ratings and, if an aiternate bidder with lower rafings than St.George ultimately merges with St.George,
there would be downward pressure on all the Group's ratings. On the same day, Filch placed the Group's rating on Watch Positive. In
May 2008, Standard and Poor’'s placed St.George’s ratings on Credit Watch with positive implications.

MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Mr Paul Fegan was appointed Chief Executive Officer on 13 November 2007 and Managing Director on 7 February 2008.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION

Other than as stated below, the operations of the Bank and its contolled entities are not subject to any particular or significant
envircnmental regulation under a law of the Commonwealth or of a State or Territory. The Bank may however become subject to
environmental regulation when enforcing securities over properties to recover outstanding debis.

The Bank has submitted to the New South Wales State Government a strategy of energy use reduction in conformity with the Energy
Administration Amendment {Water and Energy Savings) Act 2005,
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EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE

Since 30 September 2008, the Bank has proposed a final dividend and a special dividend on ordinary shares (Note 45).
MERGER WITH WESTPAC

In May 2008, Westpac and St.George announced a proposed merger of the two entities. Under the terms of the proposed merger, holders
of St.George ordinary shares would receive 1.31 Westpac ordinary shares for each St.George ordinary share held. The proposed merger
would be implemented via a court-approved scheme of amangement.

The Board of St.George has unanimousty recommended the proposed merger to shareholders subject to no superior proposal emerging.

The proposed merger is subject to various conditions, including the receipt of all necessary regulatory approvals, approval by St.George's
sharehalders of the merger and of the change to the Bank's canstitution to allow a shareholder to hold more than 10% of the Bank's
shares, court approvatl of the merger and other customary conditions, such as no material adverse change in either party and no
prescribed occurrences by either party.

St.George shareholders will be asked to vote on the proposed merger and constitutional change at the Bank's share scheme meeting and
the extraordinary general meeting respectively to be held on 13 November 2008,

The independent expert, Grant Samue!, considers the merger proposal to be *fair” and “reasonable™ and has therefore concluded that, in
its oplnion, the merger proposal is in the best interests of shareholders, in the absence of a superior proposal.

©On 23 October 2008, the Austratian Federal Treasurer announced his approval of the proposed merger of Westpac and St.George.
GOVERNMENT GUARANTEE SCHEMES IN AUSTRALIA

The Australian Government announced on 12 October 2008 that it would guarantee the deposits in eligible Australian ADIs (including
St.George) for a period of three years from 12 October 2008. The deposit guarantee applies to deposits held in eligible ADIs {including

foreign branches of eligible ADIs) by all types of legal enfities, regardless of where the depositor resides. it will apply to deposits held in
any cumency.

For deposits of $4 million or under, the deposit guaraniee will be free. From 28 November 2008, for deposits over $1 million, the first $1
million would be guaranteed for free and an eligible AD! will be able to obtain coverage under the deposil guarantee for amounts over $1

million, in retum for a fee. The $1 million threshold applies to the total amount of funds held by a depositor in (separate} deposit accounts
with an eligible ADI,

The Financial System Legislation Amendment (Financial Claims Scheme and other Measures) Act 2008 has been enacted to facilitate the
deposit guarantee. The Financial Claims Scheme (ADIs) Levy Act 2008 provides for the imposition of a levy to fund the excess of APRA'S

financial claims scheme costs. The levy is imposed on liabilities of ADIs to thelr depesits and cannot be more than 0.5% of the amount of
thosa liabilities.

The Australian Government has also announced that it will guarantee the wholesale term funding of eligible AD!s. The wholesale funding
guarantee facility will be extended, by application, on an issue-by-issue basis for senior unsecured debt instruments in all major currencies

with a term of up to 60 months issued domestically or offshore. The Australian Govemment has announced that it will withdraw the facility
ance market conditions have normalised.

Fees will apply to the wholesale term funding guarantee and the guarantee deposits abova the $t million threshold. A different fee will
apply to eligible ADIs based on their credit rating. The fee that will apply to St.George, based on its current rating by Standard and Poor's
of A+ is 100 basis points (1.00%) per annum. The fees will be levied on a monthly or quarterty basis depending on ths liability.

The Australian Government has announced that the deposit and wholesale funding guarantee scheme will be reviewed on an ongoing
basis and revised if necessary.

Directors are not aware of any other matter or circumstance that has occurred since the end of the financial year that has significantly

affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Group, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Group in
subsequent financial years.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS

In preparation for Basel Il, the Bank has introduced a broad range of enhancements to its risk management framework, Significant
business benefit has been derived from the new methodologies and risk management practices.

The Group is targeting Advanced status for the calculation of capital requirements under Base! Il

Accreditation for the Advanced approaches under Baset Il is subject to APRA approval. The Group will remain subject to Basel | during
2008. As an interim measure, from 1 January 2009, St.George will be required to transition to Basel |l standardised approach until it
achieves accreditation under the Base! |l advanced approaches.

Further information regarding likely developments in the operations of the Group and the expected resulls thereof, has not been included in
this report because the disclosure of the information would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice towards the interests of the Group.
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INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The Bank's Constitution provides for an indemnity to each person who is or has been a Director, principal executive officer or the secretary
of the Bank against any liability which results directly or indirectly from facts or circumstances relating to the person serving or having
served in thal capacity, incurmed on or after 15 April 1884 to any person (other than the Bank or a related body corporate) whether or not

arising from a prior contingent liability and, which does not arise out of conduet involving a iack of good faith and conduct known to the
person to be wrongful.

In addition, such indemnily also extends to costs and expenses incurred by the person in defending civil or criminal proceedings in which
judgement Is given in favour of the persan or in which the person is acquitted or the courts grant relief.

The Constitution also provides, to the extent permitted by law, for the Directors to authorise the Bank to enter into any documentary
indemnity in favour of, or insurance policy for, the benefit of a person who is or has been a Director, principat executive officer, secretary,

audilor, employee or other officer of the Bank, which indemnity or insurance policy may be in such temns as the Board of Directors
approves.,

DIRECTORS' AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Bank has paid a premium in respect of a contract of insurance Insuring certain officers of the Bank and its controlled enlities against
those liabilities for which insurance is permitted under the Corporations Act 2001. Such officers consist of the Directors named earlier in
this repon, the company secretaries, executive officers, Bank officers appointed on the Bank's behalfl to external Directorships, and all
persons deemed to be officers of the Bank and related bodies corporate under the provisions of the Corporations Act 2001, together with
all other former and future Directors, company secretaries and officers. Disclosure of the nature of the liabilities and the amount of the
premium is prohibited under the conditions of the conltract of insurance.

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS
The Bank is a company of the kind referred to in Australian Securities and Investments Commission class order 98/100 dated 10 July

1998, as amended by class order 05/841 dated 28 July 2005 and 08/51 dated 31 January 2006. Accordingly, amounts in this report and
the accompanying Financial Statements have been rounded to the nearest one million dollars except where otherwise indicated.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

% féz Porsamt

J 8§ Curtis P A Fegan

Chaimnan Managing Director and CEO

Signed at Sydney, New South Wales
4 November 2008
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. Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001
To: The Directors of St.George Bank Limited

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belicf, in relation to the audit for the financial
year ended 30 September 2008 there have been:

{i)  no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the
Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

(i)  no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the

/@74
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P M Reid
Partner

- Sydney
4 November 2008
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Consclidated

2008 2007 2008 2007
NOTE M M ™ ™
Interest income 2 10,710 8,203 9,179 6,613
Interest expense 2. 3,2_37 6,010 6,974 4,760
Net interest income 2,473 2,193 2,205 1.853
Other income 37 1,132 1,092 1,029 1,002
Total operating income 3,605 3.285 3,24 2,945
Bad and doubtful debts expense 4 291 178 264 158
Operating expenses 57 1,453 1,380 1,358 1,301
Share of profit in equity accounted associates 1 - - -
Profit before income tax 1,862 1,717 1,612 1,486
Income tax expense 6,7 656 525 581 392
Net profit for the year 1,206 1,192 1,01 1,094
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Bank 1,205 1,180 1,031 1,094
Minority interest 1 2 - -
Net profit for the year 1,206 1,192 1,031 1,094
Dividends per ordinary share {cents)
Interim dividend paid 8 88 a2
Final dividend paid 8 86 77
Final dividend proposed 45 894 86
Special dividend proposed 45 a -
Earnings per share (cents)
Basic 9 210.6 2195
Giluted 9 209.2 217.8

The Income Statements shou!d be read In conjunction with the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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[ Bank ]
2008 2007 2008 2007
NOTE $M ™ $M $M
ASSETS
Cash and liquid asseats 10 2,672 2,081 2,672 2,081
Receivables due from other financial institutions 11 305 1,244 185 625
Assets at fair value through the income statement 12 15,605 11,339 15,676 11,450
Derivative assets 41 3,389 1,271 3,010 1,154
Available for sale investments 13 2,810 929 2,210 1
Loans and other receivables 14 97,721 89,884 77,415 65,878
Bank acceptances of customers 15 22,263 16,343 22,263 16,343
Amounts receivable from controlied entities - - 4,309 4,737
Investments in controlled entities 18 - - 1,667 2,425
nvestment in associated companies 29 28 25 25
Property, plant and equipment 19 331 345 312 327
Intangible assets 20 1,378 1,323 952 903
Deferred tax assets 21 244 215 215 188
Other assets 633 798 507 687
TOTAL ASSETS 147,380 125,800 131,418 106,824
LIABILITIES
Deposits and other borrowings 22 90,201 70,803 90,213 70,476
Payables due to other financial institutions 23 1,786 1,013 1,786 1,013
Derivative liabilities 41 2,291 3,440 1,744 1,869
Bank acceptances 3,970 6,348 3,970 6,348
Amounts payable to controlled entities - - 1,460 995
Provision for dividends 3 2 3 2
Current {ax liabilities 62 101 56 90
Deferred tax liabilities 21 29 123 4 89
Other provisions . 24 140 116 131 108
Bonds and notes 25 37,760 34,971 21160 17,024
Loan capitat 26 3,245 2,21 3,245 2,231
Bills payable and other liabilities 27 890 768 740 634
TOTAL LIABILITIES 140,377 119,916 124,512 100,879
NET ASSETS 7,003 5,884 6,906 5,945
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital 28 5,631 4,549 5,641 4,559
Reserves 29 115 243 146 271
Retained profits 30 1,250 1,086 1,119 1,115
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Bank 6,996 5,878 6,906 5,945
Minority interest N 7 6 - -
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 7,003 5,884 6,906 5045
The Balance Sheets should ba read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Cash flow hedge reserve

Gains and losses on cash flow hedging instruments (net of tax)
Recognised in equity
Transferred to the income statement

Available for sale reserve

Losses on available for sale investments (net of tax)
Recognised in equity

Defined benefit plan actuarial (losses)/gains (net of tax)

Net (expense)/income recognised directly in equity

Profit for the year

Total recognised income and expense for the year

Total recognised income and expense for the year attributable to:
Shareholders of the Bank

Minority interests
Total recognised income and expanse for the year

NOTE

29
29

29

Consolidated E7 "Bank: v

2008 2007 2008 2007
$M M $M M
(167) 46 (174) 53
4 1 4 1
31 (3) M -
(5) 2 (5) 2
(199) 46 (182) 56
1,206 1,192 1,031 1,094
1,007 1,238 849 1,150
1,006 1,236 849 1,150
1 2 - -
1,007 1,238 849 1,150

The Statements of Recognised Income and Expense should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the financiz] statements.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Interast paid

Other income Teceived

Operating expenses paid

Income tax paid

Purchase of available for sale investments

Proceeds from sale and redemption of available for sale investments
Net (increase)/decrease in assets

- balance due from other financial institutions (not at call)
- assets at fair value through the income statement

- loans and other receivables

Net increase/(decrease) in liabilities

- balance due to other financial institutions (not at cal)

- deposits and other borrowings

- bonds and notes

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating actlvities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of controlied entity

Investment in controlled entities

Dividends receivad

Proceeds fram sale of shares

Restructure related payments

Payments for property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Net (increase)/decrease in amounts receivable from controlled entities
Net increase/(decrease) in amounts payable to controlled entities
Net {increase)/decrease in other assets

Net cash provided byf{used in} investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net increasef{decrease) in liabilities

- other liabilities

- liabilities at fair value through the income statement

- loan capital

Net proceeds from the issus of Converiing Preference Shares
Proceeds from the issue of shares

Issue costs

Dividends paid {excluding DRP)

Net cash provided byf{used in) financing activities
Net increasef{decreass) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The Statements of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

#_

[ Bank "~ ]
2008 2007 2008 2007

NOTE $M M $M M
10,408 8,289 8,888 6,729
(8,165)  (6,059) (6,897)  (4.834)

1,045 915 775 720
{(1.293) (1,292 (1,402)  (1,244)

(665) {608) (662) (607)

(117 (384 {115} -

275 1,005 - -

163 3 165 2

{6,451)  (5,191) (6,333)  {4,983)
(13,960} (13,067) (17,446) (11,292)

787 {104) 767 (104)

16,835 15424 17,287 16,034

(176) 2,480 2,417 1,615

(a) {1.234) 1,391 {2,556) 2,036
(b) - 27 - 27
- - {262} (14

8 8 69 246

a3 8 a3 8

(17) (1) (17N {11)

(83) (81) (76) (85)

47 29 47 29

- - 1,482 (756)

- - 465 (5386)

4 (219) (28) (144)

50 (249) 1,773 {1,236)

(197) 36 {98) 44

- {390) . -

498 (32) 498 (32)

392 320 302 320

863 17 863 17

(8) - (8) -

(d) (755) (725) (755) (725)
793 (774) 892 {376)

(391) 368 109 424

1,775 1,407 1,155 731

(c) 1,384 1,775 1,264 1,155
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

(a) Raconciliation of profit after tax to net cash provided by operating activitles

Consolidated [~ -""Bank 1

2008 2007 2008 2007
™ M M M
. Net profit attributable to shareholders of the Bank 1,205 1,190 1,031 1,094
Net profit on sale of property, plant and equipment {13) (10} (13} (10)
Net profit on sale of shares {(102) {8) (102} (8)
Net profit on disposal of controlled entities - {3) - 27
Dividends received (6) {8) {69) (246)
Treasury trading profit (89) (103) {50) {71)
Non trading derivatives 51 (13) 42 {24}
Gain on redemption of perpetual notes - - - {20}
Bad and doubtful debis expense 299 178 264 158
Share based compensation 14 12 14 12
Depreciation 63 61 57 56
Armaortisation of deferred expenditure 39 N 33 24
Write-down of investment in controlled entities - - - 29
(Increase)/decrease in assets
- interest recelvable (302) 86 (288) 93
- other income receivable 72 {28) (15) {60}
- balance due from other financial institutions {not at call) 163 3 165 2
- loans and other receivables (13,960) (13,067) (17,446) (11,292)
- available for sale investments 158 621 {(115) -
- assets at fair value through the income statement {6,451) (5,191) (6,333) (4,983)
- net position of defetred tax assets/(liabilities) (33) (71) (112) {73)
Increasef{decrease) in liabilities
- interest payable 107 {49) 112 {73}
- accrued expanses a7 49 {152) {86)
- balance due to other financial institutions (not at cait) 7167 {104) 767 {104)
- provision for current income tax {39) {59) (34) (50)
- other provisions _ 25 {(10) 24 (8)
- deposits and other borrowings 16,935 15,424 17,287 16,034
- bonds and notes {176) 2 460 2,417 1,615
Net cash {used In)/provided by operating activitles {1,234) 1,391 {2,556) 2,036
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{b) Disposal of controlled entity

On 28 September 2007, the Group disposed of its 100% interest in Scottish Paclific Business Finance Holdings Pty Limited for $27 milion. The
business contributed $3 milllon to the Group’s net profit from 1 October 2006 to 28 September 2007.

2008 2007
M M
Consideration net of disposal cost - 27
Fair value of assets disposed - 24
Profit on sale - 3
Net inflow of cash - 27
{c) Reconciliation of cash
[ Bank |
2008 2007 2008 2007
M M $M $M
Cash and liquid assets 2672 2,081 2,672 2,081
Balances due from other financial institutions 125 200 5 280
Due to clearing houses (088) {982} {088} {982)
Bills payable (425) (224) (425} {224)
. 1,384 1,775 1,264 1,155

{d) Dividends paid

There were 7,668,109 (30 September 2007: 4,209,831) shares issued pursuant to the Group's dividend reinvestment plan raising $227 million
{30 September 2007: $142 million),
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

St.George Bank Limited (the Bank) Is incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The address of the Bank’s registered office is 4-18 Montgomery
Street, Kogarah, New South Wales, 2217, Australia. The financial report of the Bank for the year ended 30 September 2008 comprises the
Bank and its controlled entities (the Group) and the Group's interest in associates.

The financial report was authorised for issue by the Directors on 4 November 2008.

(A) STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

This financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the
Corporations Act 2001 and the Banking Act 1959. Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) form the basls of Australian Accounting

Standards (AASBs) adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board, and for the purpase of this report are called Australian equivalents
to IFRS {AIFRS).

As a result of complying with AIFRS, the Group's finandial report also complies with IFRS and Interpretations adopted by the International
Accounting Standards Board.

(B) BASIS OF PREPARATION

The accounting policies sel out below have been applied consistently to all pericds presented in this financiat report and have been applied
consistently by Group entities.

The financial report has been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following:
¢ Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value;
; Financial instruments at fair value through the Inceme Statement are measured at fair value;
*  Available for sale financial assets are measured at fair value;
+  Definred benefit plan assets and liabilities are measured at fair value; and
+  Recognised assels and liabilities that are subject to fair vaiue hedges are tair valued 1o the extent of the hedged risk.
This financial repert is presented in Australian doflars, which is the Bank’s functional currency and the functional currency of the Group.

The Bank is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998, as amended by class order 05/641 dated 28 July 2005 and

06/51 dated 31 January 2008. Accordingly, all financial information presented in Australian dollars has been rounded to the nearest million
unless otherwise slated.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and

critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements are
described in Note 1(11),

The following new standards, amendments to existing standards and new interpretations have been identified as those that impact the Group.
They are available for early adoption at 30 September 2008, but have not been applied in preparing this financial report.

+  AASB 8 Operating Segmenls and AASB 2007-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 8 {February
2007) replace the presentation requirements of segment reporting in AASB 114 Segment Reporling. AASB 8 introduces a
“management approach” to segment reporting and will require the disclosure of segment information based upon the internal reports
regularly reviewed by the Group's Chief Operating Decision Maker in order to assess each segment's performance and to allocate
resources to them. AASB 8 is applicable for the annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 and is expecled to only
impact disclosures contained within the consolidated financial repart.

* Revised AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements and AASB 2007-8 Amendments o Australian Accounting Standards arising
from AASB 101. A revised AASB 101 was issued in September 2007 and is applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2008. The revised standard requires the presentation of a statement of comprehensive income, but does not change
the recognition, measurement or disclosure of transactions or events that are required by other AASBS. In addition, if an enlity has
made a prior period adjustment or has reclassified items in the financial statements, it will need to disclose a third balance sheet
(staterment of financial position), this one being as at the beginning of the comparative period. The Group has not yet determined the
potential effect of the revised standard on the Group's disclosures.

* Revised AASB 3 Business Combinations changes the application of acquisition accounting for business combinations and the
accounting for non-controlling (minority) interests. The revised requirements require the immediate expensing of transaction costs
relating to an acquisition, measurement of contingent consideration at acquisition date with subsequent changes recognised in the
income statement and measurement of non-controlling {minority} interests at full fal value of the proportionate share of the fair value
of the underlying net assets. The revised requirements are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009,
The Group has not yet determined the potential effect of the revised standard on the Group’s financial report.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

+* Revised AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements changes the accounting for investments in subsidiaries. Key
changes include the measurement to fair value of any previous retained investment when controt is obtained or lost, with any resulting
gain or loss recognised in the profit and loss statement, and the treatment of increases in ownership interest after control is obtained
as transactions with equity holders in their capacity as equity holders. The revised standard is appiicable for annual reporting periods

beginning on or after 1 July 2009. The Group has not determined the potential effect of the revised standard on the Group’s financial
report.

The following amendment to Australian Accounting Standards has been earty adopted during the financial year commencing 1 Cctober 2007.

*  AASB 2008-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Redclassification of Financial Assels. This slandard makes
amendments to AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure. The
amendment permits the reclassification of certain non-derivative financia! assets, other than those designated at fair value through
profit and loss upen initial recognition, out of the fair value through profit or (oss category when the financial asset is no longer held for
the purposa of seliing or repurchasing in the near future and there are rare clreumstances of it would otherwise have met the definition
of a loan and receivable at initial recognition. The amendment ¢an be applied from 1 July 2008.

The early adoption of this amendment resulted in $2.085 billlon of debt and mortgage backed securities within assets at fair value
through the Income statement at 1 July 2008 being reclassified into available for sale investments. The carrying value of these
reclassified investments at 30 September 2008 was $2.072 billion, resulting in a fair value loss of $13 million being recognised in the

available for sale reserve instead of the income statement. The Group expects o fully recover ali principal and interest cash flows
ralating to these reclassified investments.

The Group considers that the recent events impacting financial markets Is a rare circumstance as discussed in the amended standard
and the reclassification of the gbove investments is appropriate.

(C) CONSOLIDATION

The consclidated financial report comprises the financial report of the Bank and all enfities that are controlled by the Bank. Under AASB 127
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, control exists when the Bank has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Under UIG 112 Consolidation — Spedial Purpose Entities, control exists
where the Bank has the majority of the risks and benefits of the entity.

Where an entity commenced or ceased to be controlled during the year, its results are only included from the date control commenced or up lo
the date control ceased.

Associates are those entities for which the Group has significant influence, as defined in AASB 128 tnvestments in Associates, but not control,
over the financial and operating policies. The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the total recognised gains and

losses of agsociates on an equity accounted basis, from the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence
ceases.

When the.Group's share of losses exceeds its interesl in an associate, the carrying amount of the Group’s investment is reduced 1o nil and

recognition of further losses [s discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of an associate. '

All inter-entity balances and transaclions between Group entities have been eliminated on consolidation.

Trusts involved in the securilisation of the Bank’s assets and asset backed-conduit vehicles have been consolidated. The trusis have been
consolidated on the basis that the Group has retained the majority of residual benefits from the trusts’ activities and the majority of residual
ownership risks related to the trusts’ assets.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group (refer Note 1(0O)).
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost in the individual financial statements of the Bank.

(D) FOREIGN CURRENCY

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate at the date of the transaction, All monetary assets and liabilities
held in forelgn currencies are shown in this financial repori af the exchange rates prevailing at balance date. Fareign currency forwards, futures,
swaps and options are valued at fair value using the appropriate market rates af balance date. Unrealised profi{s and losses arising from these
revaluations are recognised in the Income Statement, subject to the application of hedge accounting {refer Note 1(1)}).

For foreign exchange trading activities, it is the policy of the Group to maintain a substantlally matched position in foreign currency assets and
liabilities, hence the net exposure {o exchange risk is not significant.

{(E) TRANSLATION OF CONTROLLED FOREIGN ENTITIES

The functional currency of the demestic operations of the Bank has been datermined to be Australian dollars (AUD), as this currency best
reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the Bank. Each entity within the Group has also
determined its functional currency based on its own primary economic indicators.

Assets and llabilities of foreign operations with an overseas functional currency are translated to AUD (the Group’s presentation currency) at
balance sheet date at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Revenues and expensaes of these entities are transtated to AUD at the spot
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exchange rate at the date of the transaction. All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the Foreign Cumrency Translation Reserve as
a separate component of equity and are released to the Income Statement upon disposal.

{F) CASH AND LIQUID ASSETS

Cash and liquid assets are readily convertible to cash and subject to insignificant risk of change in value and comprise cash held in branches,
ATMs, cash at bank, money at call, bills raceivable, remittances in transit and securities purchased under agreement to resell. Interest income
on cash and liquid assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method in the Income Statement. Cash and liquid assets are
recognised at the face value or the gross value of the outstanding batance.

For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an Insignificant risk of change In fair value. Such investments are normally those with an original
maturity of less than three months. Cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with the Reserve Bank, shont term amounts included
in receivables due from other financial institutions, payables due to other financial institutions and bills payable,

(G} RECEIVABLES DUE FROM OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Balances due from other financial institutions are loans and recelvables. Thesa include loans, nostro balances and settlement account balances
due from other banks. They are measured at fair value at inception and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method. Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method in the Income Statement.

The effective inlerest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash recsipts or payments and certain acquisition expenses through
the expected life of the instrument. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash fiows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument but does not consider future credit losses.

(H) ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH THE INCOME STATEMENT
Assets at fair value through the Profit and Loss are described in these accounts as assets at fair value through the Income Statement,

Trading securities are purchased without the intention of being held to maturity. The securities are recorded at fair value based on quoted
market prices. Realised and unreallsed gains and losses are recognised in the Income Statement. Interest on trading securities is included in
net interest income. At acquisition, trading securities are recorded on a settiemant date basis.

Where available, quoted bid prices are used to account for the fair value of assets. Quoted mid prices are used to account for fair value of
assets where there is an offsetting risk position in a portfolio.

Realised gains and iosses on disposal and unrealised fair value adjustments are included in other income. Interest income on assets at fair
value through the income Statement is included within interest income using the effective interest rate method. Dividends continue to be
reflected in other income when earned.

() DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group makes use of the derivatives market for trading purposes and to hedge foreign exchange, interest rate risk and credit risk.

All derivatives that do not meet the hedging criteria under AASB 139 are classified as derivatives held for trading, with changes in fair value
recognised immediatety within the Income Statement,

Interest income and expense on derivatives, except those used to manage underlying assets and liabilities, are Included within other Income.

[nterest income and expense for derivatives used to manage underlying assets and liabilities are included with the interest flows of these items
within interest income or expense.

Derivatives are initially recognised at trade date at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivalives are measured at fair value. The
method of recognising the gain or loss on re-measurement of fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, the nature of the item being hedged and whether the derivative qualifies for hedge accounting. A positive revaluation amount of a
contract is disclosed as an asset and a negative revaluation amount of a contract is disclosed as a liability.

The Group has adopted cash flow hedging or a combination of cash fiow and falr value hedging in respect of its asset and liability management

Fair values are obtained from quoted market pricas where there is a market and valuation techniques are used when there is no active market.
Valuation techniques include discounted cash flow models and options pricing models as appropriate.

At the inception of the transaction the Group documents the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge

inception and on an ongeing basis, of whether the derivalives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in
fair values or cash flows of hedged items.
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Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in the Income Statement within
other income, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. If the fair vaiue
hedge relationship is terminated, other than due to the derecognition of the hedged Hem, fair value hedge accounting ceases and for interest

eaming assels or interest bearing liabilities, the falr value adjustment of the hedged item is amortised to the Income Statement over the
remaining term of the hedged item.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the falr value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in equity. The
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Income Statement. This represents the amount by which the

changes in the fair value of the expected cash flow of the derivative differ from the fair value of the changes (or expected changes) in the cash
flow of the hedged item.

Amounts from the cash flow hedge reserve are transferred to the Income Statement when the cash flows on the hedged item are recognised in
the income Siatement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss
existing in equity at that time remains In equity and is amortised to the Income Statement over the remaining term of the originat hedge. Whera
the hedged item is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss Is recognised immediately in the Income Statement.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Derivatives confracts entered into as economic hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are held at fair value through the Income
Statement. Interest income on these derivative contracts is recognised together with the underlying item within interest income and expensa.

Embedded derivatives

A derivative may be embedded within a host contract. If the host contract is not already measured al fair value with changes in fair vatue
reported in the Income Statement, the embedded derivative is separated from the host contract where the economic characteristics and risks of
the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract. This is then accounted for as a
stand-alone derivative instrument at fair value. Otherwise, the embedded derivative is accounted for on the same basis as the host contract.

{J} INVESTMENTS AND QTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Investment securities, shares in entities and other investments are classified as available for sale investments.

Available for sale investments are non-derivative assets intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, including commercial paper and
equities. They may be sold in response to a need for liquidity or changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Avallable for sale investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. They are subsequently remeasured at fair value and
gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in equity in the available for sale reserve unfil investments are sold,

otherwise disposed of, or until such Investments become impaired. Unquoted equities whose falr value cannot be reliably measured are carried
at cost.

Interest income is recognised on avallable for sale investments using the effective interest rate method, calculated over the assets' expected
life. Premiums and/or discounts arising on purchase are included in the calculation of their effective interest rate. Dividends are recognised in
other income within the Income Statement when eamed.

When a decline in the fair value of an available for sale investment has been recognised directly in equity and there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been recognised directly in equity shall be removed from equity and recognised in the Income
Siatement. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss on an available for sale debt instrument to decrease, the
impairment loss is reversed through the Income Statement. Where the decrease in the impairment loss relates to an available for sale equity
instrument, the reversal of the Impairment loss is recognised directly in equity.

When available for sale investments are sold, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in equity are recognised In other income within
the Income Statement.

{K) LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Loans and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed and determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.

Loans and receivables include residential, commercial, credit cards, overdrafts and other personal loans, leasing, hire purchase, leveraged
leases, margin lending, structured financing, securilised loans and asset-backed conduit vehicle receivables.

Loans and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.

Note 1{M) provides additional informaticn with respect to loan impairment. For more details on revenue recognition, refer to -Note 1(CC)
revenus recognition.

Finance lease receivables
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Finance leases in which the Group is the lessor are included in loans and other recelvables. At the beginning of the lease term, the present
value of the minimum lease payments receivable plus the present value of any unguaranteed residual value accruing to the lessor is recorded in
the balance sheet. Income attributable to the leases is brought to account progressively in the Income Statement over the lease term on an
effective yield basis.

Structured financing

Structured financing by the Group includes participation in leveraged leases and is recorded at the amounts equal to the Group's participation
and included in loans and other receivables in the Balance Sheel. Revenue is recognised in the Income Statement based on an effective yield
basis. Certain structured financing loans are recognised at fair value through the Income Statement rather than at amortised cost.

Securitisation

The Group periodically sells loans (principally housing loans and autorobile finance receivables) to special purpose trusts that issue securities
1o investors. Group entities act as manager, servicer and custodian to these trusts. The Group also pravides redraw facilities and basis and
interest rate swaps to the trusts. Securilised loans that do not qualify for de-recognition and the associated funding are included within the
Bank's loans and other receivables and bonds and notes respectively.

The Group does not stand behind the capital value or the performance of the securities or the assets of the trusts. The Group does not
guarantee the payment of interest or the repayment of principat due on the securities. The Group is not obliged to support credit losses that
may be suffered by the investors and does not intend to provide such support.

The trusts involved in the securitisation of the Bank's assets and asset-backed conduit vehicles have been consolidated. Accordingly,

securilised loans and other assets, together with associated funding within these trusts and entities, are included within the Group’s loans and
other receivables and bonds and notes respectively.

{L} IMPAIRED FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following criteria has been used by the Group in the ¢lassification of Impaired assets.
Non-performing

Loans are classified as non-performing where:

(a) contractua! payments of principal and/or interest are oulside contractual terms and where the value of security is insufficient to cover
repayment of principal and interest;

{b} a specific impairment provision has been raised; and/or
{c) thereis reasonable doubt about the uitimate collectability of principal or interest within an acceptable timeframe.
Renegotiated Loans

These are ioans whose terms have been renegotiated and would otherwise be classified as past due or impaired. These loans are measured at
amortised cost and interest and fees recognised as income using the effective interest rate method, whilst the cuslomer complies with the

modified terms and conditions.
Assets Acquired Through Security Enforcement

This category comprises assets where ownership has been assumed in setflement of a debt. These assets are recorded in the Balance Sheet
under Available for Sale Invesiments and are measured in accordance with the Group's intention for realisation of the asset.

(M) LOAN IMPAIRMENT

The Group assesses at each balance date whether there is any objective evidence of impaimment. If there is objective evidence that impairment
of an individual loan or partfolio of loans has occurred, an impalrment assessment is performed and a loss recognised where appropriate.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the loan's camying amount and the present value of the expected future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred), discounted at the loan's original effective interest rate. Short term balances
are not discounted. The unwinding of the discount from initial recognition of impairment through to recovery of the written down amount is
recognised as interest income. Loans and other receivables are presented net of provisions for loan impairment.

The Group has loan impairment losses that are assessed on both a specific and collective basis.

Specific loan provisions are recognised in situations where, following an assessment of an individual facility, there is objective evidence that a

loan is impaired. All other loans and advances that do not have an individually assessed loan provision are assessed colleclively for
impaimment.

Collective provisions reflect the estimated amount of losses incurred on a collective basis, but which have yet to be individually identified.
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{N) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and buildings were recognised at deemed cost upon transition to AIFRS, less any impairment losses and depreciation. Deemed cost
represented the fair value of tand and buildings at 1 October 2004.

Land is not depreciated and buildings are depreciated on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives of 20 to 60 years.

Plant and equipment is recognised at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and accumulated depreciation calculated on a straight line
basis to write off the assets over their estimated useful lives. The estimated usefu! lives of items of plant and equipment are between three and
ten years and leasshold improvements are between one and ten years.

Depreciation rates for property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically to ensure they appropriately reflect residual values and estimated
useful lives,

All items of property. plant and equipment are periodically reviewed for impairment as part of the impairment testing conducted within cash
generating units.

(O} INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the Group's share in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and

contingent liabilities of the acquired entity at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition of controlied entities is included in intangible assets
in the balance sheet,

Business comblnations prior to 1 October 2004

Goodwill is included on the basls of iis deemed cost, which represented the amount recarded under previous GAAP, The classification and
accounting treatment of business combinations that occurred prior to 1 October 2004 were not reconsidered in preparing the Group's opening
AIFRS balance sheet at 1 October 2004,

Business combinations since 1 October 2004

All business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method. Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition
over the Group's share in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabiiiies and contingent liabilities of the acquired entity at the date of
acquisition.

Goodwill is stated al cost less any accumulated impairment losses, Goodwil is allocated to cash-generating units and is tested annually for
impairment. In respect of associates, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment in the associate.
Negative goodwill arising on an acquisition is recognised directly in the Income Statement. '

Software

Computer software costs that are not integral to associated hardware are recognised as an intangible asset where they are identifiable, can be
reliably measured and it is probable that they will lead to future economic benefits to the Group. Certain intemal and extemal costs directly
incurred in acquiring and developing certain software have been capitalised and are being amortised over their useful lives, usually a period of
three 1o five years. Caphalised software is camied at cost less amortisation and any impairment losses. Costs incurred on software
maintenance are expensed as incurred. impairment losses on capitafised software are recognised in the income Statement when incurred.

(P) BANK ACCEPTANCES

All bank accepled bills {including both discounted and on-sold bills) and the associated fiability for on-sofd bills are recognised at amortised cost,

with interest income and expense recognised using the effective yield methodology. Fee income on bill acceptances is recognised on an
effective yield basis within interest income.
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(Q) DEPOSITS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Deposits and other borrowings comprise negotiable certificates of deposits, tarm deposits, saving deposits, cheque and other demand deposits,
securities sold under agreements to repurchase.

Deposits and other borrowings are recognised at inception at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently at amortised
cost. Interest and yield related fees are recognised in the Income Statement based upon the effective yield method.

Where the Group has utilised derivative instruments to hedge deposits and other borrowings, hedge accounting policies as outlined in Note 1(I)
are applied.

(R) PAYABLES DUE TC OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Payables due to other financial institutions include deposits, settlement account balances and vostro balances. They are brought to account at
inception at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method. Interest expense is recognised using the effective interest rate method in the Income Statement. Interest and yield related fees
are taken 1o the Income Statement using the effective interest rate method.

{S) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Wages, salaries, annual leave and non-monetary benefits

Liabilities for employee benefits for wages, salaries and annual leave that are expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date
represent present obligations resuling from employees' services provided to reporting date. These liabilities are calculated at undiscounted

amounts based on remuneration wage and salary rates that the Group expects to pay as at reporting date including related on-costs, such as
workers compensation insurance and payroll tax,

Long service leave

The Group's net obligation in respect of long-term service benefits, other than pension plans, is the amount of future benefit that employees
hava eamed in retum for their service in the current and pror periods. The obligation is calculated using expected futura increases in wage and
salary rates including related on-costs and expected setllement dates, and is discounted using the rates attached to the Cormmonwealth
Government bonds at the balance sheet data which have maturity dates appraximating those of the Group's obligations.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group makes contributions to multiple superannuation funds in accordance with Superannuation Choice of Fund, including the employer
sponsored fund, which has two defined benefit sections. The defined benefit sections provide defined lump sum benefits from aged 55, based

on years of service and final average salary. The defined contribution section and fund receives fixed contributions from Group companies and
the Group’s legal or constructive obtligation is limited to these contributions,

Obligations for contributions o defined benefit plans are recognised as an expense in the Income Staterment as incurred.

In relation to defined benefit plans, any deficiency or surplus of the plan is recognised as a liability or asset respectively. Any deficiency or
surplus is also recognised in retained eamings.

Share-based payments

The Group operates several equity settied, share-based compensation plans. Information relating to these plans is set out in Note 33.

Whaere shares in tha Bank are to be issued to satisfy grants, the fair value is recognised as an employee benefit expense with a comesponding

increase in equity. The fair value is measured at grant date and recognised over the period during which the employees become unconditionally
entitled to the options or shares.

At each balance date, the Group revises its estimated forfeiture and recognises the impact of any changes in the Income Statement.

The fair value of options or awards (with market related performance conditions) to be satisfied by the issuance of shares has been determined
using the binomial method at the grant date. The binomial method takes into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The fair value of awards with non-market related conditions is based on the share price on the grant date, which is discounted for the
present value of dividends not received during the vesting period.

Where options or awards do not vest as a result of not achieving nor-market performance twrdles, then any expense previously recognised is
roversed.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is committed to either terminating the
employment of curent employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal, or providing termination benefits as a

result of an offer made 1o encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after balance sheel date are discounted
to present value.
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(T} PROVISION FOR DIVIDENDS

The provision for dividend relating to SAINTS is calculated on a balance of $350 million at a floating rate of interest calculated as 70% of the

sum of the annualised 90 day Bank Bill Swap Rate plus a margin of 1.35%. Dividends are payable quarterly in August, November, February
and May each year.

The provision for dividends relating to Step-up Preference Shares is calculated on a balance of $150 million at a floating rate of interest
calculaled as 70% of the sum of the annualised 90 day Bank Bill Swap Rate plus a margin of 1,10%. Dividends are payable quarterty in August,
November, February and May each year.

The provision for dividends relating to ordinary shares is recognised in the reporting period in which the dividends are declared.

(U) INCOME TAX

Income tax expense in the Income Statement for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the Income
Statement except {0 the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current iax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using 1ax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet
date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for finandia! reporting purposes and the amounts used for laxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the

expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset ¢can be
utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

The Group recognises liabiliies for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimales of whether additiona! taxes will be due. Where the final
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts initially recorded, such differences will impact the cument and deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.

Tax consolidation

The Bank and its wholly owned Australian resident entities formed a tax-consofidated group with effect from 1 October 2003 and therefore have
been taxed as a single entity from that date. The head entity within the tax-consolidated group is St.George Bank Limited.

Current tax expensefincome, defermed tax liabilities and deferred tax assels arising from temporary differences of the members of the tax-
consolidated group are recognised in the separate financial statements of the members of the tax-consolidaled group using a group allocation

approach by reference to the camying amounts in the separate financial statements of each entity and the tax values applying under tax
consolidation,

Any current tax labilities {or assets) and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses of the subsidiaries are assumed by the head entity
in the tax consolidated group and are recognised as amounts payablefreceivable toffrom other entities in the tax-consclidated group In

conjunction with any tax funding arangement amounts (refer below). Any difference between these amounts is recognised by the Bank as an
equity contribution or distribution.

The Bank recognises deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses of the tax-consolidated group to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits of the tax-consolidated group will be available against which the asset can be utilised.

Any subsequent period adjustments lo deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses as a result of revised assessments of the probability
of recoverability are recognised by the head entity only.

Nature of tax funding arrangements and tax sharing arrangements

The head entity, in conjunction with other members of the tax-consolidated group, has entered into tax funding arrangements, which set out the
funding obligations of members of the tax-consolidated group in respect of tax amounts. The tax funding arrangements require payments
loffrom the head entity equal to the cumrent tax liability/asset assumed by the head entity and any tax-loss deferred tax asset assumed by the

head entity, resuiting in the head entity recognising an inter-entity receivable/payable equal in amount to the tax liability/{asset) assumed. The
inter-entity payables/receivabies are at call.

Contributions to fund the current tax liabilities are satisfied via a credit or debil to the member's intercompany account with the head entity and
reflect the timing of the head entity’s obligation to make payments for tax liabilities to the relevant tax authorities.

The head entity, in conjunction with other members of the tax-consolidated group, has also entered into a tax sharing agreement. The tax
sharing agreement provides for the determination of the allocation of income tax llabilities between the entities should the head entity default on
its tax payment obligations. No amounts have been recognised in the financiat statements in respect of this agreement, as payment of any
amounts under the tax sharing agreement is considered remote.
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(V) BONDS AND NOTES

Bonds and notes comprise commerclal paper and other fixed and fioating senior debt securities issued under the Bank's debt instrument

programme, euro note programme, US commercial paper programme and other private placements. Bonds and notes also include debt issues
of consolidated trusts involved in the securitisation of the Bank's assets.

Bonds and notes are recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs at inception. Bonds and notes are subsequently

measured at amortised cost. Interest and yield related fees are recognised in the Income Statement based on the effective interest rate
method.

Where the Group has hedged the bonds and notes with derivative instruments, hedge accounting rules are applied (refer to Note 1 (1)).

(W) LOAN CAPITAL

Loan capita! comprises preference shares and subordinated debt issued by the Group that qualifies for inclusion in regulatory capital in
accordance with APRA prudential requirements.

Loan capital is recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs at inception. Loan capital is subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Interest and yield related fees are recognised in the Income Statement based on the effective interest rate method. Where the
Group has hedged loan capital with derivative instruments, hedge accounting rules are applied (refer Note 1(1}).

(X) LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH THE INCOME STATEMENT

Liabilities at fair value through the profit and loss are described in these accounts as liabilities at fair value through the Income Statement, The
Group designates certain liabilities at fair value through the Income Statement on origination where those liabilities are managed on a fair value
basis, Changes in the fair value of liabilities through the income Statement are reported in other income within the [ncome Statement. Far
quoted liabilities, quoted offer prices are used to measure fair vatue. Quoted mid prices are used to measure liabilities at fair value through the
Income Statement where there is an offsetting risk position in a portfolio at fair value. For non-market quoted liabilities, fair values have been
determined using valuation technigues. Interest expense on financial liabilittes at fair value through the Income Statement is recognised within
interest axpense using the effective interest rate method.

(Y) SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
1}  Ordinary Share Capital - Issued and Paid Up

Ordinary share capital is recognised at the value of the amount paid up. Share issue and share buy-back costs are charged against share
capital.

Where a subsidiary purchases shares In the Bank as part of the Groups equity based compensation scheme, such shares are referred to as
Treasury shares and deducted from equity at cost.

2} Preference share capital

Preference share capital is classified as equity i # is non-redeemable, any dividends are discretionary and it is redeemable only at the Group's
option. Dividends on preference shares classified as equity are recognised as distributions within equity. Based on this policy, the Group's
SAINTS and Step-up Preference Shares (SPS) are classified as equity. Converting Preference Shares comprising CPS | and CPS Il are
classified as a liability.

Details of preference shares ciassified as equily are as follows;
SAINTS

On 13 August 2004, the Bank issued 3.5 million SAINTS at $100 each, The Issue netled $345 million in Tier 1 regulatory capital after issue
related expenses, Holders of ihese securities are entiled o a floaling rate dividend which is payable a1 the Direciors’ discretion. The floating
rale is determined each quarter by taking 70% of the sum of the annualised 80 day Bank Bill Swap Rate plus a margin of 1.35%. if declared,
dividends are payable in arrears on a guarterly basis. On 20 November 2014 or any dividend payment date thereafter, subject to APRA

approval, the Bank may convert the SAINTS to ordinary shares, redeem, buy-back or cancel the SAINTS for their face value or undertake a
comhination of these options.

SPS

On 20 June 2006, the Bank issued 1.5 million SPS at $100 each, raising $148 million in Tier 1 regulatory capital after issue related costs.
Holders of these securities are entitled to a floating rate dividend which is payable at the Directors’ discretion. The floating rate is determined by
taking 70% of the sum of the annualised 90 day Bank Bill Swap Rate plus a margin of 1.10%. If declared, dividends are payable quarterly in
arrears. On 20 August 2016 or any dividend payment date thereafter, the Bank may convert the SPS into ordinary shares, or redeem, buy-back
or cancel (subject to APRA approval) the SPS for their $100 face value, or undertake a combination of these options.
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3) Reserves

i) Depositors’ and Borrowers' Share Redemption Reserve — The purpose of this reserve is to recognise the redemption of all
Bormowers’ and Depositors’ shares.

i) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve — The purpose of this reserve is to recognise exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign currency assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries.

ili) Equity Compensation Reserve — In conjunction with the recognition of an expense for employee equity grants, a
corresponding amount is recognised within the equity compensation reserve.

v) General Reserve for Credit Losses — In accordance with APRA’s regulatory treatment, ai a minimum the difference between
0.5% of risk weighted assets and the after tax balance of the collective provision not relating to Incurred loan losses, has been
appropriated from retained eamings to a non-distributable general reserve for credit losses.

v} Cash Flow Hedge Reserve ~ The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify
as cash flow hedges are recognised within the cash fiow hedge reserve.

vi) Available For Sale Reserve - Changes in the fair value of financial instruments designated as avallable for sale assets are
recognised within the available for sale reserve,

{Z) LIFE INSURANCE BUSINESS

The Group conducts life insurance business through its subsidiary St.George Life Limited {SGL). SGL is accounted for in accordance with the
requirements of Accounling Standard AASBE 4038: Life 'nsurance Contracts and AASB 139: Financial Instumenis: Recognition and
Measurement. Amounts included in the results of the Group in respect of SGL represaent the total life business of SGL, which includes
underlying amounts that relate to both policyholders, and shareholders of the life business.

All assets are camied at fair value through the Income Statement. Life insurance liabiliies are measured as accumulated benefits to

policyholders in accordance with AASB 139 and AASB 1038, which apply 10 investmenl contracts and assets backing insurance habilities
respectively.

{AA) OPERATING LEASES

Leases entered into by the Bank and Group as lessee are primarily operating leases. The tfotal payments made under operating leases are
charged to the Income Statement on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

(BB) OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and liabilittes are offset and the net amount is reported on the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(CC) REVENUE AND EXPENSE RECOGNITION
Interest Income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the Income Statement for all interest eaming assets and Interest bearing liabilities based upon
the effective inlerest rate on the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments and certain acquisition expenses through the expected life of the instrument. When calculating the effective interest rale, the Group
estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fee income and expense and acquisition costs that are an integral part of the effactive interest rate.

Interest income and expense on derivalive instruments that are used to manage underlying assets and liabilities are recognised together with
the underlying item within inlerest income and expense.

Fee and commission income and expense

Fee Income and acquisition costs relating to loan origination are capitalised and included in the effective interest rate and recognised as interest
income over the expected life of the loan. Other fee and commission income is generally recognised when the service has been provided.

Fee expense is recognised when the service has been recelved.
Net trading income comprises all gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial assets held for trading.
Net income from non-trading derivatives and financlal instruments designated at fair value comprises all gains and losses from changés in the

{air value of financial assels and financial liabiiities designated al falr value through the income Statement, hedge inefiectiveness recognised in
the Income Statement and changes in the fair value of non-trading derivatives.
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(DD) SEGMENTS

The Group is organised into four business segments, Retail Bank, institutional and Business Banking, BankSA and Weallh Management. The
Other segment comprises hedge ineffectiveness and fair value movements in non-trading derivatives and depasitary capital securities.

(EE) DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS h

The derecognition of a financial asset takes place when the contractual rights to the cash flows associated with the financial instrument expire or
when the Group transfers the contractual rights, which is normally the case when the instrument is legally sold, or when all the cash flows

attributable {o the instrument are passed onto anather party and the risks and rewards have substantially been transferred. The derecognition
of a financial liability takes place when the contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or a portion of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets. If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognised from
the balance shest. Transfers of assets with retention of all or substantlally all risks and rewards include securities lending and repurchase
transactions and certain sales of home loans by the Bank to consolidated securitisation trusts.

(FF) COMMITMENTS TO EXTEND CREDIT, LETTERS OF CREDIT AND GUARANTEES

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events, or present abligations where the

transfer of economic benefit is unceriain or cannot be reliably measured, Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed, unless they
are remota.

Financial guarantees are given to banks, financial Institutions and other bodies on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other
banking facllities, and to other parties in cannection with the performance of customers under obligations related to contracts, advance
payments made by other parties, tenders, retentions and the payment of import duties.

Financia! guarantee contracts are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequent fo initial recognition, financial guarantees are measured at the
higher of the initial measurement amount, less amortisation calculated to recognise fee income eamed, and the best estimate of the expenditure

required to setlle any financial obligation at the balance sheet date. Any increase in the liability retating to financial guarantees is recognised in
the Income Statement.

(GG} FIDUCIARY ACTIVITIES

A number of controlled entities act as Trustee and/or Manager, Administrator or Custodian for a number of superannuation funds, investment
trusts, superannuation services, approved deposit funds, life insurance funds and managed client portfolios.

The assets and liabilities of these funds and trusts are not included in the Group's balance sheet as it does not have the capacity to direclly or
indirectly control the funds and trusts for the Group's benefit and does not have the risks and rewards.

Commissions and fees derived by these controlled entities in respect of these activities are included within other income in the Income
Statement.

(HH) REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

The Group enters into repurchase transactions where It sells securities under an agreement to repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions
where it purchases securities under an agreement to resell. The securities subject to the repurchase or reverse repurchase transactions are not
derecognised from the balance sheets of the respective parties, &s the risks and rewards of ownership remain with the initial holder.
Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions are conducted on a collateralised basis. Where cash is provided as collateral, cash received
fram counterparties on a repurchase agreement is recorded within deposits and other bormowings and cash paid on a reverse repurchase
agreement is recorded within cash and liquid assets.

{1} CRITICAL. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the Group's financial stalements requires management 10 use judgement, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from those
prepared using these judgements, estimates and assumptions. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis,

An explanation of the Judgements, eslimates and assumptions that are significant to the Group's finangial statements is provided below.

(1) Goodwlll

Tha Group's accounting paticy in relation to goodwill is stated in note 1(Q). Goodwill represents the difference between the cast of an
acquisition.and the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilitles of the acquired entity at the date of acquisition.

Management judgement is involved in estimaling the net fair value of the acquired assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities and therefore
goodwill, at the time of acquisition.
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Judgement is also required in the Group's annual testing of goodwill for impairment. An impairment will be recognised if the camying value of
the cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is in excess of its recoverable amount. The recoverable amounts of cash
generating units are determined based upon "value In use” calculations, which Invotve the use of estimates and assumptions in relation to the
cash flows and discount rates as discussed in Note 20,

Goodwill impairment testing for both 2008 and 2007 indicated that none of the Group's goodwill is impaired.

(2) Fair vaiue of financial instruments

Assels at fair value through the income statement are recognised at fair value and changes in their fair value are recognised in the Income
Statement. Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value and changes in their fair value are recognised in the Income Staternent,

The Group classifies investment securities, shares in other entities and certaln other investments as available for sale investments. Available
for sale investments are measured at fair value and changes in their fair value are recognised in equity in the avaitable for sale reserve until they
are sold, otherwise disposed of, or until such investments become impaired.

Fair value represents the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled in an arms-length transaction between willing
parties. The Group uses quoted market prices as the measure of fair value. Where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are
based on valuation techniques based upon observable market data.

The estimates of fair value are subjective and involve the exercise of judgement. Examples of the judgements involved include the selection of
valuation techniques when market prices are not available, selection of discount rates and estimation of assumptions that may affect future cash
flows of the asset. Changes in assumptions used could have a materiat impact on the valuation.

(3} Income taxes

The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.

{4) Impairment losses on loans and receivables

Methodolegies and significant assumptions to determine provislons on loans and receivables are set out in Note 40.

{5} Consolidation of special purpose entitles

The Group's consolidated financia! statements include all entitles that are controlled by the Bank. When assessing whether the Group controls

a special purpose entity (SPE), judgement is required about risks and rewards together with the Group's ability to make operational decisions for
the SPE.
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NOTE 2: INTEREST

Interest Income

Cash and liquid assets

Receivables due from other financial institutions
Assets at fair value

Loans and other receivables

Due from controlled entitles

Total interest income

Interest expense

Retail funding

QOther deposits

Payables due to other financial institutions
Bank acceptances

Securitisation

Loan capital

Other borrowings

Due to controlled entities

Total interest expense

NOTE 3: OTHER INCOME

2008 2007 2008 2007
M $M $M M
108 52 109 52
84 82 64 39
276 491 896 373
9,541 7.578 7,728 5,828
- - 384 321
10,710 8,203 9,179 6,613
2,831 2,088 2,816 2,081
1,288 665 1,288 665
72 26 72 26
383 408 383 408
1,388 1,328 - -
169 129 169 129
2,106 1,366 2,075 1,293
- - 171 158
8,237 6,010 6,974 4,760

Consolidated

2008

2007

2008 2007

M M M $M
Net trading income 89 103 137 71
Nettrading income from controlied entities - - (47} -
Net otherincome from non-trading derivatives and financial
instruments designated at fair value (51) 13 {42) (38)
Net otherincome from non-trading derivatives and financiai
instruments designated at fair value - controlled entities - - - 62
Dividend income - other persons 6 8 - -
Dividend income - controlied enlities - - &9 248
Product fees and commissions
- lending 169 151 126 1114
- deposit and other accounts 253 227 228 211
- glactranic banking 211 218 211 218
Managed funds fees 272 296 - 3
Net gain on sale of land and buildings 13 10 13 10
Gain from Visa Inc. (PO 77 - 77 -
Profit on disposal of shares 25 8 25 8
Profit/(loss) on disposal of controlled entity - 3 - (27)
Factoring and invoice discounting income 5 20 4 2
Rental income 5 6 . 5 6
Trust distributions 9 10 4 6
Securitisation services fee from controlled entities - - 41 51
Management fees from controlled entities - - 134 19
Profit on redemplion of perpetual note - - - 20
Other 49 19 47 13
Totai otherincome 1,132 1,092 1,029 1,092
(a) Comprises all gains and losses from changes In the fair value of financial assets and derivatives held for trading.
{b) Comprises all gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial assets and financia! liabilities designated at fair value

through the Income Statement, the impact of hedge ineffectiveness recognised in the Income Statement and changes in the fair value

of non-trading derivatives.

*
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NOTE 4: BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS

Charge to collective provision for credit losses
Charge to specific provision for credit losses
Charge to specific provision for credit losses - controlled entities

Refer to Note 16 for further details.

NOTE 5: OPERATING EXPENSES

Employment expenses
Salaries and wages
Contractor fees
Superannuation contributions
Fringe benefits tax
Payroll tax
Share based compensation
Other

Non-salary technology expenses
Depreciation of computer equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Rental expense on cperating leases
Other

Occupancy expenses
Depreciation of furniture, fittings and leasehold improvements
Rentals on operating leases

Rentals on operating leases payable to controlled entities
Other

Administration and other
Advertising and public relations
Consultants
Fees and commissions
Fees and commissions payable to controlled entities
Postage
Printing and stationery
Subscription and levies
Telephone
Write-down of investmant in controlled entities
Other

Total operating expensaes

[ Bank ]
2008 2007 2008 2007
M ™M M M
79 23 74 19
212 155 190 134
- - - 5
291 178 264 158

[ . Bank |
2008 2007 2008 2007
M $M M $M
648 652 597 501
17 7 11 -
69 60 64 55
3 7. 3 6
43 42 40 38
14 12 14 12
74 28 71 27
B68 808 800 720
33 a5 28 a1
3g 31 33 24
1 4 1 4
72 71 70 69
145 141 132 128
30 26 28 25
92 86 76 71
- - 16 13
43 42 37 a7
165 154 158 146
51 59 46 53
34 28 28 16
38 32 46 29
- . 9 13
19 20 19 20
34 38 29 30
11 10 9 10
9 10 7 9
- - - 29
81 g2 77 89
275 287 268 208
1,353 1,380 1,358 1,301
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NOTE 6: INCOME TAX EXPENSE

ORI S
2008 2007 2008 2007
M M ™ M
a) Income tax expense
Currant tax expense
Current year 665 588 613 464
Adjustments for prior years (6) (1) (3) (3}
Deterred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (33) (62} (29) (69)
Total Incoma tax expense in Income statements 658 525 581 392
b) Reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facle tax payable
Profit before tax 1,862 1,777 1612 1,486
Prima facla Income tax calculated at 30% of profit before tax (2007: 30%) 559 515 484 445
Increase in Income tax expensa due to:
Share based payments expense 3 4 3 4
Preference share dividends classified as Interest expense 12 10 12 4
Non-deductible interest expense - - - 8
Cument and deferred tax transactions of wholly-owned subsidiaries in the
tax consolidated group - - - 27
Loss on wind up of subsidiaries - - - 9
Non-deductible expenditure - depositary capital securitles 117 ] 117 6
Other 3 3 1 3
Decrease In Income tax axpense due to;
Non-assessable income @ (2) (3} (2)
Deduction allowable on shares issued to employees @ 2) 2) ]
Net differernice between accounting and assessable profit on sale of assets - 4) - @)
Rebatable dividends (2 @ (21) (74}
Recovery in accordance with tax funding agreements - - - {27)
Recognition of capital gains tax losses {4) - (4) -
Recognition of tax losses (10) - - -
Tax consolidation benefit (8) - - -
Cwverpravislon for Income tax in prior year (a) (1 (3 3)
Other 3 (2) (3} -
Total incoma tax expense 656 525 581 392
{c) Amounts recognised directly in equity
Net deferred tax - (credited¥debited directly to equity
Cash flow hedges (76) 16 (79) 21
Available for sale investments (12} - @) -
Defined benefit plan (2} 1 (2) 1
{80) 17 {83) 22
{d} Tax losses
Unused tax losses for which no tax benefit has been recognised - 52 - 21
Potential tax benefit 5t 30% - 18 - g

There was no potential asset attributable to tax losses carried forward (2007: $16 million) that has not been brought to account in the Group.



ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

NOTE 7: SIGNIFICANT ITEMS

tn accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101, items of income and expense that are material by quantum or nature are disclosed

separately to assist in understanding the financial performance of the Group.

Non interest income
Non interest income befora significant item
Significant item
(i) Gain from Visa Inc. shareholding

Total non interest income

Operating expenses
Operating expenses before significant items
Significant items
(ii) Restructure costs
(lif) Merger ralated costs

Total operating expenses

income tax
Income tax expense before significant items
Significant items
(i) Income tax expense on gain on Visa Inc. shareholding
(if) Income tax benefit on restructure costs
(iii) Income tax benefit on merger related costs
{iv) Income tax expense on depositary capital securities

Total income tax expense
Summary of significant items
Total pre-tax gain from significant items

Less: total tax expense attributable to significant items
Net impact from significant items

00! ar

[ Bamk |
2008 2007 2008 2007
$M ™M $M M
1,055 1,092 852 1,092
77 - 77 -
1,132 1,092 1,029 1,092
1,386 1,380 1.201 1.301
43 - 43 -
24 - 24 -
67 - 67 -
1,453 1,390 1,358 1,301
536 525 481 392
23 - 23 -
{13) - (13) -
) - 7) -
17 - 17 -
120 - 120 -
656 525 581 392
10 - 10 -
{120) - {120) -
{110) - (110) -

) 'n March 2008, the Bank recognised a gain of $77 milfion ($54 million after tax) following the receipt of 1,901,718 shares in Visa Inc.

as part of Visa's inftial public offering (IPO).

The gain represents the sale of 56.19% or 1,068,491 shares into the IPO and the fair value of 833,228 shares that were classified as
an Available for Sale Investment in the Balance Sheet. The fair value reflects the applicabie restrictions on the remaining shares held.

(i) Restructuring costs totalling $43 million ($30 million after tax) have been recognised. These restructure cosls primarily represent staff
redundancy costs relating fo the restructuring of cerlain back-office business processes and consolidation of sites.

{iii) As part of the proposed merger with Westpac, the Bank has incirned a number of non-recurring merger related expenses.

{iv) In April 2008, the Federal Court held that the interest payments for the years 1998 to 2003 made by the Bank on subordinated
debentures issued as part of the depositary capital securilies transaction completed In June 1997, were not deductible for income tax

purposes.

2007 Year

There were no significant items during the year.
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

NOTE 8: DIVIDENDS PROVIDED FOR OR PAID

Dateof  Franking Percentage
Type Conts per share  Consolldated Bank payment rote franked
$M M % %
2008
Interim 2008 - ardinary shares 83.0 494 494 02-tul-08 30 100
Final 2007 - ordinary shares 88.0 450 450  18-Dec07 k) 100
Subordinated adjustable income non-refundable tier 1 securities ™ 3 3 20-Novd7 30 100
Subordinated adjustable incoma non-refundable tler 1 securites 5 5  20Febl8 30 100
Subordinated adjustable income non-refundabla tier 1 securities [:] ] 20-May-08 0 100
Subordinated adjustable income non-refundable tler 1 securitles 8 [ 20-Aug-08 30 100
Subordinated adjustable income non-refundable tier 1 sacurities @ 2 2 20-Nov08 30 100
Step-up preference shares ™ 1 1 20-Nov07 30 100
Stap-up preference shares 2 2 20-Feb-08 » 100
Step-up preference shares 2 2 20-May-08 30 100
Step-up preference sheres 3 3 20-Aug-08 30 100
Step-up preference shares @ 1 1 20-Nov-08 30 100
984 984
2007
Interim 2007 - ordinary shares 82.0 435 435 03-Jul07 30 100
Final 2006 - ordinary shares 170 408 408  18-Dec08 30 100
Subordinated adjustabla income non-refundable tier 1 securities ' 3 3 20-Nov-08 30 100
Subordinated adjustabls income non-refundable tier 1 securities 5 5 20-Feb-07 30 100
Subordinated edjusiable income non-refundable ter 1 Securiies 5 5 21-May-07 30 100
Subordinated adjustable Income non-refundable tier 1 securities 5 5 20-Aug-07 30 100
Subordinated adjustable income non-refundable tier 1 securities ™! 1 1 20-Nov07 k] 100
Step-up prefersnce shares™ 1 1 20-Nov-06 30 100
Step-up preference sharas 2 2 20-Feb-07 30 100
Stap-up preferance shares 2 2 2\-May07 W 400
Step-up prefarence shares 2 2 .20-Aug07 30 100
Step-up preference shares & 1 1 20-Nov07 30 100
868 [T
(1) A total dividend of $4 million was paid of which $3 million relates to the 2008 financial year and $1 million related 1o the 2007 financial
year.
{2) A total dividend of $5 milllon will be payable on 20 November 2008 of which $2 million relates to the 2008 financia! year.
(3) A total dividend of $2 milllon was paid on 20 November 2007 of which $1 million relates to the 2008 financial year.
(4) A tofal dividend of $2 millicn will be payable on 20 November 2008 of which $1 million relates to the 2008 financial year.
(5} A total dividend of $5 million was paid of which $3 million related to the 2007 financial year and $2 million related to the 2006 financial
year.
(6) A total dividend of $2 million was paid of which $1 million related to the 2007 financial year and $1 million related to the 2006 financial
year.
Dividend franking account

it is anticipated that the balance of the consolidated franking account will be $1,008 million (30 September 2007: $767 million) after adjusting for:

(i} franking credits that will arise from the payment of income tax payable as at the end of the year;
{ii) franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as a liability;
(i} franking credits that will arise from the receipt of dividends recognised as receivables at the reporting date; and

{iv) franking credits that the Group may be prevented from distributing in the subsequent year.

After also allowing for the 30 September 2008 final and special ordinary dividends, the consolidated franking account will be $703 million (3

September 2007: $571 million).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

NOTE 9: EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic eamings per ordinary share (cents)

Diluted eamings per ordinary share (cents)

Basic weighted average number of ordinary sharas

Issued shares at 1 October

Effect of shares issued in July 2008

Effect of shares issued in December 2007

Effect of shares issued in July 2007

Effect of shares issued in December 2006

Effect of shares issued under Employee Share Pians

Effect of shares issued on conversion of Perpetual Notes
Effect of shares issued from share purchase plan

Effect of shares issued from private placement

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 30 September

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (basic) $M
Less: preference share distributions

SAINTS

SPS
Profit used in calculating basic eamings per share

Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares

Basic weighted average number of ordinary shares at 30 September
Effect of SAINTS on issue

Effect of SPS on issue

Effect of CPS | on issue

Effect of CPS Il on issue

Effect of share options on jssue

Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares at 30 September

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (diluted) $M
Add: preference share distributions

Dividends on SAINTS

Dividends on SPS

Intereston CPS |

Interest on CPS I
Profit used in calculating diluted eamings per share

CONSOLIDATED
2008 2007
210.6 219.5
209.2 217.8
532231095 526,247,360
1,358,568 ;
1,734,279 ]
i 463,345
] 1,826,254
814,417 1.282.511
- 97.078
1,962,058 ;
19,250,103 ]
557.350.220  520.016.548
1.205 1,490
22 19
9 8
TA74 1163
557350220 529,916,548
11,898,388 10.143.384
5,099,309 4.347 165
10,884,101 7.380.255
10.172.160 -
105,751 444,220
505606929 552.231.572
1174 1,163
22 19
9 8
20 13
21 i
1246 1,203




ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

NOTE 10: CASH AND LIQUID ASSETS

o Bank 7]
2008 2007 2008 2007
™ M ™M M
Notes, coins and cash at banks 218 246 219 246
Money at call 1 69 1 €9
Bills receivable and remittances in transit 27 16 27 16
Clearing house balance 466 20 466 20
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 1,859 1,730 1,858 1,730
2,672 2,081 2,672 2,081

The Group and Bank hold $1,959 million {2007 $1,730 million) of collateral from counterparties in relation to

securities purchased under agreements to resell.

NOTE 11: RECEIVABLES DUE FROM OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

2008 2007
M $M

Maturity analysls based on remaining term to maturity at 30 September
At call 125 900
Less than 3 months 99 -
Baetween 1 year and 5 years 81 344
305 1,244

Included within receivables due from other financial institutions are amounts for the Group and Bank of $81 million
{2007: $344 million) which are lodged with counterparties as collateral in relation to market valuation movements

on counterparty transactions.

NOTE 12: ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH THE INCOME STATEMENT

Consolidated [, " Bank’ -
2008 2007 2008 2007
M $M $M M
Government and semi-government securities 2,13 1,441 2,131 1,441
Bills of exchange - bank accepted/endorsed 1,985 983 1,995 958
Negotiable certificates of deposit 10,180 6,218 10,180 6,218
Other marketable securities 1,299 2,697 733 2,316
Other marketable securities - controlled entities - - 637 517
15,605 11,339 15,676 11,450

Assets at fair value through the income statement include assets sold under repurchase agreements, whose
related liability is disclosed in Note 22: Deposits and Other Borrowings. The Group and Bank have $4,287 million
(2007: $2,254 million) of assets at fair value through the income statement, which are provided as security in

relation to the liability on these repurchase agreements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 13: AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS

Consolidated ] Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007

M ™ $M M

Unlisted equity securities 1 1 1 1

Listed equity securities 20 - 20 -

Mortgage backed securities 1,464 384 1,219 -

Mortgage backed securities - controlled entities - - 117 -

Debt securities 1,278 500 853 -

Other securities 47 44 - -

2,810 929 2,210 1

Maturity analysis based on remaining term to maturity at 30 September

Less than 3 months 3 85
Between 3 months and 12 months 466 175
Between 1 year and § years 1,589 271
After 5 years 687 353
Non-maturing 65 45
2,810 929

Available for sale investments include assets sold under repurchase agreements, whose related liability is
disclosed in Note 22: Deposits and Other Borrowings. The Group and Bank have $1,062 million (2007 $Nit) of

available for sale investments, which are provided as security in relation to the liability on these repurchase
agreements,
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

NOTE 14: LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Housing loans - amortised cost ‘"

Commercial foans - amortised cost &

Personal loans - amortised cost

Credit card receivables - amortised cost

Lease and commercial hire purchase - amortised cost "
Structured investments - amortised cost

Structured investments - fair value through Income Statement
Other - amortised cost

Less: provisions for impairment {refer Note 16)
Specific provision for doubtful debts
Collective provision for doubtful debts

Net loans and other receivables

[ Bank ]
2008 2007 2008 2007
M ™ S ™
75,546 69,230 61,460 50,537
12,078 10,314 10,877 9,434
5,019 5,624 3,579 4,520
1,720 1,512 1,720 1,512
3,621 2,908 9 57
68 75 68 75
- 507 - -
83 41 83 41
98,135 50,209 77,796 66,176
44 34 37 28
370 294 344 270
797,721 80,884 77,415 65,878

Maturity analysis based on remaining term to maturity at 30 September

Less than 3 months
Between 3 months and 12 months
Between 1 year and 5 years

After 5 years
%)) includes securitised loans.
{2) Includes loans in asset backed conduit entities.

32,680 31,668
2,822 2,714
8,284 7,242

54,495 48,551

98,001 90,175

The Group has sold housing loans, personal loans, hire purchase loans and lease receivables to special purpose
securitisation trusts that issue securities to investors. These loans are normally derecognised from the Bank’s
balance sheet upon sale to the securitisation trust, with the trust in tum consolidated into the Group's results and

financial position.

The Group has transferred certain housing loans to these securitisation trusts, but has retained substantially all of
the credit and interest rate risk associated with these transferred loans. Accordingly, the Bank continues to
recognise $1,034 million of transferred housing loans within loans and other receivables at 30 September 2008 (30

September 2007: $Nil) and $1,051 million of associated liabilities {30 September 2007: $Ni).

Securitisation trusts have been consolidated and the securitised loans and associated external funding are

included within the Group’s loans and other receivables and bonds and notes respectively.
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

NOTE 15: BANK ACCEPTANCES

Bk -
2008 2007 2008 2007
M M $M M
Gross bank acceptances 22,264 16,343 22,264 16,343
Less: Specific provision for doubtful debts 1 - 1 -
Net bank acceptances 22,283 16,343 23*_263 16,343
NOTE 16: PROVISIONS FOR IMPAIRMENT
Bark |
2008 2007 2008 2007
5M M M M

Collectlve provision
Opening balance 201 268 270 251
Net charge for the year 79 23 74 19
Closing balance 370 291 344 270
Specific provision
Opening balance 34 3 28 K1l
Net charge for the year 212 155 130 139
Recoveries 28 20 24 17
Bad debt write-offs {229) (172) {204) {159)
Closing balance 45 34 38 28

Ingividually assessed provisions are raised where there is objective evidence of impairment and full recovery of principal is considered doubtful.

The provisions are established primarily based on estimates of the fealisable {fair) value of security taken and are measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the expected fulure cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original

effective interest rate. Short term balances are not discounted.

Al loans and advances that do not have an individually assessed provision are assessed collectively for impairment. The collective provision Is
maintained to reduce the carrying amount of portfotios of similar leans and advances to their estimated recoverable amounts at the balance

sheet date. The evaluation process is subject to a series of estimates and judgements.
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

NOTE 17: CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Concentrations of credit rigsk arise when a number of counterparties operate in the same industry or geographical sectors and have simllar
economic characteristics so that their ability to meet contractual chligations is similady affected by aconomic, political ar other canditions.

The Group monitors concentrations of credit risk by industry sector, single large exposure policies and product exposure levels. An analysis of

concentrations of credit risk, prior to considering caollateral held or other credit enhancements, by industry sector at reporting date is shown in
the following tables.

Consolidated

Assets at fair Credit
value through Avallable for Loans and commitments
the income Derivative sale other Bank and contingent
2008 statoment assets investments  rteceivables  acteptances fabHities™"! Yotal
M M $M M M M M
Agriculture, forestry and fishing - 5 - 988 439 228 1,660
Financial, investment and insurance 13,287 3,190 2,274 403 705 441 20,300
Govemment and public authorities 2,156 3 - 38 5 5 2,207
Lease finance - - - 1,436 - 23 1,459
Personal - . - 5,162 - 3,180 8,342
Manufacturing - 155 - 763 1,050 265 2,233
Mining 1 15 - 180 78 34 308
Real estate - construction - - - 1,654 1,326 758 3,738
Real estate - morigage 8 - - 75,201 - 13,929 89,228
Other commercial and industrial 21 21 474 12,220 18,661 8,723 40,117
Total 15,473 3,389 2,745 98,135 22,264 27 586 169,692
QOther risk concentrations
Recsivables due from other financial institutions 305
Total gross credit risk™ 169,897
2007
Agriculture, forestry and fishing - - - 962 378 201 1,541
Financial, investment and insurance 9,632 1,224 312 310 511 268 12,257
Government and public authorities 1,405 8 - 20 3 g 1,454
Lease finance - - - 1,112 - 21 1,133
Personal - - - 5,900 - 3.864 9,764
Manufacturing 1 17 - Tar 835 192 1,762
Mining 23 - - 74 12 12 121
Real estate - construction 13 - - 1,575 91 580 3,079
Real estate - mortgags - - - 70.370 - 13,320 83,690
Other commercial and industrial 50 22 572 9,170 13,693 5,061 28,568
Total 11,124 1,271 834 90,209 16,343 23,628 143,359
Other risk concentrations
Receivables dus from other financia) institutions 1,244
Total gross credit risk® 144,603

(1) Represents the face value of credit commitrnents and contingent liabilities.

(2) Prior to considering collateral hefd or other credit enhancements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

NOTE 17: CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

[_:' A - T TR e e Bank G e L ]
Assats at fair Credit
valug through Availsble for  Loans and commitments
the income Derivative sale other .. Bank and contingent
2008 statemant assets Investments receivables acceptances  liablifties™ Total
™ $M M $M M M M
Agriculture, forestry and fishing - 5 - 841 439 228 1,513
Financial, investment and insurance 13,545 2,812 2,189 295 705 2,136 21,682
Govermnment and public authorities 2,131 - - 3 5 5 2,144
Lease finance - - - 1 - - 1
Personat - - - 5,162 - 3,180 8,342
Manufacturing - 155 - 387 1,050 285 1,857
Mining - 15 - 5 78 34 178
Real astate - construction - - - 1,106 1,326 758 3,189
Real estate - mortgage - - - 61,460 - 12,764 74,224
Other commercial and Industrial - 23 - 8,491 18,661 8,688 35,863
Total 15,676 3,010 2,189 77,796 22,264 28,058 148,993
Other risk concentrations
Receivables due from other financial institutions 183
Total gross credit risk™ 149,178
2007
Agriculture, forestry and fishing - - - 817 378 201 1,396
Finaneial, investment and insurance 10,030 1,107 - 276 511 2,054 13,978
Government and public authorilies 1.368 8 - 3 3 9 1,389
Lease finance - - - - - - -
Personal - - - 5912 - 3,864 8,776
Manufacturing - 17 - 336 835 192 1,380
Mining - - - 12 12 12 36
Real estate - construction - - - 1,140 911 580 2,631
Real estate - mortgage . - - 50,285 - 12,0603 62,288
Other commaercial and industrial 54 22 - 7,395 13,683 4,993 26,163
Total 11,450 1,154 ~ 66.176 16,343 23,914 119,037
Other risk cancentrations
Receivablas due from other financial institutions 625
Total gross cradit risk™ 119,662
(1} Represents the face value of credit commitments and contingent liabilities,
(2) Prior to considering collateral held or other credit enhancements.
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NOTE 18: INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES

investmant in controlled entitios at cost 1,667 2,425

The controlled entities of the Bank are:

Parcunlage ol
Shares Held

NOTE 2002 2007
Advance Asseit Managemeni Lim lted 100 100
Advance Leasing Lim ied 100 100
Armour Securitisation Pty Lim ited {¢) - -
Ascalon Funds Seed Pool Trust {t) - -
Asgard CapitaiManaggement Lim jted 100 100
Asgard W eaith Solutions LIm ited 100 100
Assirt Software Pty Lim lted 100 1040
Buc¢chealin Ply Lim ited 100 100
Ceanberra Advance Property Lim ited 100 100
Crusade CP Management Pty LIim ited 100 100
Crusade CP No.1 Pty Lim ited (c) - -
Crusade ManagemeaentLimiled 100 100
Denaby Pty Lim ited 100 100
Dragon Investimenl Services Lim ilad 100 100
Dysty Pty Lim Hed 100 100
Hitton Pty Lim lted 1090 100
Naticnwide Management Pty Lim ited 100 100
Pact Accountants Investment Group Pty Lim jted 100 100
Securitor Flnancial Group Lim ited 100 100
St.Gegrga APL Pty Lim itad 100 100
St.George Bank Emoployes Share Trust {c) - -
St.George Business Finance Pty Lim ited 100 100
S5t.George Commoercial Cradit Corporation Lim ited 100 100
St.George Crusade Investment Pty Lim lted 100 100
S1.Georpe Custodiali Pty Lim ited 100 100
St.Gecrge Dragon Investiment Pty LIm ited 100 100
St.George Equity Finance Lim ited 100 100
St.George Finsnce Holdings Lim ited 100 100
St.George Finance Lim Hed 100 100
S5t.George Filnanciallnvestm #nts 1 Pty Lim ited 100 100
St.George Financlallnvestments New Zealand Lim ited {8} 100 100
St.George Financial Services Lim Ited 100 100
$1.Gevrge Funding Company LLC {a).{b} . 100
5t.George Group Hoidings Pty Lim ited 100 P00
S5t.Gecrge Insurance Ausitralia Pty Lim Hed 100 100
S51.George Life Lim ited 100 100
S51.George Management Services Pty Lim ited 100 P00
S5t.Georpe Motor Finance Lim ited 735 75
St.George New Zealand Lim lled (a) 100 100
St.George (Note Issuing Vehicle Cniy) Pty Lim lted 100 100
St.George Procuremenl Management Pty Lim ited 100 100
St.George Pte Lim ited {a).{d} 100 100
St.George Security and Custody Pty Lim ited (b)) - 100
St.George Security Holdings Pty Lim ited (e} 100 -
St.George W ealth Management Pty Lim ited 100 100
S5t.George W EL Lim ited 100 100
Value Nominees Pty Lim ited 100 100
Votralnt No. 1182 Pty Lim ited 100 100
VS&L Insurance Agency Pty Lim ited 100 100
VS58L Sarvices Pty Lim iteg 100 100

{a) St.Geomge Funding Company LLC was a Delaware fimited fability company and canied on business in the USA. SLGsurge Pte Limited is incorporated
in Singapore, St.George Financial Investments New Zealand Limitag and StGeorge New Zealand Limited (formerty St.George Bank New Zealand
Limitad) are incorporated In and carry on business in New Zealand. All othar controlled entities are Incorporated in Austratia,

(b} These tompanles wera deregistared during the year. '

{c) Control without ownership.

{d) This company is currently in voluntary liquidation.

(e) This company was Incorporated on 25 October 2007.

When asse;w]ng whether the Group controls a special purpose entity, judgement is required about risks and rewards together with the Group’s ability to make
operational decisions for the special purpose antity.
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

IMPAIRMENT TESTS FOR GOODWILL
Cash Generating Units

Cash generating units have been combined at the segment level for the purposes of impairment testing. The carrying amount of goodwill has
been allocated to operating segments as follows: '

r —Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007

M M M M

BankSA 278 278 239 239
Retail Bank 460 460 393 393
Institutional and Business Banking 179 179 115 115
Waalth Management 260 269 41 41
Total 1,186 1,186 788 788

During the years ended 30 September 2008 and 30 September 2007, the Group determined that there was no impairment of goodwill.

The recoverable amounts for the CGUs have been determined based upon “value in use” calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based upon financial budgets approved by senior management covering a three year period and are based upon key assumptions in
relation to net interest income and fee income. Cash flows beyond the budgeted period have been extrapolated using a medium term GDP
growth tate of 3.2%, which is refiective of management’s expectations of growth in tending volumes and funds under management where
applicable. The discount rates applied to projected cash flows are between 11% to 16%.

The Group has determined that the “value in use” calculations are most sensitive to changes in the assumptions identified above. Sensitivity
analysis of these assumptions has been completed to determine whether changes in estimates would materially affect the camying value of

goodwill allocated to each CGU. This analysis has indicated that no material impairment issue is expected to arise from reasonably foreseeable
changes in the key assumptions.

NOTE 21: DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

The tax assets have been applied against deferred tax liabilities to the extent they are expected to be realised in the same period, within the
same tax paying entity.

&~ _Bank ]
2008 2007 2008 2007

M M M M
Defarred tax assets
Loans and cther receivables 19 6 11 -
Other provisions 44 57 41 52
Property, plant and equipment 6 8 ’ 5 7
Provisions for impairment 125 97 ’ 115 80
Sundry creditors and accruals 28 14 25 12
Qther 22 33 18 27
Total deferred incoma tax assets 244 215 215 188
Deferred tax liabllitles
Financial instruments {95) N {100} (8)
Loans and other receivables 93 a5 59 60
Property, plant and equipment 41 42 42 39
Other {10} 3 3 : {2}
Total deferred income tax liahilitias 29 123 4 89
Net deferred income tax assets 215 92 211 99
Deferred tax recognised directly in equity
Cash flow hedges (51) 25 51 28
Aveailable for sale invastments (12) - {2) -
Desfined benefit plan (2) - {2} -

(65} 25 (55) 28
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

NOTE 22: DEPOSITS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

TR

2008 2007 2008 2007

™ $M M M

Certificates of deposit 28,512 18,075 26,512 19,075

Term and other deposits 57,442 48,317 57,442 48,217

Term and other deposits with controlled entities - - 1,080 665

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 5,128 2,210 5,128 2,210

Other borrowings 1,118 1,201 51 209

90,201 70,803 90,213 70,476

Maturity based on remaining term to maturity at 30 September

At call 41,996 37,429
Less than 3 months 17.184 14,667
Between 3 months and 12 months 26,677 15,164
Between 1 year and 5 years 4,342 3.526
After 5 years 2 17
90,201 70,803

NOTE 23: PAYABLES DUE TO OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Maturity based on remalning term to maturity at 30 September

At call 988 982
Less than 3 months 26 3
Between 3 months and 12 months 1 -
Between 1 year and 5 years 771 28

1,786 1,013

Included in payables dua to other financial institutions are amounts lodged with the Group and Bank of $771 million {2007: $28 million) as
coliateral in relation to market valuation movements on counterparty iransactions.

NOTE 24: OTHER PROVISIONS

Consolidated [LF373 Bank D .0 ]

2008 2007 2008 2007

M &M $M ™

Provision for annual teave 53 52 49 48
Provision for long service leave 61 57 57 54
Provision for restructuring costs 24 5 24 5
Other 2 2 1 1
140 116 131 108
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

NOTE 25: BONDS AND NOTES

Consolidated I 7 Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007

M $M M M
Commerclal paper by currency of denomination
AUD euro commercial paper 469 345 469 345
CAD euro commercial paper 23 . 23 -
CHF euro commercial paper 104 26 104 26
EUR euro commercial paper 3,055 1,455 3,055 1,455
GEP euro commercial paper 1,443 1,004 1,443 1,004
HKD euro commercial paper 302 348 302 348
JPY euroc commercial paper 307 992 307 992
NZD euro commercial paper 82 99 82 a9
SGD euro commercial paper 13 a6 13 86
USD euro commercial paper 1,631 1,762 1,931 1762
USD US commercial paper 1,945 1,179 1,945 1,179
9,874 7,308 9,674 7,306
Madium Term Dabt by currency of denomination
AUD medium term debt 6,718 7,425 - 126
CAD medium term debt 12 184 12 184
CHF medium term debt 337 a7 337 a7
EUR medium term debt 13,033 11,013 7,892 6,363
GBP medium term debt 945 1,325 945 1,325
HKD medium term debt 445 542 445 542
JPY medium term devl 533 1490 533 140
NZD medium term debt 172 150 172 150
SGD medium term debt 43 - 43 -
USD medium term debt - 5848 6,789 1,107 791
28,086 27,865 11,488 9,718
Total Bonds and Notes 37,760 34,971 21,160 17,024
Maturity analysls based on remaining term to maturity at 30 September
At call 491 2,830
Less than 3 months 0,442 4373
Between 3 months and 12 months 7.447 6,918
Between 1 year and 5 years 18,022 17,771
After 5 years 2,358 3,279
37,760 34,971




ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

NOTE 26: LOAN CAPITAL

Tler 1 Capital
Converling Preference Shares (CPS 1)
Converting Preference Sharas (CPS I1)

Tier 2 Capital
AUD 100m fixed rate notes due 2013 with first call in 2008
AUD 150m floating rate notes due 2013 with first call in 2008
EUR 250m floating rate noles due 2015 with first call in 2010
AUD 225m fixed rate notas due 2016 with first call in 2011
AUD 75m floating rate notes due 2016 with first call in 2011
AUD 200m floating rate notes due 2017 with first call in 2012
CAD 250m fixed rate notes duae 2017 with first callin 2012
AUD 125m fioating rate notes due 2018 with first call in 2013
AUD 625m fixed rate notes due 2018 with first call in 2013
USD 400m fixed rate notes due 2015

Total Loan Capital

Maturity analysis based on remalning term to maturity at 30 Soptember

At call

Between 3 months and 12 months
Between 1 year and & years

After 5 years

NOTE 27: BILLS PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Bills payable
Sundry creditors and accruals

RS T —
2008 2007 2008 2007
M M M M
323 322 323 322
396 - 396 -
719 322 719 322
- 102 - 102
- 151 - 151
445 403 445 403
226 226 226 226
76 76 76 76
200 200 200 200
300 289 300 289
127 - 127 -
647 - 647 -
505 462 505 4652
2,526 1,909 2,526 1,909
3,245 2,231 3,245 2,231
43 18
. 247
2,745 1,493
457 473
3,245 2,231
[~ = Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
™ M ™M M
425 224 425 224
485 544 315 410
890 768 740 634
78



ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

NOTE 28: SHARE CAPITAL

Fully paid ordinary shares {a)

Treasury shares (a)

3,500,000 fully paid SAINTS {2007: 3,500,000)
1,500,000 Step-up preference shares (2007; 1,500,000}
General reserve

lesued and uncalled capltal
Borrowers' shares unpaid
Depositors' shares unpaid

{a} Movements in ordinary share capital
Opening balance
Perpetual note conversion
Issue of shares pursuant to share purchase plan
Issue of shares pursuant to private placement (net of issuance costs}
Issus of shares on 2 July 2008 pursuant to DRP at $27.79
Issue of shares on 19 December 2007 pursuant to DRP at $34.62
Issue of shares on 3 July 2007 pursuant to DRP at $35.55 per share
tssue of shares on 19 December 2006 pursuant to DRP at $32.33
tssue of shares on exercise of options
Issue of shares pursuant to Employee Reward Shara Pian "

Issue of shares pursuant to Executive Performance Share Plan ™
Closing balance

(1) Equity value recognised in equity compensation reserve.

T .
2008 2007 2008 2007
M M M M
5,133 4,051 5,133 4,051
(10) (10} - -
345 345 345 345
148 148 148 148
15 15 15 15.
5.831 4,549 5,841 4,559
2008 2007 2008 2007
M M No. of shares  No. of shares
- - 2,213 2,765
- - 193,654 206,047
4,041 3,868 532,231,095 526,247,360
- 14 - 407,280
85 - 3,452,467 -
759 - 21,900,000 -
151 - 5,464,129 -
76 - 2,203,980 -
- 87 - 1,879,122
- 75 - 2,330,709
11 17 503,891 926,980
- - 191,802 219,878
- - 250,690 219,756
5,123 4,041 566,198,054 532,231,095
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

NOTE 29: RESERVES

Depositors’ and borrowers’ redemption roserve
Opening balance

Add net transfers from retained profils

Closing balance

Foreign currency translation reserve
Opening balance

Currency transiation differences
Closing balance

Cash fiow hedge reserve
Opening balance

Gains and losses on cash flow hedging {net of tax):

Recognised in equity
Transferred to income statement
Closing balance

Equity compensation reserve
Opening balance

Expense for the year

Closing balance

Available for sale reserve
Opening balance

Losses on available for sale investments (net of tax):

Recognised in equity
Closing balance

Geoneral reserve for credit losses !
Opening balance

Current pericd movement appropriated from retained profits

Closing balance

Total reserves

i Sat—

2008 2007 2008 2007
™ $M ‘$M $M
2 2 2 2

2 2 2 2

8} (1) - -
() (1) - -

47 - 53 {1}
{(167) 45 (174) 53
4 1 4 1
{116) 47 {117) 53
41 29 39 27
14 12 14 12
55 41 53 39

1 4 - .
{31) (3) (7} -
{30) 1 {7) -
153 117 177 141
52 36 38 36
208 153 215 177
115 243 146 27

(1) The after tax equivalent of the “eligible” component of the collective provision and the balance of the general reserve for credit losses

represents 0.54% of risk weighted assels {2007: 0.50%).
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

NOTE 30: RETAINED PROFITS

T3
2008 2007 2008 2007
M M M M
Opening balance 1,088 798 1,115 923
Defined benefit plan actuarial (losses)/gains (5) 2 (5} 2
Net profit attributable to shareholders of the Bank 1.205 1,190 1,031 1,094
Total available for appropriation 2,286 1,990 2,141 2,018
Transfer to general reserve for credit losses (52) (36) (38) (36)
Interim dividend - cash component (343) (368) {343) (368)
tnterim dividend - dividend reinvestment plan {151} &7} {151} 67)
Final dividend - cash component (383) (331) (383) {331)
Final dividend - dividend reinvestiment plan (76) (75) (76) (75)
Preference share dividends (31 (27) {31) (27)
Closing balance 1,250 1,088 1,119 1,115

NOTE 31: EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO MINORITY INTERESTS

2008 2007
M M
Share capital 2 2
Accumulated profit 5 e
7 []

Movements in accumulated profiti{iosa)

Opening balance 4 {18)
Redempticn of perpetual notes - 20
Minority share of profit for year 1 2
Closing balance 5 4

Minority Interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated Income Statement and Balance Sheet
respectively.

Minority interests comprise ordinary shares issued by St.George Motor Finance Limited.
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

NOTE 32: REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

Details of the amounts paid to the auditor of the Bank, KPMG and its related practices, for audit and non-audit related services provided during
the year are set out below.

[ B ]
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ '000 $'000 §'000 §'000
Audlt services
Amounts paid, or due and payable to auditors of the Bank (KPMG) for:
Audit and review servicas of consolidated financial statements 1,594 2,099 906 1,138
Audit and review of managed funds activities 1,510 2177 - -
Audit services in accordance with regulatory requirements @ 1,700 1,003 228 337
4,804 5279 1,134 1,475
Qther services
Other assurance services = 959 283 959 283
Taxation compliance services in respect of managed funds 283 83 - -
Taxation and compliance services in respect of consolidated entities a 809 931 761
Other © 839 74 839 74
3,012 1,249 2,729 1,118
Total remuneration 7,816 6,528 3,863 2,593
(a) Includes prudential supervision reviews for APRA, Basel Ul application reviews, audits of securitisation trusts, audit of workers
compensation and Australian Financial Services Licences.
(b} Includes debt and capital raisings.
{c) Primarily relates to payment for technical advice.
{d) The basis of presentation of remuneration of auditors has changed during 2008. Prior year comparatives have been adjusted to
reflect this change.

The amounts paid for other services are in accordance with the Group's audit independence policy as outlined in the Corporate Governance
Statement. The Board Audit Committee has considered the other services provided by KPMG and is satisfied that the nature of the services
and the amount of fees pald are appropriate in terms of maintaining auditors’ independence.

NOTE 33: SHARE AND OPTION PLANS
(A) EMPLOYEE REWARD SHARE PLAN (REWARD PLAN)

The Reward Plan provides eligible employees with up to $1,000 worth of fully paid ordinary Bank shares per annum for nil consideration.

Generally, shares are granted to employees in November each year, providing the performance targets for the preceding financial year to 30
September have been mel.

Shares issued under the Reward Plan cannot be sold until three years afler allotment or at the time the participant ceases employment with the
Group.

The number of shares allocated to each participant is calculated by taking $1,000 divided by the volume weighted average share price (VWAP).

The VWAP is based on the share price and frading volumes on the five trading days prior 1o the allolment date, rounded down to the nearest
whole share.

Generally, full-time, part-time, fixed term and casual staff with 12 months or more service with the Group are eligible 1o participate in the Reward
Plan each year, provided they are still emplayed by the Group on the relevan! allotment date.

Allotments under the Rewand Plan are subject to the achievement of predetermined performance targets as set by the Board and communicated
to staff prior to the commencement of each financiat year, '

The performance targets in the 30 September 2007 year were as follows:
Subject to Board discretion,
(1) Cash EPS (which is defined as profit after tax, preference dividends and minority interests before goodwill, significant items, hedging
and non-trading derivatives) equals or exceeds the EPS of the previous year by 10% or more, then 60% of the shares will be granted;
and

(2) Customer service: Obtaining an overall Group Customer Satisfaction rating of at least 74%, then 40% of the shares will be granted.

82
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

On 27 October 2008 the Board appraved that grants of $1,000 worth of S1.George shares would be made to eligible employees for performance
during the 2008 year. The grants will ba made in November 2008.

The fair value of shares granted under the Reward Plan are recognised as an expense in the Group’s Income Statement over the 12 month
period commencing on 1 October each year, The falr value of shares granted has been determined by discounting the share price at grant date
by the dividends paid by the Bank during the vesting period when thay ame not received by the participant. The expense for the 30 September
2008 financial year was $8.105 million (30 September 2007: $5.519 million). In November 2007, 191,802 {November 2008; 219,878) shares
were issued in relation to the Reward Plan. A tolal of 7,377 {November 2006: 7,582) staff participated in this offer, with each participant
receiving 26 (November 2008: 29) fully paid ordinary shares based on the offer amount of $1,000 for nil consideration. The shares had a
volume weighted average price (VWAP) of $37.17 per share (November 2006: $33.89) at the allotment date.

(B) EMPLOYEE SHARE PURCHASE PLAN (PURCHASE PLAN)

All permanent employees are eligible to participate in the Purchase Plan, Participants are given the opportunity during the year to nominate an
amount of their pre-tax remuneralion to purchase fully paid ordinary shares in the Bank. Participants may nominate up to 20% of their Total
Employment Cost (if they have continuous service of at least one year at any relevant share acquisition date) and 100% of their Short Term
Incentive Qppartunity (less any compulsory superannuation) towards the purchase of shares. Shares are acquired on markel. Brokerage is
subsidised by the Bank. Participants may elect to acquire shares under the Purchase Plan as unrestricted, restricted for 4 years or restricted for
10 years. Where the shares are restricted, they may not be sold or transferred until the period of restriction is lifted or at the time the participant
ceases employment with the Group. Shares purchased under this Plan are expensed in the Group's Income Statement.

Details of ordinary shares allocated under the Purchasa Plan are as follows:

Number of Fair value of shares

Number of ordinary amployoes acquired
Date of allocation shares allocated participating $
2008 year
22 November 2007 116,678 268 36.30
30 May 2008 14,620 64 32.75
Total 131,298 332
2007 year
24 November 2006 103,710 257 33.76
18 May 2007 10,259 75 36.90
Total 113,969 332
(C) OVERVIEW

Long Term Incentive {LT1) is delivered to the Managing Director and Group Execulives in the form of Awards under the Exscutive Performance

Share Plan (Performance Pian) and Options under the Executive Option Plan (Option Plan). Both plans were approved by Shareholders on 3
February 1998,

Medium Tarm Incentive (MT1) is delivered to other senior executives in the form of Awards under the Performance Plan.

Deferred Short Term Incentive (STIDO) is also delivered 1o the Managing Director, Group Executives and senior executives in the form of
Awards under the Performance Plan.

(D) EXECUTIVE PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN (PERFORMANCE PLAN)

Awards are granted under the Performance Plan. An Award is a right to acquire an ordinary St.George share for nil consideration subject to
specified hurdies being satisfied.

The Managing Director, Group Executives and other Senior Executives are eligible to be invited to participate in the Performance Plan to
receive LTI, MTl or STIDO Awards.

LTI and MTI Awards are subject to tenure and performance hurdles approved by the Board from lime o time and reward performance over
periods of between of two to four years, An overview of the performance hurdlas for LTI Awards and Oplions and MTI Awards is outlined in the
tables below. The existing performance conditions are based on the achlevement of Cash EPS or Total Shareholder Retumn (“TSR”) outcomes

over the measurement period, and provide for substantial compound growth in St.George's Cash EPS as well as an appropriate market
focussed TSR hurdle.
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
‘NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

Awards are generally forfeited if a participant leaves the Bank before the end of the relevant vesting period. In accordance with the rules of the
Parformance Plan the Board retains overall discretion to waive all or part of the exercise conditions of Awards, For example, the Board could
exercise lts discration where certain events ocgur, such as redundancy, retirement or death.

STIDO Awards are deferred Short Term Incentive. Participants are entitied to receive dividend distribution payments following the Board's
determination of thelr individual performance. The grant date for the STIDO is 1 October each year, being the commencament of the STIDO
performance period, though the paricipant must remain an employee of the Bank for the duration of a three year period in order for the
beneficial interest in the shares to be transferred to them.

STIDO Awards are generally forfeited if a participant leaves the Bank before the end of the three year vesting period and the dividend
distribution payment ceases. In circumstances where the Board exercises its discretion to walive this condition, for example redundancy,
retirement or death, the awards will be transferred at the end of the relevant three year period or earlier at the Beard's discretion.

In accordance with the rules of the Performance Plan and as approved by shareholders, share allocations to satisfy the exercise of Awards may
occur by either allotment or by purchase on market. The Board will determine the most appropriate basis of allocation.

The fair value of awards granted under the Performance Plan is recognised as an expense in the Group's Income Statement over the vesting
period of the awards. The fair value is discounted for estimated forfeitures. The fair value is determined on the following bases:

(1)  Shares issued or shares purchased on market on satisfaction of non-market retated performance hurdles - prevailing market price at
grant date for grants before 1 October 2005. For grants after this date, the fair value has been discounted for the present value of
dividends paid by the Bank during the vesting period when they are not received by the participant.

(2) Shares purchased or shares issued on satisfaction of market related performance hurdles ~ the fair value has been determined
using the binomial method at the grant date.

As at 30 September 2008, there were 100 (30 September 2007: 85) participants in the Performance Plan. Awards are granted for no
consideration at prevailing market prices.

Awards granted prior to 7 November 2002 and/or those awards that vested before 1 January 2005, have not been expensed in accordance with
the transitional provisions of AASB 1 First-time Adaption of Australian Equivalents to intemational Financial Reporting Standards. The expense
recognised during the year in respect of the Performance Plan was $7.558 million {30 September 2007: $5.286 million).

For awards granted on 1 Oclober 2005, shares have been purchased on market and are held in trust until applicable performance hurdles have
been satisfied. For all other awards, shares will be issued by the Bank on satisfaction of the applicable performance hurdles.

The following is a summary of awards that have been granted under this plan:

Number of Number u;l

awards awards

2008 2007
Outstanding at start of financial year 666,965 657,487
Granted 269,300 350,462
Forfeited {52,948) (121,238)

Exercised (250,690) (219,756)
Outstanding at end of financial year 6326827 666,965
Exercisable at end of financia! year 140,827 193,733

For awards exercised during the financial year, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise was $35.96 (2007: $33.62).
For awards outstanding at the end of the financial year, the weighted average remaining contractual life was 3.9 years (2007: 4.2 years).
Awards granted during the financial year had a weighled average fair value of $32.09 (2007: $27.67).
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND (TS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

{E} EXECUTIVE OPTION PLAN (OPTION PLAN)

Options are granted under the Oplion Plan. Qptions are a right to acquire an ordinary St.George share in the future upon the payment of an
exercise price and subject to specified hurdies being satisfied. The exercise price represents the market value of the Bank's crdinary shares at

the grant date. The market vaiue is calculated using the Volume Weighted Average Price (VWAP) fraded during the five trading days prior to
and including the grant dats.

The Managing Director and Group Executives are eligible to participate in the Executive Option Plan to receive LTI Options.

The LT) Options do not grant rights to the option holders to participate in a share issue of any other body corporate. Non-Executive Directors
are not eligible to participate in the plan.

LTI Options are subject to tenure and performance hurdles approved by the Board from time to time and reward performance over periods of
between of two to four years. An averview of the performance hurdles for LTI Awards and Options and MT| Awards is outlined in the tables
below. The existing performance conditions are based on the achievement of Cash EPS or Total Shareholder Return (“TSR™) gutcomes over

the measurement period, and provide for substantial compound growth in St.George’s Cash EPS as well as an appropriate market focussed
TSR hurdle.

The following is a summary of options that have been granted under this plan:

Waighted Weighted

Numbar of avarage exarcize Number of average exarclssl

options prica optlons price

2008 2008 2007 2007

$ $
Qutstanding at start of financial year 1,465,311 24,92 2,407,501 2131
Granted 364,833 K| 423,236 30.23
Forfeited {238,764} 27.23 (438 436} 2363
Exercised (503,891) 22.44 {626,990} 18.58
Qutstanding at end of financial year 1,087,489 20.18 1,465,311 ’ 24,92
{Exercisable at end of financial year 516,885 24.33 711,223 22.41

For options exercised during the financial year, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise was $36.27 (2007: $33.81).

For options outstanding at the end of the financial year, the range of exercise prices was $20.40 to $37.18 (2007: $16.91 to $35.09) and the
weighted average remaining contractual life was 3.5 years (2007: 3.6 years).

The fair value of services received in retumn for options granted is based upon the fair value of options granted, measured using a binomial
method. Options granted during the financial year had a weighted average fair value of $4.30 (2007: $3.16). The fair value of options granted
during the year was determined using the following inputs:

Date first  Fair valuo per Price of shares Estimated Risk-ree Expectod life|
Grant Date  exercisable option Exercise price on grant date volatility  interest rate Dividend yleld {years)
$ $ 3 % % %
2008
01-0ct-07 30-Sep-02 384 34.00 35.40 15.70 6.46 5.06 2.50
01-Oct-07 3D-Sep-10 4.34 34.60 35.40 15.70 647 5.08 3.50
01-O0ct-07 30-Sep-14 475 3499 3540 15.70 .45 508 4.50
13-Nov-07 30-Sap-09 405 37.18 37.42 18.20 8.71 4.82 2.38
13-Nov07 30-Sep-10 472 arte 37.42 16.20 8.82 4.82 3.38
13-NovO? 3-Sep-11 5.05 kYA IT4A2 18.20 8.49 4.82 439
02-Jur-08 30-Sep-09 £07 3275 31.95 23.70 6.83 5.51 1.83
02-Jun-08 30-Sep-10 483 32.75 31.95 23.70 8.72 5.52 2.83
02-Jun-0b 30-Sep-11 5.28 32.75 31.95 23.70 B.63 552 kR x)
2007

01-Oct-08 30-Sep-08 268 20.99 30.24 14,70 5.87 5.08 2.50
01-Oct-08 30-Sep-09 319 20.99 30.24 14.70 5.18 5.08 3.50
01-Oct-08 30-Sep-10 345 2g.99 30.24 14.70 572 5.08 4.50
16-Jun-07 30-Sep-08 290 35.08 34.80 14.30 8.38 4.87 2.50
16-Jun-97 30-Sep-08 355 35.00 34.80 14.30 6.38 487 3.50
16~Jun-07 30-Sep-10 4.00 35.09 34.80 14.30 6.34 4.87 4.50

The fair value of options granted is recognised as an expense in the Group's lncome Statement aver the vesting period. An expense of $0.635
million (30 Septemnber 2007: $1.101 million) was recognised during the year.

During the financial year, 503,891 ordinary shares were issued following the exercise of 503,881 options. No amounts remain unpaid on any of
these shares. The market value of shares issued during the year as a resull of the exercise of these options as at 30 September 2008 was $14
million (30 September 2007: $33 million).

The market value of shares that could be issued from the exercise of outstanding options at 30 September 2008 is $31 million (30 September

2007: $52 million).
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The performance hurdles for LT! and MTI Awards and Options are summarised in the tables below:

LT1 Plan awards and options granted from 1 October 2007

Instrument

Performance Awards and Options

EPS compound growth > 10% 100% vests
TSR > 75 percent of the Financial Services
Comparator Group (FSCG) 100% vests
Performance
measurement TSR = 50 percent of FSCG 50% only vests
Additional 2% vest for each full 1% increase
TSR > 50 percent but < 75 percent of FSCG above the 50™ percentile (on a straight line basis)
up to 100% at the 75™ percentile.
Performance EPS — at the end of the performanca period then annually until the fifth anniversary of the grant date.
testing TSR - at the end of the performance period then six monthly until the fifth anniversary of the grant date.
Securities will lapse if a Group Executive leaves the Group due to resignation or dismissal before the
Lapse of vesting date. In circurnstances of redundancy, retirement or death, the Group Executiva or their estate may
securities be entitled to exercise some or all of the securities, subject to the satisfaction of relevant performance
conditions.
Expiry date of
securilies 6 years from grant date.
Comparator CBA, Westpac, NAB, ANZ, QBE, Macquarie Bank, AMP, Suncorp-Metway, AXA Asia Pacific Holdings, |IAG,
group Bendigo and Adelaide Bank, Perpetual, Bank of Queensland. Weighted by market capitalisation.

LT! Pian options and awards granted between 1 October 2006 and 30 September 2007,

Instrument Performance Awards and Options
EPS compound growth > 10% 100% vests
TSR > 75" percentile of S&P ASX 50 index 100% vests
Performance
measurement
TSR > S&P ASX 50 index but < 75" percentile of S&P
ASX 50 index 50% only vests
Performance EPS - at the end of the performance period then annually until the fifth anniversary of thg grant date.
testing TSR —at the end of the performance period then quarterty until the fifth anniversary of the grant date.
Securities will apse if 3 Group Executive leaves the Group due to resignation or dismissal before the
Lapse of vesting date. In circumstances of redundancy, retirement or death, the Group Executive or their estate may
securities be entitled to exercise some or all of the securities, subject to the satisfaction of relevant performance
conditions.
Expiry date of
securities 8 years from grant date.
Comparator .
ASX top 50 companies.
group p pa
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LTI Plan options and awards granted between 1 October 2004 and 30 September 2006

Instrument

Performance Awards and Options

EPS compound growth > 10% 100% vests
TSR > 75" percentile of S&P ASX 50 index 100% vests
Performance
measurement
TSR > S&P ASX 50 index but < 75" percentile of S&P
ASX 50 index 50% only vests
Performance EPS - at the end of the performance period then annually until the fifth anniversary of the grant date.
testing TSR - at the end of the performance period then monthly until the fifth anniversary of the grant date.
Securities will [apse if a Group Executive leaves the Group due to resignation or dismissal befere the
Lapse of vesting date. In circumstances of redundancy, retirement or death, the Group Execulive or their estate may
securities be entitled to exercise some or ali of the securities, subject ta the satisfaction of relevant performance
conditions.
Expiry date of
securities 6 years from grant date.
Comparator .
group ASX top 50 companies.

LTI Plan options and awards granted from 1 October 2003 to 30 September 2004

Instrument Performance Awards and Options
1. EPS compound growth > 10%, or 50% vests
Performance EPS actual growth > 10% in year prior to
measurement exercise date only 50% vesls
2. TSR=>S&P ASX 50 index Remaining 50% only vests
Performance EPS ~ at the end of the performance period then annually until the fifth anniversary of the grant date.
testing TSR -~ at the end of the performance period then monthly until the fifth anniversary of the grant date.
Securities will lapse if a Group Executive leaves the Group due to resignation or dismissal before the
Lapse of vesting date. In circumstances of redundancy, retirement or death, the Group Executive or their estate may
securities be entitled o exercise some or all of the securities, subject to the satisfaction of relevant performance
conditions.
Expiry date of
securities © years from grant date.
Comparator .
group ASX top 50 companies.

(F) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' SHARE PURCHASE PLAN (DIRECTORS' PLAN)

All Non-Executive Directors are eligible to participate in the Directors’” Plan. Each financial year, Non-Executive Directors are provided with the
opportunity to contribule a part or all of their pre-tax remuneration from the Group to acquire fully paid ordinary shares in the Bank. Shares are

acquired at prevailing market prices and brokerage fees are payable by the Bank. Shares purchased under the Directors’ Plan are expensed in
the Group's Income Stalement.

During the year, 5 (30 September 2007: 4) Non-Executive Directors were allocated 14,793 shares (30 September 2007: 10,172) that were
acquired on market at an average purchase price of $36.30 per share (30 September 2007: $34.00).
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NOTE 34: AVERAGE BALANCES AND RELATED INTEREST

The foliowing table shows the major categories of interest eaming assets and interest bearing liabilities and the respective interest rates eamed
or paid by the Group for the years indicated. Averages are month-end averages, which are not materially different from daily averages.

FErs 2007 — ]
Average Average Average Average
balance Interest rate balance Interest rate
$M ™ % $M $M %
Interest earning assets
Cash and liquid assets 1,821 109 5.67 1,078 52 482
Receivables due from other financial institutions 1,329 84 6.32 1,489 82 5.51
Assets at fair value 13,728 976 7.1 7,899 491 6.14
Loans and other receivables 112,417 9,541 8.49 98,285 7,578 7.71
Total interest earning assels 129,395 10,710 8.28 108,851 8,203 7.54
Non interest earning assets
Bills receivable 43 23
Property, plant and equipment 339 333
Qther assets 5,904 4805
Provision for doubtful debts (361) (323)
Total non interest earning assets 5,925 4,838
Total assets 135,320 113,689
Interest bearing liabllities
Retail funding 50,303 2,831 563 43,725 2,088 478
Other deposits 17,680 1,288 7.29 10,708 665 6.21
Payables due to other financial institutions 1,234 72 5.83 509 26 5.11
Bank acceplances 5,252 383 7.29 6,492 408 6.28
Securitisation (") 18,339 1,388 7.57 20,052 1,328 6.62
Loan capital 2,093 169 8.07 1,963 129 6.57
Other borrowings(" @ 20523 2,106 7.13 21,385 1,366 6.39
Total interest bearing liabilities 124,424 8,237 6.62 104,834 6,010 5.73
Non interest hearing liabilitles
Bills payable 555 193
Other non interest bearing liabilities 3,694 3,153
Total non interest bearing liabilities 4,249 3,346
Total liabilities 128,673 108,180
Sharehotders’ equity 6.647 5,509
= e ——ea——
Total liabllities and sharsholders' equity 135,320 113,689
Interest spread 1.66% 1.81%
interest margin ) 181% 2.01%

(1) Includes foreign exchange swap costs.

(2) Includes the impact of Balance Sheet Management activities.

(3) Basic weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the year were 557.4 million (30 September 2007: 528.9 million).

(4) Interest spread represents the difference between the average interes! rate eamed on assets and the average interest rate paid on funds.

{5) Interest margin represents net interest income as a percentage of average interest eaming assets.
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VOLUME AND RATE ANALYSIS

The table below allocates changes in interest income and interest expense between changes in volume and changes in rate for the years ended
30 September 2008 and 30 September 2007. Volume and rate variances have been calculated on the movement in average balances and the
change in the interest rates on average inlerest eaming assets and average interest bearing liabiliies.

P 7007 over 2006 |

Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total

™ M M M M M
Interest earning assets
Cash and liquid assets 48 9 57 9 5 14
Receivables due from other financial institutions (10) 12 2 13 8 21
Assets at fair value 407 78 485 73 38 111
Loans and other receivables 1,199 764 1,963 906 337 1,243
Change in interest income 1,644 863 2,507 1,001 388 1,389
Interest bearing liabilities
Retail funding 370 373 743 169 140 309
Other deposits 508 115 623 169 100 269
Payables due to other financial institutions 42 4 46 3 4 7
Domestic borrowings - - - 165 66 231
Offshore borrowings - - - 252 143 395
Bank acceptances {90} 65 (25) - - -
Securitisation (130) 190 60 - - -
Loan capital 10 30 40 - - -
Other borrowings 581 159 740 - - -
Change in Interest expense 1,291 936 2,227 758 453 1,211
Change in net interest income 353 {73) 280 243 {65) 178
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NOTE 35: SEGMENTAL RESULTS
BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Business segments are based on the Group's organisational structure. The Group comprises four business divisions, namely:

Retail Bank (RB) - responsible for residential and consumer lending, provision of personal financial services including transaction
services, call and term deposits, small business banking and financial planners. This division manages retail branches, call centres,
agency networks and electronic channels such as EFTPQS terminals, ATMs and Intemet banking.

Institutional and Business Banking (IBB) - responsible for liquidity management, securitisation, wholesale funding, capital markets,
treasury market activities including foreign exchange, money market and derivatives, corporate and business relationship banking,

interational and trade finance banking services, leasing, hire purchase, autometive finance, commercial property lending and cash
{flow finanting, including invoice discounting.

BankSA (BSA) - responsible for providing retail banking, business banking and private banking services to customers in South
Australia and Northemn Temitory. These services have extended into country New South Wales and Victoria as part of the Group’s

initiative to expand rural banking. Customers are serviced through branches, electronic agencies, ATMs, call centres, EFTPOS
terminals and Intemet banking.

Wealth Management (WM) — responsible for providing superannuation and wealth management administration platforms, investment

management and packaging, dealer group services, margin lending, prfivate banking services and general and life insurance.

Segment income Statement for the year ended 30 September 2008 (SM)
institutional &
Business Waealth
Retall Bank Banking BankSA | Management | Other | Consolidatad
Segment revenue
Mat intgrast income 1,228 783 7 94 - 24T
Non interest income 455 223 102 326 26 1,132
Total segmant revenus 1,660 1,008 473 420 28 3,605
Sagment expense
Bad and doubtful debts 143 1] 23 27 - 291
QOparating axpanses
Other provisions 22 s ) 13 79
Depreciation 48 6 10 1 63
Deferred expendiiure amortisatlon 30 3 5 1 - k]
Other expenses 818 248 154 185 67 1,272
Total operating expensas 716 202 1718 200 67 1,453
Total segment expanses 859 390 201 227 67 1,744
Share of profit of equity accounted associates - - - 1 - 1
Profit before Income tax sxpense 824 £18 272 194 (41) 1,862
Income tax axpenasg 656
Minority Interest 1
Profit after Income tax and minorkty intarasts 1,205
Segment Balance Sheet as at 30 September 2008 (SM)
Total Assets 58,208 16,198 147,380
Total Llabilities 84,893 10,387 2,026 140,377
20
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FCR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

Segment Income Statement for the year ended 30 September 2007 ($M)
institutional &

Business Wealth
Retail Bank Banking BankSA | Management| Other | Consolidated

Segment revenue

Net interest income 1,152 619 328 o4 - 2,193
Non interest income 505 166 96 312 13 1,002
Total segment revenue 1,657 785 424 406 13 3,285
Segment expense

Bad and doubtful debts 140 26 1 1 - 178

Operating expenses

Cther provisions a5 30 9 17 - 91
Depreciation 45 ] 9 1 - 61
Deferred expenditure amortisation 22 3 4 1 - 3
Qther expenses a47 234 150 176 - 1,207
Total operating expenses 750 273 172 195 - 1,390
Total segment expenses . 8§50 299 183 198 - 1,568
Profit before income tax expense 787 486 241 210 13 1,717
Income tax expense 525
Minority interest 2
Profit after income tax and minority Interests 1,180

Segment Balance Sheet as at 30 September 2007 ($M)

Total Assets 1,837 125,800

Total Liabilities 1,329 119,416

GEOGRAFPHICAL SEGMENTS
The Group predominantly operates in Australia.
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NOTE 36: DEED OF CROSS GUARANTEE

Pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418 (as amended) dated 13 August 1998, the wholly owned subsidiaries listed below are relieved from the
Corporations Act 2001 requirements for preparation, audit and lodgement of financial reports, and Directors’ reports.

It is a condition of the Class Order that the Bank and each of the subsidiaries enter into a Deed of Cross Guarantee. The effect of the Deed is
that the Bank guarantees to each creditor payment in full of any debt in the event of winding up of any of the subsidiaries under certain
provisions of the Corporations Act 2001. If a winding up occurs under other provisions of the Act, the Bank will only be liable in the event that
after six months any creditor has not been paid in full. The subsidiaries have also given similar guarantees in the event that the Bank is wound
up.
The subsidiaries subject to the Deed are:

+»  St.George Financial Services Limited

«  Advance Leasing Limited

«  Canberra Advance Property Limited

+«  Crusade Management Limited

A consolidated Income Slatement and consolidated Balance Sheet, comprising the Bank and the controlled entities that are a party to the Deed,
after efiminating all transactions between parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee, at 30 September is set out below:

SUMMARISED INCOME STATEMENT AND RETAINED PROFITS

2008 2007
For the year ended 30 September M M
Profit before tax 1,764 1,503
Income tax expense {626) (403)
Profit after tax 1,138 1,100
Retained profits at the beginning of the year 1,026 828
Actuarial {losses)/gains from defined benefit superannuation plan (5) 2
Transfer to reserve (38) (36)
Dividends recoghised during the year (984) (868}
Retained profits at the end of the year 1,137 1,026
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BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS
Cash and liquid assets
Receivables due from other financial institutions
Assets at fair value through the income Statement
Derivative assets -
Available for sale investments
Loans and other receivables
Bank acceptances of customers
Investment in controlled entities
Amounts receivable from controlled entities
Investments in associated companies
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
QOther assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Deposits and other borrowings
Payabtes due to other financial institutions
Derivative liabilities
Bank acceptances
Provision for dividends
Amounts payable to controlied entities
Current tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Other provisions
Bonds and notes
Loan capital
Bills payable and other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves
Retained profits

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Consolidated

2008 2007
™ $M
2,672 2,081
185 625
15,680 11,475
3,048 1,158
2,210 1
77,415 65,878
22,263 16,343
1,194 1,552
4,309 4,710
25 25

312 327
1,118 1.069
227 221
649 813
131,317 106,278
90,213 70.476
1,786 1.013
1,826 1,993
3,970 6,348
3 2
1,259 414
56 90

4 89

131 108
21,160 17,024
3,245 223
740 634
124,393 100,422
6,924 5,856
5,641 4,559
146 27
1,137 1,026
6,924 5,856
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NOTE 37: COMMITMENTS

Consolidated [ 2" Bank . )
2008 2007 2008 2007
M M M M
Capital commitments

Less than one year - 10 14 10 14

Non-cumulative operating leases axpiring
Less than one year a0 84 84 79
Betwean one and five years 2% 220 273 202
More than five years 161 156 158 151
542 460 515 432

The Group leases a number of commercial buildings and computer hardware under operating leases. The lease terms typically run for a period
of five years for buildings and three years for computer hardware.

NOTE 38: LIABILITY FOR DEFINED BENEFIT FUND OBLIGATION

The Group makes contributions to multiple superannuation funds in accordance with “Superannuation Choice of Fund®, including the employer
sponsored fund which has two defined benefit sections with 1681 members in total. No new members are accepted into these defined benefit
sections. All employees who are members of these defined benefit sections are entifled to benefits on retirement, disability or death. The
defined benefit sections guarantee lump sum benefits based on years of service and final average salary. The defined contribution section of
the fund receives fixed conltributions from the Bank and certain controlled entities, and the Group’s tegal or constructive obligation is limited to
these contributions.

The following sets out details in respect of the defined benefit sections only.

Consolidated | % " "Bank 7]

2008 2007 2008 2007

M ™ M M

Present value of defined benefit obligation 53 59 53 59
Fair value of plan assets 45 58 45 58
Deficit in the plan 8 1 8 1
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

NOTE 40: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group in its daily operations is exposed to a range of risks including credit risk, liquidity and funding risk, market risk and operational risk

{including fraud, theft and property damage). These risks are managed through specialised committees responsible for policy setting and
monitoring and analysing risk.

A Risk Management Governance Framework is embedded in the business. It incorporates:
. Corperate Govemnance Framework for the Board and its Committees and the Group Executive and its Management Committees;

. A Risk Appetite Statement approved by the Board and integrated in the strategic and operational ptanning processes;
. The identification and managemem of the major risk categories to the Group;

. Key policies and processes to manage risk and provide reliable and consistent results; and

. Capital planning and management, which includes Economic Capilal modelling and management,

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the potential for loss arising from a debtor or counterparty fafling to meet their financial contractual obiigations. This risk is inherent
in the Group's lending activities, as well as lransactions involving derivatives and foreign exchange.

The Board of Directors has delegated responsibility for the management of credit rigk to the Board Rigk Management Committee (‘BRMC™) and
Management Credit Committee (“MCC"). Reporting to these Commitiees is a specialised Group Credit division, under the direction of the Chief

Risk Officer, which is responsible for the oversight and management of the Group's credil risk together with representatives from the business
divisions.

Credit risk is managed principally through embedded controls upon individual lending divisions and business managers who are responsible for
the lending. Lending is carried out within the parameters of lending policies (covering approvals, documentation and management), which have
been developed having regard to statistical data and histerical risk experience.

To maintain the guality of the lending portfolio, prudential standards and lending policies have been established throughout the Group. Credit
precesses are typically structured so that loan origination, approval, document preparation, settiernent and actount monitoring and control are
segregated to different individuals or areas. Credit must be evaluated against established credit policies and within authorities and be
structured, particularly in terms of security, to be prudent for the risk incurred.

The Group Credit division is responsible for the following functions:

. Formulating and monitoring compliance with credit policies in relation to credit assessment, risk grading and reporting, collateral
requirements, documentary and legal procedures and compliance with regulatory requirements. Through its credit inspection funcfion,

Group Credit tests internal controls and adherence to credit policies and procedures that are standard throughout the Group and
contained in credit manuals administered by Group Credit.

. Eslablishing lending authorities for the approval of credit facilities. Lending authorities are delegated 1o business division staff. The Group
Credit division assesses credit beyond the lending authorities of business divisions and/or outside normal Group Credit policies or
guidelines, Facilities outside Group Credit's delegated authorities are approved by the MCC or BRMC as appropriate.

. Developing and maintaining credit risk assessment criteria. The Group applies standard credit risk assessment criteria to all extensions of
credit, from credit scoring systems for basic retail products to a more detailed credit assessment for commercial and trade related
transaclions. Standard risk grading methodologies for commercial lending are set at the transaction level and drive pricing decisions, The
Portfolio Management Function within Group Credit monitors and refines proprietary risk grading systems. The quantification of credit risk
is performed by analytical tools and models, which provide estimates of Probability of Default, Loss Given Default and Exposure at Default
across retail and commercial exposures. The outputs of the models provide input to expected and unexpected loss calculations, levels of
collective provisions, Economic Capital estimates and a variety of operational credit decisions. The Portfolio Management Unit within
Group Credit oversees the development and monitoring of the models and adherence to policy.

. Monitoring and reporting on credit risk within the portfolio. Intemal Nimits are used to assist with the diversification of the portfolio. These
include limits on counterparties, individual securities or developments, industries, geographies and retail products. {ntema! limits are
approved by the Bank's Board Risk Management Committee. St.George manages concentration risk through a set of limits and
associated policies which control lending to industry segments, individual large exposures, geographic areas, risk grades and products.
The objective is lo ensure that no single exposure or set of exposures is large encugh to threaten the ongoing viability of the Bank. The
management of concentration risk forms a key component of the overall risk appetite of the Bank. Group Credit regularly reports on
compliance with these intemal limits to the MCC and BRMC and the status of large impaired-assets, amears and trend analysis,
compliance reports, porifolio analysis and all exposures above $50 million,

* Provisioning for impaired assets. Group Credit assesses provision requirements where loan default has occurred and also controls the
_Loans Management Unit, which manages large impaired assets with the aim of achieving the optimum result from such assets.
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Maximum exposure to credit risk

The following table presents the maximum exposure to credit risk of balance sheet and off balance sheet financial instruments (including
financial guarantees and loan commitments), before the benefit of any collateral or other credit enhancements, except where the requirements
for offsetting financial assets and liabilities contained in note 1{BB) have been satisfied. For on balance sheet financial assets, the exposure to
credit risk equals their camying amounts, For financial guarantees granted, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount that
would have to be paid if the guarantees are called upon. Loan commitments represent the unused portions of authorisations to extend credit in
the form of loans. For loan commitments and other credil commitments that are imevocable over the life of the facility, the maximum exposure
{o credit risk is the full amount of the committed facilities. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments, as most
commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards.

Consolidated i " . Bank . i

2008 2007 2008 2007
&M M S M

On balance sheet
Receivahles due from other financial institutions 305 1,244 185 625
Assets at fair value through the income statement 15,473 11,124 15,676 11,450
Derivative assets 3,389 1,271 3,010 1,154
Available for sale investments 2,745 884 2,189 -
Loans and other receivables (net of provisions) 87,721 80,884 77.415 65,878
Bank acceptances 22,263 16,343 22.263 16,343
141,896 120,750 120,738 95,450

Off balance sheet
Financial guarantees 1,362 1,028 1,362 1,026
Loan commitments 26,224 22,502 26,696 22,888
. 27,586 23,528 28,058 23,914
Total exposure (! 169,482 144,278 148,796 119,364

{1) Maximum credit exposure before considering collateral held or other credit enhancements available.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group mitigates its credit risk through holding collateral against certain types of customer lending, which is an important mitigant of credit
risk. The Group regularly reviews its policies and procedures in relation to the acceptability of specific classes of collateral or ¢redit risk mitigant
and their valuation guidelines. The principal types of collateral or other credit enhancements held by the Group include:

+  Mortgages over residential properties.
¢«  Charges over business assets or properties being financed for commerciat lending.

The Group performs an assessment of the value of any collateral or other credit enhancements oblained as part of its credit risk evaluation
processes prior to the establishment of a loan facility. In the event of a customer facility being classified as impaired, the Group performs an
assessment of the value of all relevant collateral and cther credit enhancements in order to determine the required amount of any specific loan
impairment provision. The Group does not disclose the fair vatue of collateral held as security or other credit enhancements for past due loans

and receivables as it is not practicable to do so. The fair value of collateral held as security for impaired loans is disclosed below at {iii) Impaired
Financial Assets.

Debt securities and other treasury securities are generally unsecured with the exception of asset backed securities and similar mslruments
which are secured by pools of financial assets.

The ISDA Master Agreement provides a contractual framework for derivatives dealing across a full range of over the counter products. This
agreement contractually binds both parlies to apply close out netting across all outstanding transactions covered by an agreement if either party
defaults or other pre-agreed termination events occur.

Credit quality

The Group’s credit risk grading processes are designed to identify exposures that require closer management attention due to their greater
probability of default and potential loss.

In measuring credit risk, the Group calculates three components (i) the "probability of default” by the counterparty on its contractual obligations;
(ii) the estimated loss amount should the counterparty default (the “loss given default”); and (iii) the estimated exposure amount should the
counterparty default (the “exposure at default™).

The Group assesses the probability of default, loss given default and exposure at default of individual counterparties using grading models and
systems tailored to the various categories of counterparty. The grading models have been developed internally, their outputs are validated
regularly and the models updated when required.
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The Group's credit risk grading models and systems are fundamental to the management of credit risk. Probabliity of default, loss given default,

and exposure at defaull are important Inputs to collective provisioning and economic capital calculations and are used o inform pricing and
other operational credit decisions,

Impaired loans and advances

For individually assessed accounts, loans are trealed as impaired as soon as there is objective evidence that an impaimment loss has been
incurred. The criteria used by the Group to determine if there is any objective evidence of impairment includes:

«  Known cash flow difficuities experienced by the borrower:

Overdue contractual payments of elther principal or interest;

Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

The probability that the borrower will enter bankruptcy; and

A significant downgrading in credii rating by an external credit rating agency.

When impairment losses ate recognised, the camying amount of loans and other receivables is reduced through the use of a provision for
impairment.

All foans and advances that do not have an indhidually assessed provision are collectively assessed for impaiment.
Individually assessed impairment provisions

Individual impaimment provisions are determined by evaluating the exposure to loss on a case-by-case basis. In determining allowances on
individually assessed accounts, the following factors are considered:

»  The Group's aggregate exposure to the customer;

+  The viablility of the customer's business mode! and their capacity to trade successfully out of financial difficulties, generating sufficient cash
fiow to service debt obligations;

The amount and timing of expected receipts and recoveries;

The extent of other creditors’ commitments ranking ahead of, or pari passu, with the Group and the likelihood of other creditors continuing
to support the company; '

The realisable value of security (or other credit mitigants) and likelihood of successful repossession;

The likely dividend avaiiable on liquidation or bankruptcy;

The likely deduction of any costs involved in recovering amounts outstanding; and

When available, the secondary market price of the debt.

- @

Individual impairment provisions are established based primarily on estimates of the realisable value of security and are measured as the

difference between the asset's camying amount and the present value of the expected future cash flows, discounted at the asset’s original
effective interest rate.

Group policy requires the level of impairment allowances on individual fagilities that are above materiality thresholds to be reviewed at least
semi-annually, and more regularly whera circumstances require. The review nomally encompassas collateral held (including re-confirmation of
its enforceability) and an assessment of actual and anticipated receipts. Indlvidually assessed impairment allowances are onfy reversed when
the Group has reasonable and objective evidence of a reduction in the established loss estimate.

Collectively assessed impairment provisions

Collective provisions refiect the estimated amount of losses incurred on a collective basis, but which have yet to be individually identified. The
collective provision is maintained to reduce the carrying amount of portfolios of similar foans and advances to their estimated recoverable
amounts at the balance sheet date. The evaluation process is subject lo a series of estimates and judgements.

The calculation of the Collective Provision requires model estimates of probability of default, exposure at default and loss given default. The
calculation occurs at account level and s aggregated to portfolio leve! for reporting purposes.

Collective provisions are raised when the probabllity of default of a counterparty has increased relative to the probability of defautt at origination.
The size of the collective provision is a function of the model estimates.

Having regard to the economic events that have emerged globally and domestically, the Group recognised an economic cycle adjustment of $48
million (Bank: $48 million) as a charge to the collective provision during the year.
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Credit quality of financial assets

The following table provides an overview of the credit quality of loans and other receivables and recelvables due from other financial institutions.
Assets at fair value through the income statement, derivative assets and avallable for sale investments are not included below and are not
considered to be past due ar impaired.

C Bank ]
2008 2007 2008 2007
M M &M M
Loans and other recelvables!"
Neither past due nor impaired 117,156 103,838 97.437 80,511
Past duea but notimpaired 3,052 2,475 2,475 1,909
tmpaired 181 139 148 a9
Gross carrying amount 120,399 106,552 100,060 82,519
Specific provisions (45) (34) {38) (28)
Collective provisions (370) {291) (344) (270)
Net carrying amount 119,084 106,227 99.678 82,221
Receivables due from other financlal Institutions
Neither past due nor impaired 305 1,244 185 625
Past duve but not impaired - - - -
Impaired - - - -
Gross carrying amount 3ao0s 1,244 185 625

Specific provisions
Collective provisions . - - -
Net carrying amaunt 305 1,244 185 625

{1) Includes bark acceptances.
(i} financial assets neither past due or impaired
The credit quality of loans and other receivables that were neither past due or impaired is shown in the following table.

Consolidated

Housing Consumar Leasing and

Loans Loans Hire Purchase Commercial!’ Qther Total
M M M M M M
As at 30 Septamber 2008
Investment 57.454 71 81 2.882 - 61,368
Pass 13,801 3.113 3,400 20,737 - 50,151
Weak 1,900 235 15 248 - 2,308
Unrated 4260 1,072 - 680 151 3,239
X 73,681 63&1 3 4086 33,637 151 117,156
As at 30 September 2007
nvestment 49,936 1,171 35 2,480 - 53622
Pass 16,201 2,680 2,740 22.818 - 43,419
Weak 2,258 180 8 110 - 2,565
Unrated 278 2,819 - 812 623 4,332
87,873 8,738 2,783 28.120 623 103,938

[ g R S e oy N B R ] : RS
Housing Consumer Laasing and
Loans Loans Hire Pyrchase Commercial™ Other Total
M M ™ M M M
As at 30 Septambeor 2008
Investment 45,284 a7e - 2,800 - 48,960
Pass 12,478 2,015 8 28,212 - 43,711
Wenk 1,742 118 - 2472 - 2,108
Unrated 449 1,967 - 91 151 2.658
58,857 4978 8 32,345 151 97,437
As at 30 September 2007
Investment 34,075 826 - -2,484 - 37.385
FPass 12,849 1,013 50 22,6883 - 37.475
Weak 2,145 168 - 110 - 2,423
Unrated 2886 2,818 - - 118 3,228
40,385 5723 50 2§£57 118 20.511

{1) Includes bank acceptances.

Receivables due from other financial institutions are all classified as investment grade as at 30 September 2008 and 30 September 2007.
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The Group uses its own intemal rating system to assign a Probability of Default to commercial counterparties and uses scorecards to assign a
Probability of Default to retait counterparties.

The Probability of Default rmaps to a risk grade, which is itseff, aligned to the Standard and Poor's risk grading scale.

The Group’s risk grades, which are equivalent 1o the Standard and Poor's investment grads ratings of BBB- and above have been classified as
investment grade. The Group's risk grades equivalent fo the Standard and Poor's risk grades below B- have been classified as ‘weak' with all
other risk grades defined as 'pass’. A relatively small number of exposures are unrated, these mainly relate to margin lending accounts.

The Group's portfolio consists largety of retail counterparties with residential morigages and small and medium size commercial enterprises and
hence a large part of the portfolio does not qualify as investment grade. However, loans to these counterparties are generally fully secured by
residential or commercial property,

{(ii) financial assets that were past due but not impaired

Loans and other receivables where contractual interest or principal payments are past due and where the level of collateral available or the
stage of collection supports the collectibility of the amount owed are not considered to be impaired. Examples of exposures designated as past
due bul not considered impaired include loans fully secured by cash collateral and residential mortgages in arrears more than 90 days, but
where the value of collateral is sufficient to repay both the principal and potential interest for one year. The gross amount of loans and other
receivables thal were past due but not impalred were as follows:;

2008 2007 2008 2007
M $M $M $M
Loans and other receivables
Pastdue 1 to 29 days
Commercial'’ 305 236 229 159
Retail®! 1,307 1,122 1,009 218
1,812 1,358 1,238 Q77
Pastdue 30 to 89 days
Commercial™ 279 234 240 194
Retail® 679 538 544 422
958 772 784 616
Past due 90 days and above
Commercial’’ 218 132 215 132
Retail® 266 213 238 184
482 345 453 316
Gross carrying amount 3,052 2,475 2,475 1,909

(1) Includes bank acceptances

{2) Includes housing, personal loans and credit card receivables

The above ageing analysis includes past due loans and receivables that have collective impalrment provisions to cover credit losses on loans
that are in the early stages of amrears.

No receivables due from other financial institutions were past due as at 30 September 2008 or 30 September 2007.
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{ili) Impaired financial assets

The breakdown of impaired loans and advances and assoclated impairment provisions are as follows:

Impaired loans

R TY.Y SR—
2008 2007 2008 2007
M M $M $M
Nen-performing ioans
Gross loans 191 139 148 99
Less: specific provisions (45) (34) {38) (28)
Netnon-performing loans 146 105 110 71

Renegotiated loans
Gross loans - - - -
Lass: specific provisions - by - =
Net renegotiated loans - b - =

Assats acquired through security enforcemaent
Gross loans - - - -
Less: specific provisions - - - -
Net assets acquired through security enforcement v - - -

Net total Impaired assets 146 105 110 71

Fair value of collateral 146 105 110 71

Individually impaired loans and receivables

The following table prasents an analysis of the gross balance, before taking into consideration collateral held, of individually impaired loans.

T Ea ]

2008 2007 2008 2007

™ $™M ™ M

Housing loans 36 55 20 32
Consumer loans 22 25 13 19
Commercial loans 133 59 115 48
191 139 148 99

Renegotiated loans

Renegotiated loans are facilities whose terms have been renegotiated and would otherwise be classified as past due or impaired.
Renegotiation of customer foans is designed to maximise collection opportunities and, if possible, avoid foreclosure or repossession to maintain
customer refationships. Renegotiated foan policies and processes are malmained and are product specific. At 30 September 2008, the Group
had $NI! (2007: $Nil) and Bank $Nil (2007: $Nil) of renegotiated facilities.

Collateral and other credit enhancements obtained
The Group can obtain assets by laking possession of collateral held as security, or calling upon other credit enhancements.

Where a customer defaults on a facility, the associated security is usually held as mortgagee in possession and as a result, the Group does nol
usually hold real estate or other assels acquired through the enforcement of security.

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practical, with the proceeds used to reduce or repay the outstanding loan balance. Where excess

funds are available after the deb! has been repald, they are available either for other kower priority secured lenders or are retumed to the
customer.

As &t 30 September 2008, the camying amount of collateral or other credit enhancement obtained totalled $Nil (30 September 2007 $Ntl) ona
consolidated basis, and $Nil (30 September 2007 $Nil) for the Bank.
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MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that movements in market risk factors such as interest rates and foreign exchange rates will reduce the Group's income or
the vatue of its portfolios.

Market Risk has two components: general and specific markel risk. General market risk is the potential for losses arising from the adverse
movemants in the general level of market factors such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates, exchange rale volatiiities and interest rate

volatilities. Specific market risk is the potential for losses resulling from issuer specific factors. In St.George's case, specific market risk only
relates lo debt security positions.

The Group separates exposures to market risks into thase atising from trading and non-trading portfolios. Trading portfolios include those
positions arising from market-making, proprietary position-taking and other designated marked to market positions. Non-trading portfolios
primarily arise from the interest rate management of the Group's retail and commercial banking assets and liabilities.

The following sections discuss exposures to market risks on both trading and non-trading portfolios and the policies and processes employed to
manage these risks.

Market risks on trading portfolios

Market risk is controlled by an overall risk management framework that incorporates a number of market risk measurements including Value at
Risk (VaR). VaR is a statistical estimate of losses due to general market price movements, calculated at St.George to a 89% confidence level.
This means that losses greater than our VaR estimate should not occur more than once in 100 days on average. In an exireme event, losses
could well exceed the VaR amount.

St.George uses Monte Carlo simulation fo calculate VaR. This mode! takes into account relevant market variables. It is approved by APRA for
regulatory purposes and is operated within the overall framework outlined in the APRA Prudential Standards.

The following table provides a summary of VaR on trading porifotios by tota) room and by trading unit for the years ended 30 September 2008
and 30 September 2007.

2008 e N | T ]
For the year ended 30 September {$'000) Year end Low High Average Year end Low High Average
Consolidated
Foreign exchange VaR 103 73 1,296 291 357 47 694 213
Domestic VaR 2,501 401 3,327 1.814 836 105 1,359 515
Total room risk 2,482 472 3619 1,855 1,015 234 1,308 556
Bank
Foreign exchange VaR 103 73 1,296 291 357 47 694 213
Domestic VaR 2,501 401 3,327 1,814 836 105 1,359 515
Total room risk 2,482 472 3619 1,855 1,015 234 1,308 556

Note: The table above incorporates all options risk. VaR is calculated at a 99% confidence interval for a one day holding period using end of
day trading positions.

As part of the model validation process, actual and hypothetical profit and loss outcomes are monitored against VaR on a daily basis.
Hypothetical profit and loss uses the same portfolio as the VaR estimate to test the predictive accuracy of the model.

VaR measurements are supplemented by a series of stress tests that are used to capture the possibility of extreme events or market shocks.
Additionally, the market risk framework Includes applying stop-loss limits on all portfolios, basis point sensitivity limits, specific options limits and
control of large or unusual trading activity.

VaR is an important guide to risk, however, it must be considered in light of its limitations:
+  VaR uses the past as a predictor of the future. Whilst the past is not always a good predictor of the future it s, however, the best available;

+  For regulatory and economic capital, VaR is calculated using a 10 day holding period. This assumes that all positions can be liquidated or
hedged within 10 days;

+«  Ata89% confidence level, VaR does not provide information about the size of the losses that will occur on average 1 in 100 days; and

« VaRis calculated based upon close of business exposures, which may not reflect intra-day exposures.

Market risks on non-trading portfolios

Market risk on non-trading portfolios arises from a variety of sources, including mismatches between the repricing periods of assets and
liabilities. The principal objective of market risk management on non-trading portfolios is to minimise eamings fluctuations from volatility in
movements in interest income while maximising shareholder value.

{i} interast rate risk in non-trading activitles

The principal risk to which non-trading portfollos are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash flows or fair values of
financia! instruments because of a change in market Interest rates. Interest rate risk arises from a variety of sources including mismalches
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between the repricing perlod of assets and liabiliies. As a result of these mismatches, movements in interest rates can affect curent and future
period expected net interest income or the value of the Group.

Interest rate risk is monitored by the Bank's Balance Sheet Risk Management unit fo ensure that aggregate exposure to interest rate risk is
contained within policy guidelines and defined limits commensurate with the Bank's “risk appetite” and strategic objectives set by the Bank's
Assel and Liability Committee {ALCO) and overviewed by the Board Risk Management Committee. The Balance Sheet Risk Management unit
reports to ALCO at least monthly. '

The Bank's non-traded interest rate risk management system integrates risk parameters, product design, pricing policies and forecasts of the
balance sheet and yield curve. Key modelling assumptions are regulary reviewed to take into account both histerical relationships and the
current market environment. Measures the Group uses to monitor and report the interest rate risk for non-trading portfolios include VaR, belng
a statistical estimate of losses due to general market price movements, calculated at St.George to a 99% confidence level. This means that
losses greater than our VaR estimate should not occur more than once in 100 days on average, In an extreme event, losses could well exceed
the VaR amount,

The VaR model assumes a ceriain “holding period” untll positions can be closed {5 days). 1i also assumes that market moves occurming over
this holding period will follow a similar pattern to those that have occurred over S-day periods in the past. The Group's gssessment of pasi
movements is based on data for the past 5 years. The Group applies these historical changes in rates directly to its curent positions — a
method known as historical simulation.

To supplement VaR monitoring processes, the Group also utilises stress tests to provide an assessment of the impact of exireme events or
market shocks, on both an earnings and value basis.

The following tabie provides VaR for interest rate risk on non-trading portfolios:

2008 s o 2007 ]
For the year ended 30 September ($'000) Yearend Low High Average Year end Low High Average
Consolidated
Domaestic VaR 8,015 6,856 28,103 15,766 11,007 2,984 27,945 16,703
Bank
Domestic VaR 8,015 6,855 28,103 15,766 11,007 2,984 27,945 16,703

{ii) Foreign exchange risk in non-irading aclivities

The Group's policy is to maintain a hedged position in relation to on-balance sheet forelgn exchange positions,
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LIQUIDITY AND FUNDING RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due without
incurring unacceptable losses. Liquidity rfisk can arise from mismalches in the iming of cash flows from financial ransactions.

The objective of the Group's liquidity risk management is to ensure thal both the expected and unexpected curent future cash flow ang
collateral needs can be met when due or required.

Management of liquidity risk

Liquidity is managed to policies and strategles determined by the Bank's Asset and Liability Committee {ALCO) and overseen and approved by
the Bank's Board. These include:

«  maintaining a core of high quality and readily liquefiable securities;

= ensuring that there are significant amounts of committed term funding to complement retail funds;

«  ensuring that there are significant and diversifled funding lines in place to meet monthly obligations; and
+  monitoring liquidity flows while quickly identifying any anomalies.

The Group's liquidity management process is monitored by Risk Managernent and Compliance within our Institutional and Business Banking
Division {IBB} and managed by the Head of Money Markets and includes:

*  monitoring of future cash flows to ensure daily funding requirements can be satisfied;
«  monitoring balanca sheet liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory requirements; and
«  managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.

The daily liquidity position is monitored and regular liquidity stress testing is conducted under a variety of scenarios covering both normal and
more severe market conditions. All liquidity policles and procedures are subject to review by ALCO and approval by the Board. Risk
Management & Compliance (IEB) menitors adherence to policy limits and is responsible to escalate any exceptions and remedial action taken
per the Group's policy and to provide a report to ALCO regularly.

Primary sources of funding
The Group's strategy is to diversify its funding sources to ensure it has a stable funding base without over reliance on any individual market.

The Group’s retall funding, comprising transaction, fixed term and other deposits, represents a significant portion of the total funding base. The

Group focuses on ensuring & strong and stable retail funding base through a range of mechanisms including pricing strategies and product
development.

The Group also accesses domestic and overseas wholesale funding markets for short term, medium term and securitisation funding.

Contractual undiscounted cash flows

The following table shows the cash flows payable by the Group on non-derivative financial liabllities and derivatives by remaining contraciual
maturities at balance sheet date.

The amounts disclosed for non-derivative liabilities are all contractual undiscounted cash flows, including both principal and future coupon
payments, and will not agree directly to the amounts recognised In the balance sheet.

The amounts disclosed for trading derivatives are the amounts recognised within the balance sheet as a derivative asset, shown as an inflow,
and a derivative liabllity, shown as an outflow. Liquidity risk on these items is not managed on the basis of contraciual maturity, since they are

not held for settlement and will frequentily be settled in the short term at fair value. The amounts disclosed for hedging derivatives are based
upon the contractual cash flows.,

The Group does not use contractual undiscounted cash flows for the purposes of managing fiquidity risk, instead using expected undiscounted

cash flows, which varies significantly frorn the analysis shown. For example, demand deposits from customers are expected to maintain a
stable or increasing balance.
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Cash flows payable under financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity

Consolidated

Less than Between 3and Between 1

On demand 3 manths 12months  and Syears AfterSyears  Total
$M M M M M M
As at 30 September 2008
Non derivative liabilities
Deposits and other borrowings (41,730) (17,379) (27.806) (4,737) {3) (91.655)
Payables due to cther financial institutions (988) (28) {1) (771) - {1,786)
Bank acceplances - {3,979) (18) - - {3.997)
Bonds and notes (488) (9.764) (8,850) (20,691) (2,578) (42,371}
Loan capital (41) (66} (175) {3,387) (497} (4,188)
{43247) {31,214} (36,850} {29, 586) (3,078) (143,975)
Derivatives
Trading
- inflow - 1,604 - - - 1,604
- putflow - {1.232) - - - {1,232)
Hedging
-~ inflow - 2138 5771 17,169 1,884 26,963
- outflow - (2,255) {5,708} {17,481) (1,861) (27,305)
- 256 63 {312) 23 30
Total (43,247  {30,958) {36,787} {29,898) (3,055) (143,945)
Ag at 3ﬁeptember 2007
Non derivative liabilities
Deposits and other bormowings (37,176)  (14,802) (15,798) (4,036) {18) (71,831)
Payables due to other financial institutions (982) (3) - (28) - {1,013)
Bank acceptances - (7,151 (1386) - - {7.287)
Bonds and notes (2,804) {5.042) {8,965} {22,216) (3,808) (42,836)
i.oan capital {18) {26) {383} (1,978) {581) (2,986)
(40,980) (27,024) {25 282) {28,258) (4,408) (125,853)
Derivatives
Trading
- inflow - 927 - - - 927
- outflow - {1,252) - - - {1.252)
Hedging "
- inflow - 1,408 4,758 15,929 2,712 24,805
- outflow - {1,721) (5414)  {18,082) {3,027)  (28,244)
- (641) (655) {2,153) (315) (3,764)
Total {40,980) (27,665) {25,837)  {30.411) (4,724) (129.717)

(1) Includes non-trading derivative transactions that are considered to be part of economic hedging relationships.

Loan commitments include amounts able to be advanced {0 customers on approved undrawn facilities and existing facliities. The Group's loan
commitments have a contractual cash flow profile of $19,531 milllion (2007: $18,769 million} within one year and $6,653 million (2007: $5,733

million) after 1 year. These loan commitments are not expected to be drawndown based upon these confractual maturities.
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Cash flows payable under financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity

' Less thn Between 3 and Between 1
On demand 3 months 12months  and S years After 5 years Total

$M $M M M M M
As at 30 September 2008
Non derivative liabilities
Deposits and other borrowings (41,738) (16,087) {27,806) (4,737) (3) (90,351)
Payables due to other financial institutions (988) (26) ()] {771) - (1,7886)
Bank acceptances - (3,979) (18) - - (3,997)
Bonds and notes (488)  (8.665) {3,854) {9,029) (44}  (22,080)
Loan capital (41) (66) (175} (3,387) (497} (4,168)
{43,255) (28,803) (31,854) (17,924) {544) (122,380)
Derivatives
Trading
- inflow - 1,559 - - - 1,559
- outfflow - {1,233) - - - (1,233)
Hedging ™
- inflow - 1,181 3.472 10,716 807 15,976
- outflow - {1,192) (3,178) {10,638) ___{545) (15,553}
- 315 204 78 62 749
Total {43,255) {28,488) {31,560) (17,846) (482) (121,631)
As at 30 September 2007
Non derivative liabilities
Deposits and other bormowings (37,185)  (13,804) (15,798) {4,036) {19) (70,842)
Payables due to other financial institutions {982) (3) - (28) - {1,013}
Bank acceptances - (7,151} (136) - - (7.287)
Bonds and notes (2,806} (3,744) (3,745) (9,015) - (19,310)
Loan capital {18} {(26) {383) (1,978) {581) (2,986)
(40,901}  (24,728) (20,062) (15,057} (800} (101,438)
Derivatives
Trading
- inflow - 832 - - - 832
- outflow - {1,158) - - - {1,158)
Hedging "
- inflow - 367 2,353 9,540 543 12,803
- outflow - (489) (2,462 {10,344) _(587)  (13,882)
- {448) (109) (804) {44) _ (1,405)
Tatal (40,991)  (25,176) {20,171) {15,861) (644) (102,843)

1 Inbludes non-trading derivative transactions that are considered to be part of economic hedging relationships.

Loan commitments include amounts able 10 be advanced to custamers on appraved undrawn faciiities and existing faclliies. The Bank's loan
commitments have a contractual cash flow profile of $21,231 million (2007: $18,561 million) within one year and $5,465 miliion (2007: $4,327
million} after 1 year. These loan commitments are not expected to be drawndown based upon these contractual maturities.
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NOTE 41: DERIVATIVES

DEFINITION

A derivative is a financiat instrument that provides the holder with the ability to participate in some or all of the price changes of an undertying
financial asset, reference rate or index, Derivatives are caried at fair value and shown in the balance sheet as assets and liabililes. Derivative
assels and liabllites on different transactions are only set-oft i the transactions are with the same counterparty, a legal right of set-off exists and
the cash flows are intended to be settled on a net basis. '

Common derivatives used by the Group are swaps, options, futures, forwards and foreign exchange contracts. The major characteristics of
these are summarised below.

Swaps

An Interes! rate swap is an agreement between two parties to exchange interest obligations periodically based on an undertying notional
principal. A ¢ross curency swap involves a principal exchange of amounts in one currency for another currency and a re-exchange of the same
principal amounts at maturity. Interest payments and receipts on the principal amounts are exchanged periodically throughout the term.

Oplions .
An opfion is a contract that grants the holder the right but not the abligation to buy or sell the underlying asset at a specific price on a specified
date. A call option grants the holder the right but not the obligation to buy at a specified price whereas a put option grants the holder the right but

not the obligation to sell at a specified price. The purchaser or holder of the option pays a premium upfront to acquire the rights in the option.
The risk to the holder is limited to the premium whilst the risk to the seller of the option is unlimited.

Futures

A futures contract is a binding obligation 1o buy or sell a specific quantity of a specific type of goods at an agreed price. Every contract has a
buyer and a seller. Most contracts dealt on exchanges are closed out prior to delivery date.

Forwards

A forward rate agreement {(FRA} is an agreement to fix an interest rate on an agreed notional amount, term and date. The parties then settle the
difference between the agreed interest rate and the market rate on the FRA settiement date.

OBJECTIVES FOR HOLDING DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
The consolidated entity makes use of the derivatives market both for trading purposes and to manage balance sheet risk.

Trading

Derivatives held for trading include those used in proprietary trading activities and servicing selected client needs, and those instruments that
are used for risk management purposes but which for various reasons do not meet the criteria for the application of hedge accounting. Gains
and losses from changes in the fair value of trading derivatives” are reported in “trading income” and those relating to “non-qualifying” hedging
derivatives are reported in “non-trading derivatives”. Strict controls and trading limils are used to monitor the price risk resulting from interest
rate and exchange rate fluctuations on net open positions. The credit risk associated with the instruments is limited to the current fair value,
which represents a small portien of the notional amount.

Hedging

Derivatives provide protection to income streams in a volatile financiat environment. Derivatives enable holders of actual or anticipated assets
and liabilities {those with a value that may vary with changes in foreign exchange, interest or other market rates) to modify and eliminate the risk
of varying values by transferring it to another entity that is willing to assume the risk.

The Group's objective when entering the derivative market for asset and liability management purposes is to protect future income streams in
light of uncertain economic variables. The core operations of the Group are subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the degree that the
interest eaming assets exceed the interest bearing liabllities or vice versa, in any given maturity or repricing period,

The accounting treatment of hedging derivatives varies according to whether they are fair value or cash flow hedges.

Fair value hedges

Fair value hedges consist of cross currency and interest rate swaps used to protect against changes in the fair value of foreign denominated
debt issues. Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged item that are attributable to the hedged risk.

The net fair value of the Group's cross curmency and interest rale swaps was an asset of $499 miflion at 30 September 2008 (30 September

2007: liabllity of $2,002 milion). The Group’s gains on these hedging instruments were $2,501 million (30 Seplember 2007: loss of $1,812
million) and the loss on the hedged items attributable to the hedged risk were $2,519 million (30 September 2007: gain of $1,817 million).
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The net falr value of the Bank's cross curmency and interest rate swaps was an asset of $713 million at 30 September 2008 (30 September
2007: liabliity of $547 million). The Bank's gains on these hedging instruments were $1,260 million (30 September 2007: loss of $722 million)
and tha loss on he hedged items attributable to the hedged risk were $1,268 milfion {30 September 2007: gain of $724 million),

Cash flow hedges

Cash flow hedges represent interest rale swaps used to protect against the variabllity in future interest cash fiows on non-trading assets and
liabilities which bear intergst at variable rates or which are expected to be refunded or invested in the future.

The amounts and timing of future cash flows, representing both principal and interest fiows, are projected for each portfolio of financial asset
and liabllity on the basis of their contractual terms and other relevant factors, Including estimates of prepayments and defaults. The aggregate

principal balances and interest cash flows across all portfolios over time form the basis for identifying gains and losses on the effective portions
of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges of foracast transactions.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in equity.
The galn or ioss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately In the income statement. This represents the amount by which the

changes in the fair value of the expected cash flow of the derivative differ from the falr value of the changes (or expected changes) in the cash
flow of the hedged item.

Amounis from the cash flow hedge reserve are transferred 10 the income statement when the cash fiows on the hedged item are recognised in
the income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the critaria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss
existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is amortised to the income statement over the remaining term of the ariginal hedge. Where
the hedged item is derecognised, the cumulative gain or toss is recognised immediately in the income statement.

The Group's interest rate swaps with an aggregate noticnal principal amount of $40,601 million {30 September 2007: $28,353 million) and a net
fair value asset of $227 million (30 September 2007: asset of $158 million) were designated as hedges of future cash flows from fioating rate
non-trading assets, loans and other receivables, customer deposits and wholesale borrowings. The ineffectiveness recognised in the income
statement arising from these cash flow hedges was $Nil for the 2008 year (2007 year: $Nil).

The Bank’s interest rate swaps with an aggregate notienal principal amount of $40,801 million (30 September 2007: $29,353 million) and a net
fair value asset of $227 million (30 September 2007: asset of $158 milllon) were designated as hedges of future cash fiows from floating rate
non-rading assets, loans and other receivables, customer deposiis and wholesale borrowings. The ineffectiveness recognised in the income
statement arising from these cash flow hedges was $Nil for the 2008 year (2007 year: $Nil).

There were no transactions for which cash flow hedge accounting had to be ceased in 2008 or 2007 as a resull of the highly probable cash
flows no longer being expected to occur.

STRATEGIES FOR ACHIEVING OBJECTIVES OF HOLDING DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The primary objective in asset and liability management is to provide the maximum level of income while maintaining prudent levels of interest
rate, liquidity and funding risk. In order to achieve these objectives a variety of interest rate forwards, swaps and options as well as cross
cumency swaps are employed.

For all activities, the Group monitors future interest rate risk by simulating future net interes! income resulting from applying a variety of different
rate scenarios to its projected balance sheet. The Group also seeks to manage net interest income by hedging interest rate exposure arising
from anticipated future transactions.

This process is controlled and managed through ALCO, which addresses risk exposures and hedging requirements on a monthly basis (or more
frequently if required). Where an on-batance sheet solution cannot be employed to position the Balance Sheet effectively, the derivatives
market is used.

The risks associated with derivatives are identical to the risks that are encountered by the Group for normal retail and commercial banking
business (credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk). These risks are managed consistently in fine with the Group's overall risk management
policies.
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HOLDINGS OF DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
The following table provides an overview of exchange rate and interest rate derivatives as al 30 September.

Consoclidated

2008 2007
Notional Fair value Notional Falr value
M amount Assets  Liabilities Net  amount Assets  Liabiilties Not
Darivatives held for trading
Futuras 23,885 1 - 1 6,950 . - -
Forward rate agresments 34,412 11 {10) 1 29,459 3 (1) 2
Interest rate swaps 108,018 834 {835) (1) 71,827 382 (356) 28
Interast rate options 2,317 - (57) (51 537 3 (10} (7}
Foreign exchange 18,954 657 (230} 427 23,048 410 (687) {277}
Cross cumency swaps 1,056 12 (68} [1)] 2,323 102 {171 (69)
Foreign exchangse options 1,565 40 {32) 8 2,388 27 (27) -
190,207 1,604 (1.232) 372 138,542 927 {1,252) {325)
Derivatives held for cash flow hedging
Interest rate swaps 40,601 564 __(337) 227 29 353 236 (78} 158
40,601 564 __{33n) 227 289,353 236 {78) 158
Derlvatives hold for fair value hedging
Interest rate swaps 1,351 34 {4) 30 1,556 5 {14) {9)
Cross currency swaps 24 843 1,187 {718) 488 22 899 103 {2,006} {1,9283)
26,194 1,221 (722} 409 24,455 108 {2,110} {2,002)
Total derivatives 257,002 3,389 {2.291) 1,098 190,350 3,271 (3,440) (2,160}
s e e e oy ot SBANK o % ]
Dertvatives held for trading
Futures . 23,885 1 - 1 6,950 - - -
Forward rate agresments 34,412 1 {10} 1 28,469 3 {1 2
Interest rate swaps 138,012 789 {836) {47) 71827 382 {358) 28
Intarest rate options 2,317 - {57) (57) 537 3 (10) (M)
Foreign exchange 18,954 857 (230) 427 23,048 410 (687) (277
Cross curency swaps 1,058 81 (68) (") 1,916 7 (77} {70}
Faoreign exchange options 1,665 40 __{32) 8 2,388 27 (27} -
220,201 1,558 {1,233} 326 136,135 832 {1,158} (326}
Daerivatives held for cash flow hadging
Interest rate swaps 40,601 564 {337) 227 29,353 236 ___{m8) 158
40 801 584 {3371} 227 28,353 236 (78} 158
Dertvatives held for falr value hedging
Interast rate swaps 1,351 34 {4) 30 1,556 5 (14) {8)
Cross cumency swaps 14,912 853 (170 683 12,327 81 (619) (538)
18,263 887 — (174) 713 13.883 86 (633) {547)
Totel derivatives 277,065 3,010 {1,744} 1,266 179,371 1,954 {1,869) {115)

The notional amounts for derivatives do not represent assets or liabllities on the balance sheet, but represent the basis for calculating net

amounts from undertying reference rates. The Group's exposure 10 counterparty rigk is, therefore, limited to the positive value attached to the
derivative arising from favourable movements in the underlying reference rates.

The credit risk associated with futures contracts is negligible as contracts are collateralised by cash with any changes in market value of
contracts being settled on a daily basis with the clearing house.

As the Group's primary reason for holding derivatives Is for balance sheet hedging purposes, the majority of derivatives have been transacted
with financial institutions of investment grade quality. The Group's credit policy and procedures ensures that exposures to counterparty risks are

conslantly monitored, and credit risk concentration ta any individual counterparty is limited through risk limits approved by the Board.
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NOTE 42: FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following disciosures provide an analysis of the fair value of financlal instruments. The fair values provided are stated at a specific date and
may be significantly different to amounts paid or received on maturity of the financial instruments. As a result, the fair value shown does not
reflact the value of these financial instruments to the Group on a going concem basis.

Fair value represents the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled in an arms-length transaction between willing
parties. The value of the Group's relationship with customers together with non-financial instruments is not included in the disclosure below.

Quoted market prices are used as the measure of nel fair value. Where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on
valuation techniques based upon observable market data. The fair value of short-tarm financia) instruments is estimated to equal their carying
value as these instruments reprice or mature in 180 days or less with no significant change in credit risk.

The estimates of fair value are subjective ant involve the exercise of judgement. Changes in assumplions used could have a material impact
on the amounts disclosed. As a result, it is difficult to make reasonable comparisons of the Group 1o other financial institutions due to the wide
range of valuation fechniques and numerous estimates that must be made,

Carrying valuo Fair value Carrying value Fair value
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
M M M ™ ™ M $M M
Financlal assets
Cash and liquid assets 2,672 2,081 2,672 2,081 2,672 2,081 2,672 2,081
Asseta at falr valua through the profit and loss
Assets ai falr value through the Incomae statement 15605 11,339 15,605 11,339 15676 11,450 15,676 11,450
Darivative assets 3,389 1,271 3,389 1,271 3,010 1,154 3.010 1,154
18984 12610 18984 12810 18,686 12,604 18886 12604
. Available for sale investmaents 2,810 929 2,810 923 . 2,210 1 2,210 1
Loans and receivables
Recelvables due from other financlal institutions 305 1,244 305 1,244 185 825 185 625
Loans and other recaivables 87,721 89,884 98,232 89,692 77,415 65,878 FENE) 65,766
Bank accaptances of customers 22,263 18,343 22,263 16,343 22,263 16,343 22,263 16,343
Recelvables from controfied entities - 4,300 4737 4,505 4,657

120,288 107,47 120,800 107,279 104,172 87,583 104,684 87,391

Total financial assets 144,765 123,091 145276 122 899 127,740 102,269 128,252 102,077

Financial llablilitles

Financlal liabllities at amortlsed cost

Daposits and other borrowings 80,207 70,803 90,246 70,788 90,293 70,476 90,258 70,461
Payables due to other financial institutions 1,786 1,013 1,786 1,013 1,786 1012 1,788 1,013
Bank accaptances 3,870 6,348 3,970 6,348 3,970 6.348 3.970 6,348
Amounts payable to controlled entities . - - - 1,450 995 1,460 995
Bonds and notes 37,780 34971 37,332 34973 21,960 17,024 21,326 17,026
Loan capital 3,245 2.2 3,221 2,232 3,245 2,231 3,221 2,232

136,062 115,388 136,555 115,354 121.834 898,087 122,021 98,075

Financial abilities at fair valua through the profit and loss
Derivative liabilities 2,291 3,440 2,291 3,440 1,744 1,869 1,744 1,869

Total financial llabilities 139,253 116,806 138,846 118,794 123,578  §9.956 123,765 98,944

The following approach has been adopted in determining the fair value for those financial instruments that are not recognised at fair value within
\h_e palance sheet.

Cash and liquid assets, recelvables from cther financial institutions and bank acceptances of customers

The carrying value of cash and liquid assets, receivables due from other financial institutions and bank acceptances of customers approximate
their fair vatue as they are short term in nature or are receivable on demand.

Loans and cther recefvables

The carrying value of loans and other receivables is net of specific and collective provisions for doubthul debts and unearned income. For
variable rate loans (excluding impaired loans), the camying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value. The fair value of fixed rate loans was
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using current market rates.

For Impaired assels the fair value is calculated by discounting expected future cash flows over the time period they are expected to be

recoverad,
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Deposits and other borrowings

The fair value of at call and variable rate deposits is the camying value at 30 September. For other deposits, discounted cash flow models
based upon cumrent market rates for debt with similar characteristics and maturities wers used to calculate fair values.

Payables due to other financlal Institutions

The carrying value of balances due to other financial institutions Is considered to approximate their fair value, as they are short term in nature or
receivable on demand.

Bonds and notes and loan capital

The fair value of bonds and notes and loan capital was calculated based on quoted market prices at 30 September. Where quoted prices were
not available, a discounted cash flow model using a yleld curve appropriate for the remaining maturity of the instrument was used,

NOTE 43: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The objective of the Group's capital risk management framework is to maximise the return on capital for shareholders through the optimal use of
capital whilst maintaining a strong level of capital to provide a firn foundation for current and future business growth.

The process for assessment and management of capital has the following objectives:

«  To comply with regulatory minimum capital requirements;

»  To satisfy intemal capital targets and maintain a streng level of capital to suppont business requirements;

» To satisfy Ratings Agencies expectations; and

*  To achieve shareholder performance which compares favourably with competitors (both in terms of dividends and share price).

The Group’s capital management and planning is undertaken through the Board of Directors approved intemal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process ("ICAAP7). The Board of Directors has delegated responsibility for monitoring compliance and management of the Group’s capital to
the Board Risk Management Committee (*BRMC") and the Group's Asset and Liability Committee ("ALCQO").

To ensure the Board's and key stakeholders’ capital adequacy and capital management goals are achieved capital target ranges are used o
appropriately balance the retum versus risk elements of the Group's operations. The Group carries out regutar assessments of the amounts,
types and distribution of financlal resources, capital resources and internal capital that the Group considers adequate to cover the nature and
level of the risks to which the Group is exposed. In addition, the Group conducts siress and scenario tests, and ensures that the processes and
strategies used within the Group are appropriate to the nature and complexity of its operations.

The Group's planning cycle formally assesses the planned risk and underlying capital demand, including quarterly reassessments during the
year, against targets. A key part of capilal management is in respect of quantifying and reviewing the Economic Capital performance in terms of
target retumns on products, lines of business and divisions' required demand for capital.

Under the ICAAP, the Group manages capital through ensuring capital ‘demand” and capital 'supply’ are appropriately balanced in terms of
‘return on equity’ and internal target ratios, under both planned and unplanned scenario assumptions. The Group also has in place a process to
regularly monitor compliance and performance to capital adequacy plans, limits and targets through monthly ICAAP reporting.

Regulatory Capital

The Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA) regulates and classifies StGeorge as a locally owned and incorporated diversified
"Australian Deposit-taking Institution™ ("ADI"). The Group is subject to extemat minimum capital requirements determined by APRA. The Group
currertly reports to APRA under the prudential requirements of Base |.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored by the Group's management based upon the applicable guidelines

implemented by APRA for supervisory purposes. Capital adequacy information is reported on a monthly basis to the Board and on a quarterly
basis to APRA.

Regutatory capital requirements are measurad at two levels within the Group. The Bank is reported as “Leva! 1”. The Bank and its controlled
entities, less certain controlled entities which are “deconsolidated” for APRA reporting purposes, for example insurance, funds management and
special purpose entities, are together reported as “Level 2". APRA's new concept of Extended Licensed Entity (“ELE™) will apply to the Group’s
capitat ratios from 1 January 2009. This will require certain controlled entities that satisty the definition of an extended licensed entity to be
included with the Bank for the purposes ol “Level 1" regulatory reporting.

APRA requires ADIs to maintain a minimum ratic of total capital to risk-weighted assets, on both a consofidated group and stand-alone basis, of
8% (of which at feast 4% should be Tier 1 capital). APRA may vary an individual bank's capital requiremnent. APRA, requires a minimum risk
weighted tolal capital adequacy ratio of 8.50% and a minimum risk weighted Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio of 6.25%, for both the Group {Level 2)
and the Bank (Level 1). APRA expects the Bank to manage capital consistent with its agreed interal target ratios for both the Bank and the

Group. APRA's prior consent is required before the capital target is changed. During the year, the Group complied with APRA's minimum
capital requirements at all times.
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The Group's regulatory capital is divided into two tiers:

»  Tier 1 capital: share capital (net of any treasury shares), retained eamings, reserves created by appropriations of retained earings, and
innovative and non-innovative Tier 1 capita! instruments. The book values of goodwill and intangible assels are deducted, together with
expected net dividends, in amiving at Tier 1 capital; and

«  Tier 2 capilal: qualifying subordinaled loan capital, the combined amount of the eligible portion of the collective loan provision and the
general reserve for credit losses and unrealised gains arising on the fair valuation of equity Instruments held as available for sale.

Investments in assoclates are deducted fram Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital to arrive at the regulatory capital.

Various limits are applied to elements of the capital base. The amount of Residual Tier 1 capital and Innovative Tier 1 capital cannot exceed 25
per cent and 15 per cent of Tier 1 capital less deductions (“net Tier 1 capital”) respectively, qualifying Tier 2 capital cannot exceed Tier 1 capilal
and qualifying term subordinated loan capital may not exceed 50 per cent of Tier 1 capital.

The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of five risk weights classified according to the nature of - and reflecting an
eslimate of credit, market and other risks associated with — each asset and counterparty, taking into account any eligible collateral or

guaraniees. A similar reatment is adopted for ofi-balance sheet exposure, with some adjustments to reflect the more contingent nature of the
potential logses.

Capital adequacy has been calculated in accordance with APRA's AIFRS regulatory requirements that applied from 1 July 2006. The Group's
regulatory capital position caicutated in accordance with APRA's regulatory requirements s disclosed in “Supplementary Information — Capital
Adequacy™.

The Basel Commitiee on Banking Supervision has published Basel !l, which replaced the 1988 Basel Capital Accord. The objective of the Base!
1l Framewaork s to develop capital adequacy guidelines that are more accurately aligned with the individual risk profile of banks.

The Basel | capital framework was introduced by APRA on 1 January 2008. The Base! | Framework is based on three “pillars™, Pillar One
covers the capital requirements for banks, Pillar Two covers the supervisory review process and Pillar Three relates to market disclosure. The
Basel Il Framework contains capital requirements for both credit, operalional and market risk and allows a choice between three approaches.
The Group has applied to APRA for accreditation as an Advanced mode! applicant,

Implementation of the Advanced Intemal Ratings Based Approach ("AIRB") for credit risk and the Advanced Measurement Approach (“AMA™) for
operational risk were implemented in Australia from January 1, 2008. The Group is working closely with APRA through the accreditation
process. APRA has also introduced a requirement to calculate a capital charge for interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book (lRRBB™. As an
Advanced model applicant for Basel I}, APRA requires the Group to apply for IRRBB accreditation.

As the Group progresses with its Base! Il accreditation, as an interim measure, the Group will adopt the Basel Il Standardised Approach from 1
January 2009.

NOTE 44: RELATED PARTIES
KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION

Compensation for all key management persennel including the Bank’s Managing Director and Non-Executive Directors of the Bank is shown in
the following table,

2008 2007 200 2007
$ 000 $ ‘000 $ '000 $ '000

Short term employee benefits 12,934 13,352 10,185 10,918
Other long term benefits 225 190 186 155
Post employment benefits 314 212 263 187
Share based payments 3,390 1,829 2,695 1,541

16,863 15,583 13,326 12,801

’

The key management personnel receive no compensation in relation to the management of the Bank. The compensation disclosed above

represents an allocation of the key management personnel’s estimated compensation from the Group in relation to their services rendered to
the Bank. -

Information regarding individual Directors’ and Executives’ compensation and some equity instrument disclosures as permitted by Corporations
Act and Corporations Regulation 2M.3.03 are provided in the Remuneration Report section of the Directors’ Report.
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EQUITY INSTRUMENT DISCLOSURES RELATING TO KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
{1} Options and Awards provided as remuneration and shares Issued on exercise of such options and awards

Details of options and awards provided as remuneration and shares issued on the exercise of such options and awards, together with their
terms and conditions, ¢an be found in the Remuneration Report.

{1} Option holdings of key management personnel and their related parties

All opticns refer to options over ordinary shares of St.George Bank Limited, which are exercisable on a one-for-one basis under the Executive
Option Plan.

The following tables set out the movement dyring the financial year in the number of optlons over ordinary shares in the Bank held directly,
indirectly or beneficially, by each key management person, including their related parties,

For the year ended 30 September 2008

Options Options .
granted as exercised No. of options No. of options
No. of options compensation during the No. of options  vested inthe  vested and
held at 1 Oct in the current current held at 30 cumment exercisable at
Name 2007 financial year _financial year Other changes  Sept 2008"! financial year 30 Sept 2008
Exocutive Director
P Fegan 208,568 148,018 - - 356.584 65,922 172,070
Executives
G Bartlatt 188,022 © 23,265 (51.838) - 159,449 78,346 78,346
M Cameron 19,849 77,547 - - 97,496 8,241 8,241
R Chapman 142,530 32,312 {66,579) - 108,263 49,883 40,883
G Lloyd - 15,511 - - 158,511 - -
L Matheson - 18,419 - - 18,419 - -
B Wright 212,341 13,572 - - 225,913 68,579 169,763
Former
P Clare ™ 300,829 - (160,417}  (140,412) - - -

{a) Does not include options held by executives who ceased to be a KMP during the year.
(b) Mr Ctare resigned on 31 December 2007 and forfeited 140,412 options.

gt g e Eor, G80.30 Soptember 20008 - iy .
. Options Options )
granted as exercised ‘ No. of options  No. of options
No. of options compensation during the No. of oplions  vested in the vested and
. held at 1 Oct In the current current held at 30 cument exercisable at
Name 2006 financial year financial year Other changes  Sept 2007 financial year 30 Sept 2007"
Former Exacutive Director
G P Ketly® 1,000,000 - {625,000) {375,000) - 125,000 -
Executives
G Bartlett 169,524 75,046 {56,548) - 188,022 71,142 51,838
M Camaron - 19,949 - - 19,949 - .
R Chapman 177,608 26,803 {61,881) - 142,530 53,987 66,579
P Clare 315,399 57,5356 (72,105) - 300,829 83,826 160,417
P Fegan 171,042 37,524 - - 208,566 69,096 106,148
B Wright 191,692 43,777 (23,128} - 212,341 66,286 101,184
Former
D Gall 115,676 53,604 (15,7886) (153,494) - 41,676 -
J Loebenstein 92,459 21,443 - (113,902) - 34,046 -
S McKerihan 174,099 37,524 (72,542) {139,061) - 9,362 -
(a) Does not include options held by executives who ceased to be a KMP during the year.
{b} Mrs Kelly resigned on 24 August 2007 and forfeited 250,000 options,

No optiens held by key management personnel are vested but not exercisable at 30 September 2007 or 2008.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

(E)

All awards refer to rights over ordinary shares of St.George Bank Limited, which are exercisable on a one-for-cne basis under the Performance
Plan or Reward Plan,

Awards held by key management personnel and their related parties

The follewing tables set out the movement during the financial year in the number of rights over ordinary shares of the Bank, held directly,
indirectly or beneficially, by each key management person, including their related parties.

Far the year ended 30 September 2008

Awards
granted as Awards Number of Number off
Number of compensation exercised Number of awards vested  awards vested
awards held at  in the current during the awards held at i, the financial and exercisable
Name 1.0ct 2007 financial year _financia) year Other changes 30 Sept 2008™ year at 30 Sept 2008
nanges .
Executive Director
P Fegan 56,885 26,258 {10,531) - 72,612 13,255 13,229
Executives
G Bartlett 38,683 13,735 (8,285) - 44,133 9,287 9,261
M Camaron 120,142 31,325 (37,983) - 113,484 39,386 1,403
R Chapman 26,151 8,001 (4,631) . 29,521 6,577 6,551
G Lioyd 18,426 8,744 {8,208) - 18,062 6,934 6,908
L Matheson - 5,346 - - 5,346 - -
P Newham 12,752 2416 {26) - 15,142 5,190 8,894
B Wright 14,611 6,674 (2,356) - 18,929 2,940 2914
Former
P Clare ® 22,028 26 (2.976) {19,078) - - -
(a) Does not include awards held by execulives who ceased to be a KMP during the year.
(b) Mr Clare resigned on 31 Dacember 2007 and forfeited 19,078 awards.
L h e D e e oy $he yearended 30 Seplember 2007, 1w
Awards
granted as Awards Number of Number of]
Number of compensation exsrcised Number of awards vested . awards vested
awards held at  in the current during the awards held at i the financial and exercisable
Name 1 Oct 2006 _ finandial year _finandial year Other changes 30 Sept 2007 year at 30 Sept 2007™

Former Exacutive Director

G P Kely® 70,239 18,507 {14,400) {74,346) - 14,400 -
Executives
G Bartlett 33,731 11,660 {6,708) - 38,683 8,208 8,259
M Cameron - 120,142 . - 120,142 - -
R Chapman 19,004 10,869 (3.752) - 26,151 5,235 4,605
P Clare 15,611 9,416 (2.999) - 22,028 3,715 2,950
P Fegan 44972 21,208 {8,203) - 56,885 12,209 10,505
B Wright 11,113 5,783 {2,285) - 14,611 2,911 2,230
Former -
D Gall 16,577 10,701 {3.923) {23,355) - 2,962 -
J Loebenstein 27,154 9,282 (29) (36,407) - 8,127 -
S McKerihan 40,937 15,537 (9,999} (46,475) - 2,431 -
(a) Does not include awards held by executives who ceased to be a KMP during the year.
(b) Mrs Kelly resigned on 24 August 2007 and forfeited 41,439 awards.
No awards held by key management personnel are vested but not exercisable at 30 September 2007 or 2008.
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(v} Equity Holdings of key management parsonnel and thelr related parties

The following tables set out the movement during the financial year in the number of ordinary shares, SAINTS, CPS | and CPS Il of St.George
Bank Limited held directly, indirectly or beneficially, by each key management person, including their personally related entities.

Movements during tha year
Held at Exorcise off  Exercise 01 | Qtherl  Meld at
1 Oct 2007 Purchasas Options Rights| Sales| Changes| 30 Sep 2008 !
Shares
Directors
P A Fegan 209,436 - - 10,521 - - 219,967
J § Curtis @ 22,541 2,754 - - - - 25,295
T J Davis 17,165 5,705 - - - - 22,870
R A F England 5,258 481 - - - - 5,739
P J O Hawkins 8,660 2,956 - - - - 11,616
R Holiiday-Smith 2,500 - - - - - 2,500
P D Risherwood AQ 32,000 202 - - - - 32,202
L B Nicholls AQ 7,450 1,547 - - - - 8,997
G J Reaney 48,853 2,405 - - - - 51,268
353,873 16,050 - 10,531 - - 380,454
Former Directors
JM Thame @ 150,216 202 - - - {150,418) -
504,089 16,252 - 10,531 - {150,418) 380,454
Executives
G Bartiett 659,021 - 51,838 8,285 (7,462) - 711,682
M Cameron - - - 37,983 (37.,983) - -
R Chapman 115,258 - 66,579 4,831 {65,000} - 121,466
G Lloyd 34,149 2,296 - 8,208 - - 44,653
P Newham - 208 - 26 - - 234
B Wright 146,840 - - 2,356 - - 149,186
055,266 2,504 118,417 61,489 {110,445) - 1,027,231
Former executlve
P Clare @ 95,921 202 160,417 2976 {90,000} {169,516) -
1,051,187 2,706 278,834 64,465 (200,445) {169,516) 1,027,231
SAINTS -
Directors .
J S Curtis 318 - - - - - 318
P D R Isherwood AQ 263 - - - - - 263
581 - - - - - 581
CPS1
Directors
T J Davis 5,000 - - - - - 5,000
P D R Isherwood AD 1,000 - - - - - 1,000
6,000 - - - - - 6,000
CPS Il
Directors
P D R Isherwood AQ - 1,165 - - - - 1,165
P J O Hawkins - 2,000 - - - - 2,000
- 3,165 - - - - 3,165
Former director
J M Thame & - 185 - - - {165) -
- 3,330 - - - {165) 3,165
(1) Does not include shares held by Directors or Executives who ceased to be a KMP during the year.
{2) Mr J 8 Curtis alsc holds an interest in 15,000 instalment warrants in fully paid ordinary shares of the Bank.
(3) Mr Thame retired as a Director on 1 July 2008 and Mr Clare resigned on 31 Dacember 2007.
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Movements during the year
Held at ~ Exercise of]  Exercise o_y Other]  Held at
1 Qct 2006 Purchases| Option;l Right;L Sales| Changes]{30 Sep 2007 !
Shares
Directors
J M Thame 150,216 - - - - - 150,216
J 8 Curtis ® 22,541 - - - - - 22,541
T J Davis 11,623 5542 - - - . 17,165
R A F England 260 2,657 - - - - 5,258
P J O Hawkins - 8,660 - - - - 8,660
R Holliday-Smith - 2,500 - - - - 2,500
P D R Isherwood AQ 27,948 4,052 - - - - 32,000
L B Nicholls AQ 5,819 1,611 - - - - 7,450
G J Reaney 47,516 1,347 - - - - 48,863
268,264 26,389 - - - - 294,653
Former Director
G P Kelly™ 525,000 - 625,000 14,400 - {1,164.400 -
793,264 26,389 625,000 14,400 = (1,164,400 294,653
Executives
G Bartlett 595,765 - 56,548 6,708 - - 659,021
R Chapman 49,623 - 61,881 3,752 - - 115,256
P Clare 20,817 - 72,105 2,999 - - 95,921
P Fegan 225,728 - - 9,293 {25,585) - 209,436
B Wright 121,427 - 23,128 2,285 - - 146,840
- : 1,013,360 - 213,662 25,037 (25,585) - 1,226,474
Former Executives
D Gall 36,088 . 15,786 3,923 . (55.797) -
J Loebenstein ¥ 332,5M - - 29 . (332,600) -
S McKerihan 450,111 . 72,542 9,999 - (532,652} -
818,770 - 88,328 13,951 - (921,049) -
SAINTS
Directors
J 8 Curtis 318 - - - - - 318
P D R Isherwpod AQ 263 - - - - - 263
581 - - - - - 581
Former.Directors
GP Kelly® 208 - - - - (208) -
789 - - - - (208) 581
CPS
Directors
T J Davis - 5,000 - - - - 5,000
P DR Isherwood AQ - 1,000 - - - - 1,000
_ 6,000 - - - - 6,000
(1) Does not include shares held by Directors or Executives who ceased to be a KMP during the year.
(2) Mr J 8 Curtis also holds an interest in 15,000 instalment warrants in fully paid ordinary shares of the Bank,
(3) Mrs G P Kelly resigned on 24 August 2007.
(4) Mr Gall ceased to be a direct report of the Managing Director from 16 July 2007.
(5) Mr Loebenstein retired from the Group Executive from 2 Aprl 2007.
(6) Mr McKerihan resigned on 13 July 2007.

Key management personnel and their related parties received dividends on these equity instruments on conditions that are no more favourable

than other equity holders.
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LOANS TO KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Details regarding the aggregate of loans made, guaranteed or secured 1o key management personnel ang their relaled parties, and the number
of individuals are as follows:

Opaening Closing Interest intarest Not Numbaerin
talance batance Charged Charged Graup at
$'000 $'000 $0090 $°000 30 Sept
Total for key management 2008 21,012 22,839 1,980 12 9
personnel 2007 17,893 21,012 1,697 11 6
2008 - - -
Total for other related partias
2007 805 - 31 -
Totalfor key managemaent 2008 21,012 22,830 1,880 12 9
parsennel and their ralatsd parties 2007 18,808 21.012 1,828 11 &

Detalls of loans to key management personnel and their refated parties, where the individual's loan{s) balances exceeded $100,000 at any time
during the year are as follows:

Forthe yearended 30 Scptember 2008
Balance at Balance at Highest Balance nterest Nat|

1 Oct 2007 30 Sept 2008 During the Year Interest Charged Charged
Name $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Dirsctor
L B Nicholis AD 383 330 560 35 -
Executives
P Fagan 5,701 3.021 13,401 450 -
G Bartlett 7,485 B.885 11.609 732 12
IM cameron . 256 320 12 -
R Chapman 5,030 5.625 7.539 461 -
G Lloygt! - 2,420 2,725 162 -
L Matheson'? - 154 167 3 -
P Newham!! - 132 147 4 -
B Wright - 118 330 9 -
Former Executives
P Clara™® 2,344 - 6,388 82 .

{1) Mr Lloyd, Mr Matheson and Mr Newham waera appointed Group Executives during the currant yaar.
(2) Mr Clare resigned on 31 December 2007.

P8 G rs Al e ATV fﬁl‘;’ﬁ'ﬁftﬂh‘ﬁ!f&%ﬁﬁdﬁa_d&?o,ﬂ%ﬁa?y S ! .
alance at Balance at ] Interest Not
1 Oct 2008 30 Sept 2007 During the Year Interest Charged Charged
Name $°000 $'000 $'000 $'000 3000
Dirgctor
L B Nicholls AQ 343 3g: 383 54 -
Exscutlves
G Bartlett 4,517 7,485 8,828 411 11
R Chapman 1.087 5,030 5,233 228 -
P Clare 743 2,344 2,534 143 . -
P Fagan 5179 5,701 5,730 arz2 -
Former Executives
D Gaw 823 - 1,830 96 -
J Losbanstain®® 3,647 - 5646 130 -
S McKerihan!Y 1,791 - 3,548 192 -

(1) Mr Gallceasegd to be a direct report of the Managing Diractor from 16 July 2007.
{2) Mr Lobelnsteln retired fram the Group Executive from 2 April 2007.
{3) M7 McoKerihan resigned on 13 July 2007,

No loans to specified executives or gpecified Directors have been guaranteed of secured against the assets of any entities in the Group. No
amounts have been written down or provided for as the loans are considered fully performing. With the exception of an interest free loan to Mr
G Bartlett of $140,785 that was advanced in 1989, all loans provided by the Bank to key management personnel are made in the ordinary
course of business on an amms length basis and are entered into under normal terms and conditions consistent with those offered by the Bank to
its customers. For [oans that have loan interest offset faciliies, the interest charged that is disclosed above is calculated after the offset.
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OTHER TRANSACTIONS WITH KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AND THEIR RELATED PARTIES

All other transactions with key management personnel (including their related parties) were conducted on an arms-length basis in the ordinary
course of business and on nonmal terms and conditions for customers, employees or suppliers. These transactions were trivial or domestic in
nature and consisted principally of normal personal banking and deposit transactions or the provision of financlal, utility or postal services.

The Bank has agreements with certain Non-Executive Directors providing for benefits to be paid on thelr retirement or death. The maximum
benefit payable is disclosed in the Remuneration Report.

The Bank has agreements with key management personnel providing for termination payments in certain circumstances. Details of these
service contracts are disclosed in the Remuneration Report.

CONTROLLED ENTITIES

The Bank’s aggregate investment in amounts receivable from and amounts due to controlled entities is disclosed in the balance sheet of the
Bank. )

Details of amounts paid or recelved from controlled entities in the form of dividends or interest are set out in Notes 2 and 3.

NOTE 45: EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE
DIVIDENDS

On 29 October 2008, the Directors declared a final dividend of 84 cents per ordinary share and a special dividend of 31 cents per ordinary

shares, amounting to $708 million. These dividends have not been brought to account in the Group’s financial statements for the year ended 30
September 2008.

MERGER

In May 2008, Weslpac and St.George announced a proposed merger of the two entities. Under the terms of the proposed merger, holders of

St.George ordinary shares would receive 1.31 Westpac ordinary shares for each St.George ordinary share held. The proposed merger would
be implemented via a court-approved scheme of arangement.

The Board of S$1.George has unanimously recommended the proposed merger to shareholders subject to no superior proposal emerging.

The proposed merger Is subject to various conditions, including the receipt of all necessary regulatory approvals, approval by St.George's
shareholders of the merger and of the change to the Bank's constitution to allow a shareholder to hold more than 10% of the Bank's shares,

court approval of the merger and other custornary conditions, such as no material adverse change in either party and no prescribed occumences
by either party.

St.George shareholders will be asked to vote on the proposed merger and constitutional change et the Bank’s share scheme meeting and the
extraordinary general meeting respectively to ba held on 13 November 2008.

The independent expert, Grant Samuel, considers the merger proposal to be “fair" and “reasonable” and has therefore concluded that, in its
opinion, the merger proposal is in the best interests of shareholders, in the absence of a superior proposal.

GOVERNMENT GUARANTEE SCHEMES IN AUSTRALIA

The Australian Government announced on 12 October 2008 that it would guarantee the deposits in eligible Austrafian ADIs (including
S1.George) for a period of three years from 12 October 2008. The deposit guarantee applies to deposits held in eligible ADIs {including foreign
branches of eligible ADIs) by all types of legal entities, regardiess of where the depositor resides. It will apply to deposits held in any currency.

For deposits of $1 million or under, the deposit guarantes will be free. From 28 November 2008, for deposits over $1 million, the first $1 million
would be guarantsed for free and an eligible ADI will be able fo obtain coverage under the deposit guarantee for amounts over $1 million, in

return for a fee. The $1 million threshold applies to the total amount of funds held by a depositor in (separate) deposit accounts with an eligible
ADI,

The Financial System Legislation Amendment (Financial Claims Scheme and other Measures) Acl 2008 has been enacted to facilitate the
deposit guarantee. The Financial Claims Scheme (ADIs) Levy Act 2008 provides for the imposition of a levy to fund the excess of APRA's

financial claims scheme costs. The levy is imposed on liabilities of AD!s to their deposits and cannot be more than 0.5% of the amount of those
liabllities.

The Australian Government has also anncunced that it will guarantee the wholesale term funding of eligible ADls. The wholesale funding
guarantee facility will be extended, by application, on an issue-by-issue basis for senior unsecured debt instruments in all major currencies with

a term of up to 80 months issued domestically or offshore, The Australian Government has announced that it will withdraw the facility once
market conditions have normalised.

Fees will apply to the wholesale tenm funding guarantee and the guarantee deposits above the $1 million threshold. A different fee will appty to
eligible ADls based on thelr credit rating. The fee will apply to St.Gaorge, based on its current rating by Standard and Pgor’s of A+ is 100 basis
points (1.00%) per annum. The fees will ba levied on a monthly or quartedy basls depending on the liability.

The Australian Government has announced that the depasit and wholesale funding guarantee scheme will be reviewed on an ongoing basis and
revised if necessary.
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

In the opinion of the Directors of St.George Bank Limited (the Bank)
{1} (a) the financlal statements and notes are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

{i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank and the Group as at 30 September 2008 and of their
performance, as reprasented by the results of their operations and their cash flows, for the financial year ended on that
date; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

{o) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Bank will be able 1o pay its debts as and when they become due and
payable.

(2) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Bank and the confrolled entities identified in Note 38 will be able to meet any
obligations ar liabilities to which they ara or may become subject to by virtue of the Deed of Crass Guarantee batwaan the Bank and
those controlled entities pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418,

(3) the Directors have been given the declarations by the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer for the
financiat year ended 30 September 2008 pursuant to section 205A of the Corporations Act 2001.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors and in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

J 8 Curtis

Chairman

Borsam

P A Fegan
Managing Director and CEQO

Dated at Sydney, New South Wales
4 November 2008
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of St.George Bank Limited
Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of St.George Bank Limited (“the Bank™),
which comprises the balance sheets as at 30 September 2008, and the income statements,
statements of recognised income and expense and cash flow statements for the year ended on
that date, a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes 1 to 45 and
the directors’ declaration set out on pages 42 to 119 of the Group comprising the Bank and the
entities it controlled at the year’s end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes
establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances. In note 1(a), the directors also state, in sccordance with
Australian Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that the

financial report, comprising the financial statements and notes, complies with Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing
_Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intenal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design
-audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We performed the procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report
presents fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Accounting
Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations), a view which is consistent with
our understanding of the Bank's and the Group’s financial position and of their performance.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
 basis for our audit opinion. ,
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Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001.

Auditor’s opinion
In our opinion:

(2) the financial report of St.George Bank Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Bank’s and the Group’s financisl position as at
30 September 2008 and of their performance for the year ended on that date;

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) the financial report of the Group also complies with Intenational Financial Reporting
Standards as disclosed in note 1(a)

Report on the remuneration report

We have audited the remuneration report included on pages 16 to 34 of the directors’ report for
the year ended 30 September 2008. The Directors of the company are responsible for the
preparation and presentation of the remuneration report in accordance with Section 300A of the
Corporations Act 2001, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the remuneration report,
based on our audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards.

Auditor’s opinion

In our opinion, the remuneration report of the Bank for the year ended 30 September 2008,
complies with Section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

WA

D Q~Q

P M Reid
Pariner

Sydney
4 November 2008
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION — CAPITAL ADEQUACY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

Capital adequacy has been calculated in accordance with APRA's AIFRS regulatory requirements that applied from 1 July 2006. Under APRA’s
capital adequacy rules, captive lenders mortgage insurers, funds management, life insurance and securitisation asset managers are excluded

from the calculation of risk-weighted assets. Controlled entities involved in these activities are deconsolidated for the purposes of calculating
capital adequacy.

In accordance with these rules, the Bank's equity investment in its caplive lenders mortgage insurer, St.George Insurance Australia Pty Limited,
i5 deducted from Tier 1 capital. The intangible component of the Bank's investment in Asgard Wealth Solutions Limited is deducted from Tier 1
capital. The tangible component of the Bank's investiment in Crusade Management Limited, St.George Life Limited, Advance Asset
Management and Asgard Wealth Solutions are deducted from totaf Ther 1 and Tier 2 capital. Any profits from these entities are excluded from
Tier 1 capital unless they have been remitted to the Bank.

Qualifying capital

2008 2007
M $M
Tier 1
Share capital 5,123 4,041
General reserve 15 15
Barrowers' and depositors' redemption reserve 2 2
SAINTS 345 345
Step-up preference shares 148 148
Converting preference shares (CPS 1} 320 320
Converting preference shares (CPS 11) 392 -
Minerity interests 7 6
Other reserves {4) 1
Equity compensation reserve 55 41
Retained eamings 1,250 1,086
Less: Expected dividend " (482) -
Capitalised expenses (427) (358)
Goodwill and other APRA deductions (1,804) (1.701)
Add: APRA AIFRS transition adjustments @ - 261
Total Tier 1 capital 4,940 4,207
Tier 2
Asset revaluations 20 23
Subordinated debt 2,470 1,890
General reserve for credit losses/collective provision 404 313
Add: APRA AIFRS transition adjustments % - 7
Total Tier 2 capital 2,894 2,233
Deaductions
Investment in non-consolidated entities net of goodwill and Tier 1 deductions 42 27
Other 31 1
Total deductions from capital 73 28
Total qualifying capital 7,761 6,412
Total risk weighted assets 75,162 63,226
Risk weighted capitat adequacy ratios % %
Tier 1 6.6 8.7
Tier 2 ’ 3.9 a5
Deductions (0.1) -
Total capital ratio 10.4 '10.2
{1) Net of estimated reinvestment under the dividend reinvestment plan.
(2) Transitional relief adjustment approved by APRA expired on 1 January 2008. The transitional relief represented the difference

between the Group’s previous GAAP capital base at 30 June 2006 and AIFRS capital base at 1 July 2008.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - CAPITAL ADEQUACY
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Risk Weighted Assets

CAPITAL ADEQUACY Face value Risk Risk weighted balance
2008 weight 2008 2007

M % M M

(i) On balance sheet assets

Cash, claims on Reserve Bank, Australian Commonweatth, State

and Territory Governments, Central Government and Central

Banks of QECD countries 4,003 - - -

Longer tarm claims on Australian Commonwealth, State and

Territory govemments - 10 - -

Claims on local governments, public sector entities, Authorisad

Deposit Taking institutions 1,153 20 23 498

Loans secured by residential property 67,606 50 33,803 28,014

All other assets 36,833 100 36,933 31,459

Total on Balance Sheet assets ‘" - credit risk 109,695 70,867 59,971

Face value  Credit equivalent Risk weighted balance
2008 2008 2008 2007
M ™M SN M
(i} OF balance sheet exposures
Direct credit substitutes 1,144 1,144 1,144 1,019
Trade and performance related items 235 53 53 36
Commitments 23,644 1.500 1,071 968
Foreign exchange, interest rate and other market related
transactions 247 417 2,966 682 507
Total off balance sheet exposures - credit risk 272,440 5,663 2,850 2,530
Risk weighted assels - credit risk 73,917 62,501
Risk weighted assets - market risk 1,245 725
Total risk weighted assets 75,162 63,226
Capital adequacy ratio
Risk weighted capital adequacy ratios % %
Tier 1 6.6 6.7
Tler 2 39 35
Deductions _{0.1) -
Total capital ratio 10.4 10.2
(1) The difference between total on balance sheet assels ang the Group’s balance sheet results from the alternative treatment prescribed
by APRA for items such as goodwill, provisions for bad and doubtful debts and securitisation.
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - INFORMATION REGARDING SHAREHOLDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

CLASSES OF SHARES ON ISSUE

The Bank has seven classes of shares on issue;
. fully paid ordinary shares;
. SAINTS (Subordinated Adjustable Income Non-refundable Tier 1 Securities);

. SPS (Step-Up Preference Shares), a non-cumutative unsecured preference share;

. CPS5 (Converting Preference Shares), a non-cumulative unsecured converting preference share;

. CPS Il {Converting Preference Shares 1), a non-cumulative unsecured converting preference share;
. unpaid borower shares; and

. unpaid depositor shares.

Further details are contained within the accompanying ‘Notes to and forming part of the accounts' and later in this section.

The rights and restrictions attached to all classes are contained within the Bank’s Constitution, consisting of ils Memorandum and Articles of
Association, a copy of which is available to any shareholder on written request to either St.George's share registry (Computershare Investor
Services Pty Limited), or its registered office. Contact details are inside the back cover of this report.

VOTING RIGHTS

Subjec! 1o the Bank's Constilution, ai general meetings of the Bank:
a) each ordinary shareholder entitled to vote may elther vote in person, by proxy, by attorney or, where a body corporate, by representative;
b) on a show of hands, each ordinary shareholder present in person, by proxy, attomey or representalive has one vote; and

c} on a pol, each ordinary shareholder present in person, by proxy, representative or attomey shall have one vole for every ordinary share
held by that shareholder. In the case of joint holdings, only one joint holder may vote and if both joint holders attend the meeting only the
first named in the register of shareholders may vote.

SAINTS, SPS, CPS and CPS 1] holders will be entitled 1o attend general meetings of the Bank, but will not be entitled to speak or vote except in
limited circumstances prescribed by the ASX Listing Rules. Borrower and depositor shareholders will be entitled to attend general meetings, but
will not be entitled to speak or vote. Full details of voting entitlements for all classes of shareholder are contained within the Bank’s Constitution.

VOTING. BY PROXY

The Board strongly encourages shareholders who are nol able to attend meetings to participate in the decision making process through the

completion and return of proxies. If a shareholder appoints a proxy and still attends the meeting, they may net vote uniess he or she revokes
the proxy prior to the commencement of the meeting.

Corporate shareholders may:

+ appoint a representative; or
+ appoint a proxy;

to represent them at meetings.

If a representative of a corporate security holder or proxy is to attend the meeting, the appropriate “Certificate of Appointment of Corporate
Representative™ should be produced prior to admission. A form of the cerfificate may be obtained from the Bank's share registry and must be

retumed to either the Bank's share registry or iis registered office (or by specified facsimile numbers at such places), no later than 48 hours
before the meeting,
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - INFORMATION REGARDING SHAREHOLDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

AUSTRALIAN SECURITIES EXCHANGE LISTING

The Bank's ordinary shares, SAINTS, SPS, CPS and CPS It are quoted on the Australian Securities Exchange {ASX) with Sydney being the
Bank’s home exchange. The stock codes under which these shares trade are:

o ‘SGPB for ordinary;
. ‘SGBPA' for SAINTS;
« ‘SGBPC for SPS;

+ 'SGBPD for CPS and
+ ‘SGBPE for CPS .

Trading results are published in most Australian dally newspapers.

Option contracts against the ordinary shares of the Bank are traded on the ASX Derivatives Market. Further information can be obtained from
ASX Derivatives or a stockbroker.

In the United States, the Bank's ordinary shares may be traded in the form of American Depository Receipts issued through Deutsche Bank.
Further enquiries should be directed to Deutsche Bank. Contact details are inside the back cover of this report.

Shareholders or other interested parties wishing to trade in St.George shares on the ASX must do so through a stockbroker. The Corporate
Relations office of the ASX can amrange a referral for persons who have had no prior dealings with a stockbroker.

INVESTOR INFORMATION ON THE INTERNET

Visit our Shareholder Centre section on the St.George website (www,sigeorge com.au} for comprehensive shareholder information such as the
Annual Reponts, profit announcements, News and ASX releases, current share price as well as access 10 your shareholding oniine.
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - INFORMATION REGARDING SHAREHOLDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

LIMITATION OF SHARE OWNERSHIP

The Constitution of the Bank imposes a prohibition on the ownership of more than ten percent (10%) of the issued shares in the Bank. From 1 July
2002, an amendment to the Constitution relating to the ten percent (10%) sharehoiding limitation, may be effected by a special resolution of
shareholders holding seventy-five percent {75%) or more of the Bank’'s ordinary shares voling In favour of the amendment whether in person or by
proxy.

The Financial Sector (Shareholdings) Act also containg sharehokling limitations,

LISTINGS

The ordinary and preference shares of the Bank are traded on the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX), with Sydney being the Bank's home
exchange. The ASX code under which the ordinary shares, SAINTS, SPS, CPS and CPS |l are traded is 'SGB', 'SGBPA', 'SGBPC’, ‘SGBPD'

and 'SGBPE’ respectively, Share details of trading activity are published in most daily newspapers. The Bank also has the following
Transferable Deposits Issues listed on the ASX;

A%400 million Fixed Rate 8.00% Transferable Deposits due April 2011 under code SGBHA
A$980 million Floating Rate Transferable Deposits due April 2011 under code SGBHB

A$150 million Fixed Rate 8.25% Transferable Deposits due November 2011 under code SGBHC
A%$450 million Floating Rate Transferable Deposits due November 2011 under code SGBHD
A%900 million Fleating Rate Transferable Deposits due August 2009 under code SGBHE

A%1 blllion Floating Rate Transferable Deposits due March 2008 under code SGBHF

St.George also has a EURS 15 billion Euro Note Programme listed on the London Stock Exchange Limited, The following Notes are listed under
the Programme; :

JPY8 billion Floating Rate Notes due October 2008
JPY3 billion Floating Rate Notes due November 2008
EURSE million Floating Rate Notes due December 2008
JPY1 billion 0.32% Notes due December 2008

JPY11 billion Floating Rate Notes due February 2009
JPY10 billion Floating Rate Notes due February 2009
GBP45 miliion Floating Rate Notes due March 2009
EUR7S50 million Floaling Rate Notes due August 2009
US$20 million Floating Rate Notes due October 2009
EURS50 million Flpating Rate Notes due December 2009
EURS00 million Floating Rate Notes due January 2010
US$500 million Floating Rate Notes due February 2010
CHF250 million Floating Rate Notes due March 2610
EUR750 million Floating Rate Notes due June 2010
JPY1.25 blllion 0.706% Notes due November 2010
JPY1 billion 0.8825% Notes due December 2010
GBP375 million Floating Rate Notes due January 2011
EUR700 million Floating Rate Notes due June 2011
EUR20 milifon 4.245% Notes due April 2012

EURS00 million 4.875% Notes due July 2012

EURG00 million 8.5% Notes due June 2013

EUR30 millfon Floating Rate Notes due August 2013
EUR250 millicn Floating sub Rate Notes due November 2015
CAD250 million 4.65% sub Notes due April 2017

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

St.George has not been provided with a Notice of substantial shareholding during its 2007/2008 financial year.
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ~ INFORMATION REGARDING SHAREHOLDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

TOP 20 SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 21 OCTOBER 2008

ORDINARY SHARES

Shareholder Number of Ordinary Percentage of

Shares Held_ Shares Held
J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 55,976,895 9.88
HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 51,038,250 9.04
National Nominees Limited 37,043,538 8.54
ANZ Nominges Limited 12,486,497 2.20
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 8,676,158 1.53
Cogent Nominees Pty Limited 7,059,186 1.25
AMP Life Limited 4,478,918 0.79
Australian Reward Investment Alliance 3,340,956 0.59
Australian Foundation Investment Company Limited 2,543,663 0.45
Argo Investments Lirnited 2,528,137 045
Pempetual Trustee Company Limited 2,502,450 0.44
Queensland investment Comporation 2,433,785 0.43
UBS Wealth Management Australia Nominees Pty Ltd 2,203,444 0.39
Milton Corporation Limited 2,009,221 0.35
UBS Nominees Pty Ltd 1,570,091 0.28
CS Fourth Nominees Pty Ltd 1,560,278 0.28
RBC Dexia Investor Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited 1,543,364 0.27
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 1,500,525 0.28
Pan Australian Nominees Pty Limited 1,455,542 0.26
RBC Dexia Investor Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited 1,272,151 0.22

The top 20 ordinary shareholders held 35.87% of all ordinary shares issued.
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION — INFORMATION REGARDING SHAREHOLDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

SAINTS

Shareholder Number of SAINTS Percentage of

) Held Shares Held
J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 269,125 7.69
AMP Life Limited 200,850 ] 574
HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 179,825 5.14
ANZ Nominees Limited 105,000 3.00
UBS Wealth Management Australia Nominees Pty Ltd 81,433 2.61
RBC Dexia Investor Services Australia Nominees Py Limited 64,602 1.85
National Nominees Limited 58,468 1.67
ANZ Nominees Limited 486,831 1.34
Cambooya Pty Limited 24,087 069
Australian Executor Trustees Limited 20,825 0.60
The Australian Naticnal University 20,000 0.57
Lutovi Investments Pty Ltd 20,000 0.57
High Family Super Pty Ltd 18,800 0.54
De La Salle Brothers 17,808 0.51
Questor Financial Services Limited 16,965 0.48
Ecapital Nominees Pty Limited 15,977 0.46
Elise Nominees Pty Limited 14,371 0.41
Peroda Nominees Pty Limited 13,506 0.39
Argo Investments Limited 12,000 0.34
M&R Shell (Holdings) Pty Ltd 10,000 0.29

The top 20 SAINTS holders held 34.89% of ali SAINTS issued.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - INFORMATION REGARDING SHAREHOLDINGS
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SPS

Shareholder Number of SPS Held Percentage of

Shares Held
J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 224 972 15.00
HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 140,608 9.37
National Nominees Limiled 75814 5.04
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 72,500 4.83
UBS Wealth Management Australia Nominees Pty Ltd 63,880 4.26
The Australian National University 60,000 4.00
HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 52,459 3.50
Dimbulu Pty Ltd 51,000 3.40
UCA Cash Management Fund Limited 50,000 333
ANZ Nominees Limited 25,588 1.71
Questor Financial Services Limited 23,563 1.57
Mr Edward Fumival Griffin and Mrs Deborah Ann Griffin 20,780 1.39
RBC Dexia Investor Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited 19,653 1.31
Elise Nominees Pty Limited 13,773 0.92
Mrs Janette Mary Waterhouse 10,400 0.69
RBC Dexia Investor Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited 10,259 0.68
Baptist Community Services - NSW & ACT 10,000 0.67
Invia Custodian Pty Limited 10,000 0.67
Equity Trustees Limited 9.918 0.66
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 9,900 0.66

The top 20 SPS holders held 63.86% of all SPS [ssued.
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CPS

Shareholder Number of CPS Held Percentage of

Shares Held
J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 194,852 8.00
UBS Nominees Pty Ltd 171,622 5.28
National Nominees Limited 122,643 377
UBS Wealth Management Australia Nominees Pty Ltd 91,281 2.81
ANZ Nominees Limited 87,203 268
Citicorp Nominges Pty Limited 85,709 2.02
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 65,000 2.00
HSBC Custedy Nominees (Australia) Limited 37.693 1.18
UCA Cash Management Fund Ltd 35,000 1.08
The Australian National University 30,000 0.92
RBC Deuxia nvestor Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited 22,447 0.68
Questor Financial Services Limited 22,332 0.68
invia Custodian Pty Limited 20,183 0.62
Mr Woody Fattal 20,000 0.62
Lord Mayor’s Charitable Fund 19,425 0.60
ANZ Trustees Limited 18,250 0.56
Tavemer No 11 Pty Ltd 17.500 0.54
Argo Investments Limited 15,000 0.46
Resthaven Incorporated 15,000 0.46
Equity Trustees Limited 13,000 0.40

The top 20 CPS holders held 33.36% of all CPS issued.
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - INFORMATION REGARDING SHAREHOLDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

CPS I

Shareholder Number of CPS |l Held Percentage of

Shares Held
J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 169,445 4.24
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 120,000 3.00
National Nominees Limited 110,921 277
ANZ Nominees Limited 95,261 238
UBS Wealth Management Ausiralia Nominees Pty Ltd 86,312 2.18
RBC Dexla Investor Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited 68,425 1M
HSBC Custody Nominees {Australia) Limited £8,124 145
UBS Nominees Pty Ltd 50,215 1.28
Koll Pty Ltd 50,000 1.25
UCA Cash Management Fund Ltd 46,000 1.15
Avanteos Investments Limited 33,789 0.84
The Australian Nationat University 30,000 0.75
Count Financial Limited 30,000 0.75
Australian Foundation Investment Company Limited 25,000 0.63
RBC Dexia Investor Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited 21,068 0.53
Netwealth Investments Limited 20,118 0.50
ANZ Nominees Limited 20,000 0.50
OB & VC Sutton Pty Limited 20,000 0.50
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 18,561 0.46
Awustralian Executor Trustees Limited 18,419 0.46

Tha top 20 CPS Il holders held 27.20% of all CPS Il issued.
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION — INFORMATION REGARDING SHAREHOLDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

FIVE YEAR HISTORY OF SHARE ISSUES AND DIVIDENDS

ORDINARY SHARES
History of shares Issued
issue/
Date of Issue Details Shares Issued DRP Price ($)
Balange at 1 Qctober 2003 505,592,816
2111/03 Employee Reward Share Ptan 312,5M 20.07
18/12/03 Dividend Reinvestment Plan 3,250,056 19.44
02/07/04 Dividend Reinvestment Plan 3,985,496 2202
Oct 03 — Sep 04 Exercise of Employee Options 30,000 Various
Oct 03 - Sep 04 Exercise of Employee Awards 617,111 Various
16/11/04 Employee Reward Share Plan 288,763 24.25
1712104 Dividend Reinvestment Plan 2,893,287 24.45
04/07/05 Dividend Reinvestment Plan 2,496,221 26.02
Oct 04 — Sep 05 Exercise of Employee Options 338,270 Various
Oct 04 — Sep 05 Exercise of Employee Awards 602,893 Various
1811105 Employee Reward Share Plan 241,368 29.03
14/12/05 Dividend Reinvestment Plan 4,482,131 28.38
21/02/08 Share Buy-Back (Cancelled Shares) (11,677,657) 2569
21/02/08 Conversion of PRYMES 10,309,170 29.82
QAD7108 Dividend Reinvestment Plan 2,033,283 28.93
Oct 05 - Sep 08 Exercise of Employee Options 513,522 Various
Oct 05~ Sep 08 Exercise of Employee Awards 269,314 Various
1711/06 Employee Reward Share Ptan 219,878 33.89
18/12108 Dividend Reinvestment Plan 2,330,709 32.33
03/07107 Dividend Reinvestment Plan 1,879,122 35.55
06/07/07 Redemption of Perpetual Notes 407,280 35.58
Oct 06 - Sep 07 Exercise of Employee Options 926,990 Various
Oct 08 - Sep 07 Exercise of Employee Awards 219,756 Various
1611107 Employee Reward Share Plan 191,802 37.17
28/11/07 Private Share Placement 21,900,000 35.00
1812/07 Dividend Reinvestment Plan 2,203,980 3462
07/03/08 Share Purchase Plan 3,452,467 2472
02/07/08 Dividend Reinvestment Plan 5,464,128 27.79
Oct 07 - Sep 08 Exercise of Employee Options 503,891 Various
Qct 07 — Sep 08 Exercise of Employee Awards 230,690 Various
Balance at 30 September 2008 566,529,267

History of dividends
Date Pald Type Franking Rate {cents) DRP {$)
02/07/02 . Interim 30% 3B 19.22
1312702 Final 30% 42 18.18
02/07/03 Interim 30% 45 21.48
19M12/03 Final 30% 50 19.44
02/07/04 Interim 30% 60 2202
1712/04 Final 30% 62 24.45
04/07/05 Interim 30% 67 26.02
14/12/05 Final 30% 70 28.38
04/07/06 Interim 30% 74 28.93
19M12/08 Final 30% 77 32.33
03/07107 Interim 30% 82 3555
18/12/Q7 Final 30% 86 3462
02/07/08 Interim 30% 88 27.79
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - INFORMATION REGARDING SHAREHOLDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

SAINTS
Date Pald Detalls
13/08/03 Initial issue of 3,500,000 SAINTS. Issue price $100.00.
2211/04 Quarterty Dividend of $1.3146, fully franked at 30%
21/02/05 Quarterly Dividend of $1.1677, fully franked at 30%
20/05/05 Quarterly Dividend of $1.2033, fully franked at 30%
22/08/05 Quarterly Dividend of $1.2412, fully franked at 30%
21111/05 Quarterly Dividend of $1.2268, fully franked at 30%
20/02/06 Quarterly Dividend of $1.2289, fully franked at 30%
22/05/08 Quarterly Dividend of $1.1868, fully franked at 30%
2108108 Quarterly Dividend of $1.2774, fully franked al 30%
2011108 Quarterly Dividend of $1.3268, fully franked at 30%
20/02/07 Quarterly Dividend of $1.3598, fully franked at 30%
21/05/07 Quarterly Dividend of $1.3157, fully franked at 30%
20/08/07 Quarterly Dividend of $1.3588, fully franked at 30%
20111107 Quarterly Dividend of $1.4371, fully franked at 30%
20/02/08 Quarterly Dividend of $1.5047, fully franked at 30%
20/05/08 Quarterly Dividend of $1.5810, fully franked at 30%
20/08/08 Quartery Dividend of $1.5932, fully franked at 30%
20/11/08 Quarterly Dividend of $1.5244, fully franked at 30%
SPS
Date Paid Details
20/06/06 Initial issue of 1,500,000 SPS. Issue price $100.00.
21/08/06 Quarterly Dividend of $0.8277, fully franked at 30%
20111106 Quarterty Dividend of $1.2827, fully franked at 30%
20/02/07 Quarterly Dividend of $1.3157, fully franked at 30%
21/05/07 Quarterly Dividend of $1.2730, fully franked at 30%
20/08/07 Quarterly Dividend of $1.3145, fully franked at 30%
201107 Quarterly Dividend of $1.3030, fully franked at 30%
20/02/08 Quarterly Dividend of $1.4608, fully franked at 30%
20/05/08 Quarterly Dividend of $1.5379, fully franked at 30%
20/08/08 Quarterty Dividend of $1,5491, fully franked at 30%
20/11/08 Quarterty Dividend of $1.4803, fully franked at 30%
CPS
Date Pald Detalls
19/12/06 Initial issue of 3,250,000 CPS. Issue price $100.00.
21/05/07 Quarterly Dividend of $1.2901, fully franked at 30%
20/08/07 Quarterly Dividend of $4.3321, fully franked at 30%
2011107 Quarterty Dividend of $1.4106, fully franked at 30%
20/02/08 Quarterty Dividend of $1.4782, fully franked at 30%
20/05/08 Quarterly Dividend of $1.5551, fully franked at 30%
20/08/08 Quarterty Dividend of $1.5688, fully franked ai 30%
20/11/08 Quarterty Dividend of $1.4980, fully franked at 30%
CPS I
Date Paid Details
28112107 Initial issue of 4,000,000 CPS II. issue price $100.00
20/02/08 Quarterly Dividend of $0.9184, fully franked at 30%
20/05/08 Quarterly Dividend of $1.8242, fully franked at 30%
20/08/08 Quarterly Dividend of $1.6373, fully franked at 30%
20/11/08 Quarterly Dividend of $1.5685, fully franked at 30%
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ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

CONTACT DETAILS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

ABN

St.George Bank Limited
ABN 92 055 513 070
AFSL 240097

KEY DATES

Annual General Meeting {Sydney)
30 January 2009

Announcement of Results and Ordinary
Dividend

interim (haif year ended 31 March 2009)
6 May 2009*

Final (year ended 30 September 2009)
30 October 2009*

Ordinary Shares

Fina! Dividend (2008} paid 18 Dgcember
2008

»  Ex-dividend trading 78 November 2008
»  Record date 24 November 2008

Interim Dividend (2000) paid 2 July 2009*
e  Ex-dividend trading 1 June 2009*
+  Record date 5 June 2009*

SAINTS, SPS. C dCPs i

Payment date 20 February 2009*
o Ex-dividend trading 2 February 2009*
*  Record date 6 February 2009*

Payment date 20 May 2009*
+  Ex-dividend trading 30 April 2009*
+  Record date 6 May 2009*

Payment date 20 August 2009*
+  Ex-dividend trading 31 July 2009
+« Record date 6 August 2009*

Payment date 20 November 2009*
+  Ex-dividend trading 30 October 2009*
«  Record date 6 November 2009*

* proposed dates only

CONTACT DETAILS

ST.GEORGE REGISTERED OFFICE
St.George House

4-16 Montgomery Streat

Kogarah NSW 2217, Australia
Telephone (02) 9236 1111
Internationat (612) 8236 1111
Facsimile (02) 9852 1000

Secretary: M H S Bowan

S1.GECRGE SHARE REGISTRY
Computershare Investor Services Pty
Limited

Level 3, 80 Carrington Street

Sydney NSW 2000

Postal Address: GPO Box 4519
Melbourne VIC 3001, Australia
Telephone 1800 804 457
International {613) 9415 4000
Facsimile (613) 9473 2500

BANKSA

97 King William Street
Adelaide SA 5000
Customer Service 13 1376

ADVANCE INVESTOR SERVICES
Level 5, 182 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000

Customer Service 1800 §19 935

ASGARD CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
LIMITED

Leve! 38, Centrat Park

152 St. George's Terrace

Perth WA 8000

Customer Service 1800 998 185

DEUTSCHE S8ANK

(American Depository Receipts)
Depository Receipts Department
Floor 27, 60 Wall Street

New York, NY, USA

Telephone (1212) 2509100

EMAIL/INTERNET

Email: gtgecrge@staeorge.com.au
Internet: www.stgeorge.com.ay

AUDITORS
KPMG 7
10 Shelley Street
Sydney NSW 2000
CREDIT RATINGS

SHORT TERM LONG TERM
Standard and Poor's A-1 A+
Moody's P-1 Aa2
Fitch Ratings F1 A+
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St.gcorgc

31 Qctober 2008

Independent Expert confirms findings on merger proposal

St.George Bank Limited (St.George) welcomed today's confirmation by the Independent Expert, Grant
Samuel & Associates Pty Limited, of its findings on the merger proposal (copy attached).

The Independent Expert has reviewed St.George's Full Year Results announcement (made on
Wednesday 29 October 2008) and Westpac Banking Corporation's Full Year Results announcement
{made on Thursday 30 October 2008) and has confirmed that these results have not affected its

conclusion that the merger proposal is in the best interests of St.George shareholders, in the absence

of a superior proposal.

In making this confirmation, the Independent Expert has not reviewed any other additional information
nor has it updated its report as summarised in the Scheme Booklet released to the market on 29
September 2008 and despatched to shareholders and as set out in full in the Scheme Booklet

Supplement.

The St.George Board is pleased that the Independent Expert has confirmed that the merger proposal is
in the best interests of St.George shareholders and looks forward to the shareholder vote at the

meetings on 13 November 2008.

Ends...

Media contact:

Jeremy Griffith, Corporate Relations, 02 9236 1328 or 0411 259 432
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T: #61 2 9324 4211 ] F: +61 2 9324 4301

www.grantsamusl.com.au

31 October 2008

The Directors

St George Bank Limited
4-16 Montgomery Street
Kogarah NSW 2217

Dear Directors

St.George Bank Limited — Confirmation of Opinion

1 Introduction

On 13 May 2008, St. George Bank Limited (“St. George™) and Westpac Banking Corporation
(“Westpac™) announced that they had agreed terms on a proposed merger of the two companies (the

“Westpac Proposal”). Under the Westpac Proposal, Westpac is offering 1.31 Westpac shares for each
share in St. George.

St.George released a Scheme Booklet in relation to the Westpac Proposal on 29 September 2008. The
Scheme Booklet contained a summary of an independent expert’s report prepared by Grant Samuel &
Associates Pty Limited (“Grant Samuel”) dated 29 September 2008 which concluded that, “in Grant

Samuel’s opinion, the Westpac Proposal is in the best interests of St.George shareholders, in the absence
of a superior proposal.”

St.George and Westpac released their financial results for the year ended 30 September 2008 on 29
October 2008 and 30 October 2008 respectively.

The Directors of St.George have requested that Grant Samuel & Asscciates Pty Limited (“Grant
Samuel”) review the St.George and Westpac financial results for the year ended 30 September 2008 and,
if able to do so, confirm that the results do not change Grant Samuel’s opinion that the Westpac Proposal
is in the best interests of St.George shareholders, in the absence of a superior proposal.

The outcome of this review is set out in this letter and will be announced to the Australian Securities
Exchange and released on St.George’s website in advance of the Scheme Meeting, which is scheduled to
be held on 13 November 2008.

2 Analysis and Limitations
Grant Samuel has reviewed:
s the financial results for S1. George for the year ended 30 September 2008; and
s the financial results for Westpac for the vear ended 30 September 2008.

This review was based on publicly available data and brief discussions with senior management of
St.George. The review was high level and limited to a comparison of the actual financial results for the
year ended 30 September 2008 with the expectations of earnings for the same period at the time that
Grant Samuel prepared the independent expert’s report (and utilised in the preparation of that report).

All of the staternents as to reliance on information, limitations and disclaimers set out in Grant Samuel’s
report dated 29 September 2008 apply equally to the opinions set out in this letter.

GRANT SAMUEL & ASSOCIATES PTY LIMITED
ABN 28 050 036 372 AFS LICENCE NO 2400835
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Conclusion

The financial results for St.George and Westpac for the year ended 30 September 2008 are not materially
different to the earnings that Grant Samuel used in its analysis of the Westpac Proposal.

Accordingly, based on the review undertaken and subject to the qualifications set out above, Grant
Samuel confirms that the financial results of St.George and Westpac do not change its opinion given in its
report dated 29 September 2008, that the Westpac Proposal is in the best interests of St.George
shareholders, in the absence of a superior proposal.

Other Matters

This letter is general financial product advice only and has been prepared without taking into account the
objectives, financial simation or needs of individual St.George shareholders. Accordingly, before acting
in relation to their investment, shareholders should consider the appropriateness of the advice having
regard to their own objectives, financial situation or needs, Shareholders should read the Scheme Booklet
issued by St.George in relation to the Westpac Proposal.

Voting for or against the Westpac Proposal is a matter for individual shareholders, based on their own
views as to value, their expectations about future market conditions and their particular circumstances
including risk profile, liquidity preference, investment strategy, portfolio structure and tax position,
Shareholders who are in doubt as to the action they should take in relation to the Westpac Proposal should
consult their own professional adviser.

Similarly, it is a matter for individual shareholders as to whether to buy, hold or sell Westpac shares
received under the Westpac Proposal (or, if the Westpac Proposal does not proceed, whether to buy, hold
or sell St.George shares). This is an investment decision independent of a decision on whether to vote for
or against the Westpac Proposal upon which Grant Samuel does not offer an opinion. Shareholders
should consult their own professional adviser in this regard.

The opinion is confirmed as at the date of this letter and reflects circumstances and conditions as at that
date.

Yours faithfully
GRANT SAMUEL & ASSOCIATES PTY LIMITED
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To: Companies Announcements NI
Australian Stock Exchange Limited

Company Name: ST.GEORGE BANK LIMITED

ABN: 92 055 513 070

Paggs (Includes this page): 1

Contact Officer: Michael Bowan

Contact Telephone: (02) 9236 2833

Facsimile: | (02) 9236 1899

Subject: Managing Director and CEO options clarification

Date Sent; 5 November 2008

On 13 November 2007, St.George’s Managing Director and CEO, Paul Fegan was
granted 138,906 options over St.George Bank Limited shares as disclosed on page 29
of the Bank's 2008 Annual Financial Report. The reference to options granted to Paul
Fegan on page 35 of the Bank's 2008 Annual Financial Report under the Share Options
section should refer to a grant date of 13 November 2007 for these options.

Yours sincerely,

Mot/ oo

Michael Bowan
General Counsel and Secretary

END




